CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY (CBA)
ENFORCEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE (EAC)

EAC MEETING
NOTICE & AGENDA

Thursday, January 29, 2015
9:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.

Doubletree By Hilton Berkeley Marina
200 Marina Bivd
Berkeley, CA 94710
Telephone: (510) 548-7920

9:00 - 9:05 I. Roll Call and Call to Order (Jeffrey De Lyser, Chair).
9:05-9:20 [I. Report of the Committee Chair (Jeffrey De Lyser, Chair).

A. Introduction of Sarah Huchel, Consultant, California State Assembly
Committee on Business and Professions.

B. Presentation and Discussion Regarding Requirements for Reporting
Actions Taken at Board Meetings In Accordance With California
Government Code Section 11123 (Dominic Franzella, Enforcement
Chief).

C. Approval of the December 11, 2014 EAC Meeting Minutes.
9:20-9:35 [ll. Report of the CBA Liaison (Katrina Salazar).

A. Report of the January 22, 2015 CBA and Committee Meetings.
9:35-10:00 IV. Report of the Enforcement Chief (Dominic Franzella).

A. Enforcement Activity Report.
B. Report on Accusations and Final Disciplinary Orders Since
December 11, 2014.
10:00 - 10:05 V. Public Comments for Items not on the Agenda.

10:05-11:30 VI. Review Enforcement Files on Individual Licensees.
[Closed Session: The EAC will meet in closed session to review and
deliberate on enforcement files as authorized by Government Code



section 11126(c)(2) and Business and Professions Code section 5020.]
LUNCH

1:00 - 5:00 VII. Conduct Closed Hearings.
[The Committee will meet in closed session as authorized by Government
Code Sections 11126(c)(2) and (f)(3), and Business and Professions Code
Section 5020 to conduct a closed session to interview and consider
disciplinary action against an individual licensee or applicant prior to the
filing of an Accusation.]

VIIl.  Adjournment.

Please note: Action may be taken on any item on the agenda. All times are approximate. In accordance with the
Bagley-Keene Open Meetings Act, all meetings of the EAC are open to the public. Government Code section 11125.7
provides the opportunity for the public to address each agenda item during discussion or consideration by the EAC prior
to the EAC taking any action on said item. Members of the public will be provided appropriate opportunities to comment
on any issue before the EAC, but the EAC Chair may, at her discretion, apportion available time among those who wish
to speak. Individuals may appear before the EAC to discuss items not on the agenda; however, the EAC can neither
discuss nor take official action on these items at the time of the same meeting. (Government Code sec.11125.7(a).
CBA members who are not members of the EAC may be attending the meeting. However, if a majority of members of
the full board are present at the EAC meeting, members who are not members of the EAC may attend the meeting only
as observers.

The meeting is accessible to individuals with physical disabilities. A person who needs a disability-related
accommodation or modification in order to participate in the meeting may make a request by contacting

Allison Nightingale at (916) 561-1723, or by email at anightingale@cba.ca.gov, or send a written request to the CBA
office at 2000 Evergreen Street, Suite 250, Sacramento, CA 95815. Providing your request at least five (5) business
days before the meeting will help to ensure availability of the requested accommodation.

For further information regarding this meeting, please contact:

Allison Nightingale, Management Services Technician
(916) 561-1723 or anightingale@cba.ca.gov
California Board of Accountancy

2000 Evergreen Street, Suite 250

Sacramento, CA 95815

An electronic copy of this agenda can be found at http://www.dca.ca.gov/cba/calendar.shtml.
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AB-2720 State agencies: meetings: record of action taken. (2013-2014)

Assembly Bill No. 2720

CHAPTER 510

An act to amend Section 11123 of the Government Code, relating to public meetings.

[ Approved by Governor September 20, 2014. Filed with Secretary of State
September 20, 2014. ]

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

! AB 2720, Ting. State agencies: meetings: record of action taken.

| The Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act requires, with specified exceptions, that all meetings of a state body, as
" defined, be open and public and all persons be permitted to attend'any meeting of a state body. The act
defines various terms for its purposes, including “action taken,” which means a collective decision made by the
members of a state body, a collective commitment or promise by the members of the state body to make a
positive or negative decision, or an actual vote by the members of a state body when sitting as a body or
entity upon a motion, proposal, resolution, order, or similar action.

This bill would require a state body to publicly report any action taken and the vote or abstention on that
action of each member present for the action.

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: no Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:
SECTION 1. Section 11123 of the Government Code is amended to read:

11123. (a) All meetings of a state body shall be open and public and all persons shall be permitted to attend
any meeting of a state body except as otherwise provided in this article.

{b) (1) This article does not prohibit a state body from holding an open or closed meeting by teleconference for
the benefit of the public and state body. The meeting or proceeding held by teleconference shall otherwise
comply with all applicable requirements or laws relating to a specific type of meeting or proceeding, including
! the following:

(A) The teleconferencing meeting shall comply with all requirements of this article applicable to other
meetings.

(B) The portion of the teleconferenced meeting that is required to be open to the public shall be audible to the
public at the location specified in the notice of the meeting.

| (C) If the state body elects to conduct a meeting or proceeding by teleconference, it shall post agendas at all
": teleconference [ocations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that protects the rights of any party
or member of the public appearing before the state body. Each teleconference location shall be identified in the
notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference location shall be accessible to the
public. The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the state body directly

httpi//leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/biliNavClient.xhtm|?bill_id=201320140AB2720&search_keywords= 1/2
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pursuant to Section 11125.7 at each teleconference location.
(D} All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rolicall.

{E) The portion of the teleconferenced meeting that is closed to the public may not include the consideration of
any agenda item being heard pursuant to Section 11125.5.

(F) At least one member of the state body shall be physically present at the location specified in the notice of
the meeting.

(2) For the purposes of this subdivision, “teleconference” means a meeting of a state body, the members of
which are at different locations, connected by electronic means, through either audio or both audio and video.
This section does not prohibit a state body from providing members of the public with additional locations in
which the public may observe or address the state body by electronic means, through either audio or both
audio and video,

(c) The state body shall publicly report any action taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each
member present for the action.

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtm|?bill_id=201320140AB27208search_keywords=
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Attachment 2

California Business and Professions Code
Division 3, Chapter 1, Article 1, Section 5017.1
Administration

5017.1

The board shall post, within 10 days of board approval, the finalized minutes from
meetings of the board that are open and public pursuant to Section 5017 on the board’s
Internet Web site. The minutes shall remain on the board’s Internet Web site for at least
three years. Providing a link on the Internet Web site to the minutes shall satisfy this
requirement.




EAC Item II.B.
January 30, 2015

Presentation and Discussion Regarding Requirements for Reporting Actions
Taken at Board Meetings in Accordance With California Government Code
Section 11123

Presented by: Dominic Franzella, Enforcement Chief
Date: December 12, 2014

Purpose of the Item

The purpose of this agenda item is to provide the Enforcement Advisory Committee
(EAC) with the new procedures staff will follow to meet the requirement to publicly
report on each action taken in accordance with California Government Code
(Government Code) section 11123.

Action Needed
No specific action is required on this agenda item.

Background
The Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act defines various terms, including “action taken”

which is defined as a “collective commitment or promise by the members of the state
body to make a positive or negative decision, or an actual vote by the members of a
state body when sitting as a body or entity upon a motion, proposal, resolution, order, or
similar action.”

Effective January 1, 2015, Government Code section 11123 was amended, by the
passage of Assembly Bill 2720 (Attachment 1), to require that all state bodies publicly
report any action taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each member
present for the action. Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 5017.1
(Attachment 2), the California Board of Accountancy (CBA) keeps minutes which are
publicly posted on the CBA website.

Comments

To ensure the CBA is in compliance with the new provisions that took effect

January 1, 2015, the following procedures will be followed after each action at the CBA
and committee meetings, including the Committee on Professional Conduct,
Enforcement Program Oversight Committee, Legislative Committee, Strategic Planning
Committee, EAC, Peer Review Oversight Committee, Mobility Stakeholder Group, and
Qualifications Committee:



Presentation and Discussion Regarding Requirements for Reporting Actions
Taken at Board Meetings in Accordance With California Government Code
Section 11123

Page 2 of 2

e After a motion and a second have been put forth for a vote, a roll call vote will be
taken, in alphabetical order, by the Board Relations Analyst or the committee’s
staff liaison.

¢ Members will state their vote as yes, no, or abstain, which will be recorded by the
Board Relations Analyst or committee’s staff liaison.

e When the role call vote is complete, the CBA President or committee Chair will
state if the motion passed or failed.

Additionally, the meeting minutes will document each members vote as “Yes,” “No,” or
“‘Abstain.” If a member is temporarily absent, it will be noted on the minutes.

Fiscal/Economic Impact
None.

Recommendation
None.

Attachments
1. Assembly Bill 2720
2. Business and Professions Code section 5017.1




DRAFT

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY (CBA)
ENFORCEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE (EAC)

MINUTES OF THE
DECEMBER 11, 2014
EAC MEETING

Hilton San Diego Airport/Harbor Island
1960 Harbor Island Drive
San Diego, CA 92101
Telephone: (619) 291- 6700

Roll Call and Call to Order.

EAC Item II.C.
January 29, 2015

The regularly scheduled meeting of the EAC was called to order at 9:03 a.m. on

December 11, 2014 by EAC Chair, Jeffrey De Lyser.

Members

Jeffrey De Lyser, Chair Present
Joseph Rosenbaum, Vice-Chair Present
Joseph Buniva Present
Gary Caine Present
Nancy Corrigan Present
Mary Rose Caras Present
William Donnelly Present
Robert A. Lee Present
Mervyn McCulloch Present
Katherine Allanson Present
Seid Sadat Present
Michael Schwarz Present
Dale Best Present

CBA Member Liaison
Herschel Elkins

CBA Staff and Legal Counsel

Patti Bowers, Executive Officer

Rafael Ixta, Chief, Enforcement Division
Paul Fisher, Supervising Investigative CPA
Vincent Johnston, Enforcement Manager
David Jones, Investigative CPA

Marla Weitzman, Investigative CPA




Dorothy Osgood, Acting Supervising Investigative CPA

Kay Lewis, Investigative CPA

Tina MacGregor, Investigative CPA

Erica Lee, Enforcement Analyst

Chandalou Gonzales, Enforcement Analyst

Allison Nightingale, Enforcement Technician

Carl Sonne, Deputy Attorney General (DAG), Department of Justice

Review Enforcement Files on Individual Licensees.

The EAC adjourned into closed session under the provisions of Government Code
section 11126(c)(2) and Business and Professions Code (BPC) section 5020. EAC
members convened into closed session at 9:04 a.m. and reconvened into open
session at 10:40 a.m.

Report of the Committee Chair (Jeffrey De Lyser).
A. Appointment(s)/Reappointment(s) to the EAC.

Mr. De Lyser reported that he was appointed Chair, Joseph Rosenbaum was
appointed Vice-Chair, Nancy Corrigan was re-appointed, and Katherine Allanson
was appointed to the EAC.

B. Approval of the October 23, 2014 EAC Meeting Minutes.

It was moved by Mr. Lee, seconded by Mr. Sadat, and unanimously carried to
approve the minutes of the October 23, 2014 EAC meeting.

The minutes for this meeting will be submitted to the CBA members for review and
adoption at the March 2015 CBA meeting.

Report of the CBA Liaison (Herschel Elkins).
A. Report of the November 20-21, 2014 CBA and Committee Meetings.

Mr. Elkins reported that at the November CBA meeting, the CBA elected
Jose Campos, CPA as President, Katrina Salazar, CPA as Vice-President, and
Alicia Berhow as Secretary-Treasurer to the CBA.

Mr. Elkins also reported that the Peer Review Report, which is due to the
Legislature on January 1, 2015, was approved.

Mr. Elkins reported on fee levels and their impact on the Accountancy Fund
Reserve. The CBA approved a fee increase, which will eliminate the current
negative cash flow, bringing revenues and expenditures into alignment, and
maintain a six month Accountancy Fund reserve. Mr. Elkins also reported that
proposed regulations to implement the fee increase will be presented to the CBA in
March 2015.



V.

VL.

VII.

VIIIL.

Mr. Elkins reported that the CBA approved proposed legislative language and
directed staff to pursue legislation, which would provide the CBA and Administrative
Law Judges the statutory authority to impose permanent practice restrictions as
part of a final disciplinary order. Mr. Elkins also reported that the CBA directed staff
to pursue legislation to clarify restoration requirements for a retired status license.

Report of the Enforcement Chief (Rafael Ixta).
A. Enforcement Activity Report.

Mr. Ixta provided an overview of the report. Mr. Ixta reported that the number of
complaints received had doubled from 463 to 945 complaints since the previous
reporting period. Mr. Ixta also reported that the majority of the complaints received
were from internal units within the CBA such as convictions, peer review, and
continuing education deficiencies. Mr. Ixta also reported that the total number of
investigations closed had nearly doubled from 307 to 597 and the average days to
close investigations had decreased from 162 to 150 since the last report.

Mr. Ixta reported that there are currently 41 Attorney General (AG) referrals for
Fiscal Year 2014/15 with 17 referred since the previous report. He also reported
that with the recent increase in staffing and change to the peer review and
retroactive fingerprinting requirements, the volume of the AG referrals has
increased.

B. Discussion Regarding the Survey of EAC Members Conducted in November 2014.

Mr. Ixta reported that the six-question survey was e-mailed to the EAC Members
after the October 23, 2014 EAC Meeting. Feedback was 100 percent satisfaction
from all EAC Members. However, in response to question six regarding any other
feedback, one of the EAC members reported difficulty with travel from the Burbank
Airport to the October 23, 2014 EAC meeting location.

Public Comments for Items Not on the Agenda.

Ms. Bowers stated that Rafael Ixta is retiring, and she selected Dominic Franzella as
the new Chief of Enforcement. Ms. Bowers also reported there will be internal
transitioning of staff presently assigned to assist the EAC.

Conduct Closed Hearings.

[The Committee will meet in closed session as authorized by Government Code
sections 11126(c)(2) and (f)(3) and Business and Professions Code section 5020 to
conduct closed sessions to interview and consider possible disciplinary action against
an individual licensee or applicant prior to the filing of an accusation.]

Adjournment.

The next EAC meeting is scheduled for January 29, 2015 at the Doubletree By Hilton
Berkeley Marina.



Having no further business to conduct, the EAC general meeting adjourned at
approximately 11:22 a.m. to reconvene in closed session at 1:00 p.m. Closed session
adjourned at approximately 3:00 p.m.

Jeffrey De Lyser, CPA, Chair
Enforcement Advisory Committee

Prepared by: Allison Nightingale, Enforcement Technician



California Board of Accountancy

Enforcement Activity Report

Report as of November 30, 2014

EAC Item IV.A.
January 29, 2015

Complaints

Complaints/Records of Convictions FY 2012/13 | FY 2013/14 | FY 2014/15

Received 3,271 3,255 1,144
Internal — Peer Review (Failure to Respond) 1,800 1,481 0
Internal — Peer Review (Other)* 508 411 214
Internal — All Other 510 969 731
External 453 394 199

Assigned for Investigation 2,951 2,969 804

Closed — No Action 329 289 341

Average Days from Intake to Closure or 3 4 3

Assignment for Investigation

Pending 3 0 0

Average Age of Pending Complaints (days) 3 0 0

* Peer Review (Other) internal complaints typically include investigation of failed peer review reports, failure to comply
with peer review citations, filing an incorrect Peer Review Reporting Form, or renewing a license without undergoing

a peer review when a peer review is required.

Comments

o The California Board of Accountancy (CBA) received nearly 200 additional
complaints since the last reporting period.

« The majority of the complaints received are from internal units within the CBA. The
top three reasons that comprise the internal complaints continue to be conviction of
a crime, peer review (failing to submit the Peer Review Reporting (PR-1) form and/or
discrepancies between the licensees’ responses on the PR-1 form and accounting
and auditing continuing education question on the license renewal application), and

various continuing education deficiencies.

o This fiscal year, the CBA received 199 external complaints, which is comparable to
the same period last year. These complaints are received from various sources
such as the public, anonymous persons, societies/trade organizations, licensees,
and other government agencies. The top reasons that comprise external complaints

are unlicensed practice and peer review.

« The number cases closed with no action taken has risen from approximately eight
percent in the last fiscal year to 29 percent to date this fiscal year. The rise is
attributed to the high number of Criminal Offender Record Information cases
resulting from the implementation of mandatory fingerprinting that are ultimately

closed.




California Board of Accountancy

Enforcement Activity Report
Report as of November 30, 2014

Investigations

Investigations FY 2012/13 | FY 2013/14 | FY 2014/15
Assigned 2,951 2,969 804
Internal — Peer Review (Failure to Respond) 1,794 1,481 0
Internal — Peer Review (Other) 437 407 214
Internal — All Other 361 740 420
External 359 341 170
Closed 2,872 2,669 750
Average Days to Close 73 74 144
Total Investigations Pending 518 825 884
< 18 Months 500 774 806
18-24 Months 17 42 67
> 24 Months 1 9 11
Average Age of Open Cases (days) 166 202 223
Median Age of Open Cases (days) 104 153 173

Chart A pie graph on Page 9 illustrates the percentage of open cases by length of time.
Comments

o The CBA closed 153 investigations and the average days to close investigations
decreased from 150 to 144 since the previous report. The CBA is consistently
closing investigations while experiencing an increase in workload.

« The CBA presently has 11 investigations that have been pending over 24 months.
These cases are the most complex investigations requiring additional time to
resolve. The status of the investigations are as follows:

— Three investigations are on-going.

— Two investigations are pending Investigative Hearings set for January 29, 2015.

— An Investigative Hearing was conducted on December 11, 2014, and the case
will be referred to the Attorney General (AG) once the report is finalized.

— Five investigations have reports in process and will be referred to the AG.



California Board of Accountancy

Enforcement Activity Report

Report as of November 30, 2014

Discipline

Attorney General Referrals FY 2012/13 | FY 2013/14 | FY 2014/15

Referrals 62 74 44

Accusations Filed 50 34 15

Statements of Issues Filed 3 8 6

Petitions for Revocation of Probation Filed

Closed 58 31 35
Via Stipulated Settlement 39 21 31
Via Proposed Decision 5 4 0
Via Default Decision 14 4

Discipline Pending 57 95 109
< 18 Months 52 82 95
18-24 Months 2 10 9
> 24 Months 3 3 5

Chart B pie graph on Page 9 illustrates the percentage of cases pending at the AG Office by length of time.

Comments

e There are five cases pending at the AG’s Office for more than 24 months. The
current status of the cases, which includes four carried over from the last report, are

as follows:

— A writ was filed with the California Superior Court in August 2012 following
adoption of a proposed decision and denial of a Petition for Reconsideration in
July 2012. A Superior Court hearing was held in June 2013 and the Court issued
a tentative decision in September 2013; however, additional testimony was taken
on February 27, 2014 and arguments were heard on March 27, 2014. A decision
was issued on August 28, 2014 denying the writ of mandate. The stay previously
issued was dissolved and the CBA’s decision revoking the Petitioner’s license
became effective. However, the Petitioner immediately filed a Notice of Appeal
with the Appellate Court seeking a stay of the decision. A hearing regarding a
motion requesting a trial took place on December 12, 2014.

— The matter was heard by an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) and the proposed
decision was non-adopted by the CBA. This matter was deliberated at the
November 20-21, 2014 CBA meeting. The decision was signed by the CBA
Vice-President in December 2014 and will be effective January 18, 2015.




California Board of Accountancy

Enforcement Activity Report
Report as of November 30, 2014

— Two cases are scheduled for a hearing with the Office of Administrative Hearings
(OAH) on January 7, 2015 and February 26, 2015, respectively.

— An OAH hearing was held in September 2014 and the matter was held open by
the ALJ until October 2014 to allow the Respondent to submit mitigating
evidence. The CBA is waiting for the Proposed Decision from the ALJ.



California Board of Accountancy
Enforcement Activity Report

Report as of November 30, 2014

Citations and Fines

Citations FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15
Total Citations Issued 1,883 1,522 115
Total Fines Assessed $532,400 $399,020 $37,900
Peer Review (Failure to Respond) 1,800 1,481 0
Peer Review Fines Assessed $450,000 $370,250 $0
Other Citations 83 41 115
Other Fines Assessed $82,400 $28,770 $37,900
Other Fines Average $993 $702 $330
Averagg number of days fro_m r.ecelpt of a 67 33 135
complaint to issuance of a citation
Top 3 Violations Resulting in Citation
1: Response to Response to CE Basic
" | CBA Inquiry CBA Inquiry Requirements
(Reg 52) (Reg 52) (Reg 87)
9 CE Basic CE Basic Name of Firm
" | Requirements | Requirements (BPC 5060)
(Reg 87) (Reg 87)
3 Practice Name of Firm Response to
" | Without Permit | (BPC 5060) CBA Inquiry
(BPC 5050) (Reg 52)

Comments

As noted in previous reports, the current year average for number of days to issue a
citation is higher than the two previous fiscal years due to the high volume and
efficiency with which Peer Review (Failure to Respond) citations were issued.

The Other Fines Average amount of $330 is lower than the two previous fiscal years.
The fine amount assessed varies from $100 to $5,000 and is determined on a case-
by-case basis. Factors that may increase or decrease the fine amount include
aggravating or mitigating circumstances, and length of time the violation existed.




California Board of Accountancy

Enforcement Activity Report
Report as of November 30, 2014

Probation Monitoring

Monitoring Activities

Number of Licensees on Probation as of Last Report 74
New Probationers 9
Total Number of Probationers 83

Out-of-State Probationers

Probation Orientations Held

e Upon completion of the disciplinary process, matters are referred to a CBA
Probation Monitor for tracking and compliance with the terms of probation. The last
probation meetings were held in conjunction with the Enforcement Advisory
Committee (EAC) meeting on December 10, 2014.

« Additional probation orientations are in the process of being scheduled in
conjunction with the January 29, 2015 EAC meeting.

e In 2015, staff will provide the CBA with an educational presentation on probation
monitoring activities.



California Board of Accountancy

Enforcement Activity Report
Report as of November 30, 2014

Criminal Offender Record Information (CORI)

CORI Fingerprints FY 2014/15
Notification Letters Sent 8,219
CORI Compliances Received 4,991
Non-Compliance Notifications 128
CORI Enforcement Cases FY 2014/15
Received 216
Assigned for Investigation 29
Closed — No Action 180
Non-Compliance Citation and Fines Issued 7
Comments

« Effective January 1, 2014, all licensees renewing their license in active status are
required to have fingerprints on file for the purpose of conducting a state and federal
criminal offender record information background check.



California Board of Accountancy

Enforcement Activity Report
Report as of November 30, 2014

Mobility
Enforcement Aspects of Mobility FY 2013/14 | FY 2014/15
Pre-Notification Forms Received 15 2
Cessation Event Forms Received 0 0
SEC Discipline Identified 37 12
PCAOB Discipline Identified 11 4
Out-of-State Accounting Firm Registrants That Reported 10 1
Other Discipline
Complaints Against Practice Privilege Holders 2 7

Effective July 1, 2013, the CBA implemented a no notice, no fee practice privilege model in California. This table
depicts the enforcement aspects of mobility, including the receipt and investigation of Practice Privilege Pre-
Notification Forms and Notification of Cessation Event Forms.

Comments
o Staff sent letters to all CPAs who were disciplined from either the Securities and

Exchange Commission or the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board to
inform them that they must seek CBA authorization prior to practicing in California.

Division Highlights and Future Considerations

e Six new Investigative CPAs were hired and began working in the months of
November and December 2014. It is anticipated that one additional new
Investigative CPA will be hired and begin working by December 31, 2014. All of

these are new positions created through approval from the legislature. Of the seven

new Investigative CPAs, three will be working in the Sacramento office and four will
be working in remote locations. All of the new Investigative CPAs went through a
week long training session at the CBA office.

e Dominic Franzella was named Chief of Enforcement effective December 15, 2014.

e Rafael Ixta retired from his position as Chief of Enforcement effective
December 18, 2014.



California Board of Accountancy

Enforcement Activity Report
Report as of November 30, 2014

Chart A - Open Investigations as of November 30, 2014
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Chart B — Discipline Pending at the Attorney General Office as of
November 30, 2014
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EAC Item IV.B.
January 30, 2015

Report on Accusations and Final Disciplinary Orders Since December 11, 2014

Presented by: Dominic Franzella, Enforcement Chief
Date: January 1, 2015

Purpose of the Item

The purpose of this agenda item is to provide the Enforcement Advisory Committee
(EAC) with information related to accusations filed and final disciplinary orders effective
since the December 2014 EAC meeting.

Action Needed
No specific action is required on this agenda item.

Background
At the conclusion of the October 2014 EAC meeting, members completed a survey via

SurveyMonkey providing comments and feedback on various aspects of the meeting.
Among the comments was a request for staff to bring information related to accusations
filed and final disciplinary orders effective since the prior EAC meeting. As a result, staff
have placed this topic as a standing agenda item for all future EAC meetings.

Comments

Since the December 1, 2014 EAC meeting, the CBA has filed three accusations and
eight disciplinary orders have taken effect. All matters are listed below with the
accusations and disciplinary orders provided in Attachments 1-11.

Accusations

AC-2012-52 Rabinovitz, Brian Filed December 1, 2014
AC-2014-49 Lucia, Donald Filed December 6, 2014
AC-2015-9 Casey, Diane Filed December 1, 2014
Disciplinary Orders

AC-2013-30  Republicano, Victor Stipulated Settlement
AC-2013-43  TCA Partners Stipulated Settlement
AC-2013-44  Jackson, Richard Stipulated Settlement
AC-2013-45  Tucker, Jerrel Stipulated Settlement
AC-2013-46  Sullenger, Inger Stipulated Settlement
AC-2014-11 Mitchell, Michael Stipulated Settlement

Michael S. Mitchell CPA, Inc. Stipulated Settlement



Report on Accusations and Final Disciplinary Orders Since December 11, 2014
Page 2 of 2

AC-2014-27  Duban, Dennis Stipulated Settlement
Duban Accountancy Corporation Stipulated Settlement
Duban Accountancy, LLP Stipulated Settlement

AC-2014-58  Teruel, Robbie Default Decision

Fiscal/Economic Impact
None.

Recommendation
None.

Attachments

1. AC-2012-52 Rabinovitz, Brian
2. AC-2014-49 Lucia, Donald

3. AC-2015-9 Casey, Diane

4. AC-2013-30 Republicano, Victor
5. AC-2013-43 TCA Partners

6. AC-2013-44 Jackson, Richard
7

8

9

1

. AC-2013-45 Tucker, Jerrel
. AC-2013-46 Sullenger, Inger
. AC-2014-11 Mitchell, Michael; Michael S. Mitchell CPA, Inc.
0.AC-2014-27 Duban, Dennis; Duban Accountancy Corporation; Duban
Accountancy, LLP
11.AC-2014-58 Teruel, Robbie
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KaMALA D. HARRIS @ %@\
Attorney General of California %® ®@©
ARMANDO ZAMBRANO ©(§ |
Supervising Deputy Attorney General @ ?ﬁ
MATTHEW A. KING %@) @@ , ©
Deputy Attorney General . \% @
State Bar No. 265691 (ﬁ& @ @@

300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 @\ ©@

Los Angeles, CA 90013 [%
matthew.king@doj.ca.gov
(213) 897-7446

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First Amended Accusation | Case No, AC-2012-52

Against: "OAH No. 2014010513
BRIAN RABINOVITZ . FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION
954 Blue Mountain Circle '
Westlake Village, CA 91362 : [Gov. Code, § 11503.]
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
98088 :
Respondent.
Complainant alleges:
PARTIES
1. Complainant Patti Bowers brings this First Amended Accusation solely in her official

capacity as the Executive Officer of the C.alifornia»Board of-Accountancy, Department of
Consumer Affairs.

2. Onluly 16,2007, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified Public
Accountant Certificate Number 98088 to Respondent Brian Rabinovitz. The Certified Public
Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the.charges brought
herein and will expire on November 30, 2014, unless it is renewed.

1"
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JURISDICTION
3. This First Amended Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the
following laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise

indicated.
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STATUTORY PROVISIONS

4, Section 141 states:

(a) For any licensee holding a license issued by a board under the jurisdiction
of the department, a disciplinary action taken by another state, by any agency of the
federal government, or by another country for any act substantially related to the
practice regulated by the California license, may be a ground for disciplinary action
by the respective state licensing board. A certified copy of the record of the
disciplinary action taken against the licensee by another state, an agency of the
federal government, or another country shall be conclusive evidence of the events
related therein.

(b) Nothing in this section shall preclude a board from applying a specific
statutory provision in the licensing act administered by that board that provides for -
discipline based upon a disciplinary action taken against the licensee by another
state, an agency of the federal government, or another country.

5. Section 5109 states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a license, practice
privilege, or other authority to practice public accountancy by operation of law or
by order or decision of the board or a court of law, the placement of a license on a
retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a licensee shall not deprive
the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any investigation of or action
or disciplinary proceeding against the licensee, or to render a decision suspending
or revoking the license.

6. Section 5033.1 defines “license” to include a “certificate.”

7. Section 5100 states, in pertinent part:

After notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend, or refuse to renew
any permit or certificate granted under Article 4 (commencing with Section 5070)
and Article 5 (commencing with Section 5080), or may censure the holder of that
permit or certificate for unprofessional conduct that includes, but is not limited to,
one or any combination of the following causes:

(H) Suspension or revocation of the right to practice before any governmental
body or agency. :

() The imposition of any discipline, penalty, or sanction on a registered
public accounting firm or any associated person of such firm, or both, or on any
other holder of a permit, certificate, license, or other authority to practice in this
state, by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board or the United States

2
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Securities and Exchange Commission, or their designees under the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 or other federal legislation...

FEDERAL REGULATIONS
8.  Section 201 101, subdivision (a)(3), of Title 17 of the Code of Federal Regulations

defines a “disciplinary proceeding” before the Securities and Exchange Commission to mean an
action under section 201.102, subdivision (), of the same Title.
9. Section 201.102, subdivision (), of Title 17 of the Code of Federal Regulations

states, in relevant part:

“(e) Suspension and disbarment

(3) Temporaty suspensions. An order of temporary suspension shall become effective
upon service on the respondent. No order of temporary suspension shall be entered by the
Commission pursuant to paragraph (e)(3)(i) of this section more than 90 days after the date
on which the final judgment or order entered in a judicial or administrative proceeding
described in paragraph (e)(3)(1)(A) or (e)(3)(()(B) of this section has become effective,
whether upon completion of review or appeal procedures or because further review or
appeal procedures are no longer available.

(i) The Commission, with due reg'ard to the public interest and without preliminary
hearing, may, by order, temporarily suspend from appearing or practicing before it any
attorney, accountant, engineer, or other professional or expert who has been by name:

(A) Permanently enjoined by any court of competent jurisdiction, by reason of his or
her misconduct in an action brought by the Commission, from violating or aiding and
abetting the violation of any provision of the Federal secutities laws or of the rules and
regulations thereunder; or

(B) Found by any court of competent jurisdiction in an action brought by the
Commission to which he or she is a party or found by the Commission in any administrative
proceeding to which he or she is a party to have violated (unless the violation was found not
to have been willful) or aided and abetted the violation of any provision of the Federal
securities laws or of the rules and regulations thereunder.

COST RECOVERY

10. Section 5107 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the
administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation of the
California Accountancy Act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation

and enforcement of the case.
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

11. On April 21, 2005, the SEC filed a civil fraud action against Exotics.com, Inc.
(Exotics.com), and several individuals, including Respondent, entitled Securities and Exchange
Commission v. Exotics.com, Inc., et al. (D. Nev., April 25, 2005, CV-S-05-0531-PMP-RIJ) (SEC
civil action). After five years of litigating the matter, on or about March 15, 2010, pursuant to an
Offer Settlement, a final judgment was entered against Respondent, permanently enjoining him
from future violations of Rule 2-02 .of Regﬁlation S-X (failure to function as an independent
auditor). Respondent was also ordered to pay a $30,000 civil money penalty. The underlying
circumstances of the action are as follows:

12. In2001 aﬁd 2002, while Respondent was employed by Merdinger, Fruchter, Rosen &
Corso, P.C. (MFRC) as a non-equity partner, he superviéed MFRC’s audit and other engagements
concerning Exotics.com. Exotics.com was engaged in the business of owning, operating, and
licensing adult-oriented websites. Exotics.com was a Nevada corporation with stock registered
with the SEC and traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board.

13. The SEC’s complaint in the SEC civil action alleged, among other things, that
Respondent and others participated in a manif)ulativc scheme that resulted in Exotics.com filing
materially false statements in its SEC filings. The complaint further alleged Respondent and audit
staff, under his supervision committed acts and omissions, including creating some of the
company’s books and records, that caused them to become non-independent during audits of .
Exotics.com and that Respondent approved the issuance by MFRC of audit reports which, among
other things, falsely stated that the audits had been conducted by an independent auditor and in
accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS). The complaint also alleged
that Respondent and audit staff, under his supervision engaged in a number of improper
accounting practices that caused Exotics.com’s financial statements to depart from Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). '

14, OnMarch 24, 2010, pursuant to the above-referenced Offer Settlement, in the related
administrative proceeding, entitled In the Matter of Brian K. Rabinovitz, CPA4, Administrative

Proceeding File No. 3-13832, the SEC issued an Order Instituting Administrative Proceedings
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against Respondent pursuant to Rule 102(e) of the Commission's Rules to Practice, Making
Findings, and Imposing Remedial Sanctions for being permanently enjoined by the U.S. District
Court for violating SEC Rule 2-02 of Regulation S-X, The Order suspended‘Respondent’s
privilege of appearing or practicing before the SEC as an accountant.
FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Suspension of Right to Practice Before Governmental Body or Agency)

15. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 5100, subdivision (h),
for unprofessional conduct in that on March 24, 2010, the SEC, a governmental body or agency,
suspended Respondent’s right to practice before it. Complainant realleges paragraphs 1114,

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(SEC Discipline)

16. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 5100, subdivision (1),
for unprofessional conduct in that on March 24, 2010, the SEC imposed discipline on Respondent
by suspending his right to appear or practice before it. (SEC Administrative Proceeding File No.
3-13832.) A suspension before the SEC is considered disciplinary action under the SEC’s own
rules. (Commodities and Securities Exchanges, 17 C.F.R. §§ 200.101(a)(3), 102(e) (2006).)
Complainant realleges paragraphs 11-14,

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Disciplinary Action by an Agency of the Federal Government)

17.  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 141 in that on March
24,2010, an agency of the federal government, to wit, the SEC, took disciplinary action against
Respondent in the form of a suspension of his right to appear ot practice before it. A suspension
before the SEC is considered disciplinary action under the SEC’s own rules. (Commodities and
Securities Exchanges, 17 C.F.R. §§ 200.101(a)(3), 102(¢) (2006).) Complainant realleges

paragraphs 11-14,

N

i
i
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PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the California Board of Accountancy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending or otherwise imposing discipline upon Certified Public
Accountant Certificate Number 98088, issued to Brian Rabinovitz;

2. Ordering Brian Rabinovitz to pay the Board the reasonable costs of the investigation
and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 5107;

3. Ordering Brian Rabinovitz to pay the Board an administrative penalty pursuant to
Business and Professions Code section 5116; and

4. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

Executive Officer

California Board of Acoountanoy
State of California

Complainant

LA2012507336
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Attachment 2

KAMALA D. HARRIS \@ \@)\©
Attorney General of California @@
GREGORY J. SALUTE @
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
M. TRAVIS PEERY
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 261887

300 So, Spring Street, Suite 1702 \

Los Angeles, CA 90013 @

Telephone: (213) 897-0962 N

Facsimile; (213) 897-2804
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
- CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. AC-2014-49
DONALD GENE LUCIA
275 N. Feguson Avenue, Unit 1
Bozeman, MT 59718 _ ACCUSATION

Certified Public Accountant License No. 36308

Respondent.
Complainant alleges:
PARTIES
1. Patti Bowers (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official

capacity as the Executive Officer of the California Board of Accountancy, Department of
Consumer Affairs,

2. Onor about December 3, 1982, the California Board of Accountancy issued
Certified Public Accountant License No. 36308 to Donald Gene Lucia (Respondent). This
License was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will
expire on September 30, 2016, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

3. This Accusation is brought before the California Board of Accountancy (CBA),'
Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section
references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.,

1
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4, Section 5109 provides that the expiration, cancellation, forfeiture or suspension
of a license shall not deprive the CBA of jurisdiction to proceed with any investigation of or
action or disciplinary action against the licensee, or to render a decision suépending or revoking a
license.

STATUTORY PROVISIONS

5. Section 3 160 states, in pertinent part:

“After notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend, or refuse to renew any
permit or certificate granted under Atticle 4 (commencing with Section 5070) and Article 5
(commencing with Section 5080), or may censure the holdelr of that permit or certificate for
unprofessional conduct that includes, but is not limited to, one or any combination of the

following causes:

(g) Willful violation of this chapter or any rﬁle or regulation promulgated by the
board under the authority granted under this chapter,”

6.  Section 5061 states, in pertinent part:

“(a) Except as expressly permitted by this section, a person engaged in the practice of
public accountancy shall not: (1) pay a fee or commission to obtain a client or (2) accept a fee or
commission for referring a client to. the products or services of a third party.

(B) A person engaged in the practice of public accountancy who is not performing any
of the services set forth in subdivision (c) and who complies with the disclosure requirements of
subdivision (d) may accept a fee or commission for providing a client with. the products or
services of a third party where the products or services of a third party are provided in
conjunction with professional services provided to the client by the person engaged in the practice
of public accountancy. Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed to permit the solicitation or

acceptance of any fee or commission solely for the referral of a client to a third party.

(d) A person engaged in the practice of public accountancy who is not prohibited

from performing services for a commission, or from receiving a commission, and who is paid or

2
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expects to be paid a commission, shall disclose that fact to any client or entity to whom the person
engaged in the practice of public accountancy recommends or refers a product or service to which
the commission relates, |

(e) The board shall adopt regulations to implement, interpret, and make specific the
provisions of this section including, but not limited to, regulations specifying the terms of any
disclosure required by subdivision (d), the manner in which the disclosure shall be made, and
other matters regarding the disclosure that the board deems appropriate. These regulations shall
require, at a minimum, that a disclosure shall comply with all of the following:'

(1) Be in writing and be clear and conspicuous,

(2) Be signed by the recipient of the product or service.

(3) State the amount of the commission or the basis on which it will be computed.

(4) Identify the source of the payment and the relationship between the source of the
payment and the person receiving the payment.

(5) Be presented to the client at dr prior to the time the recommendation of the
product or service is made, '

(f) For purposes of this section, “fee” includes, but is not lirnited-to, a comumission,
rebate, preference, discount, or other consideration, whether in the form of money or otherwise.”

7.  Section 5116 states, in pertinent part;

“(a) The board, after appropriate notice and an opportunity for hearing, may order any
licensee or applicant for licensure or examination to pay an administrative penalty as provided in
this article as part of any disciplinary proceeding or other proceeding pr_ovided for in this
chapter.”

REGULATORY PROVISION

8. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 56 states:

“(a) A licensee shall not accept any fee or commission permitted by Business and
Professions Code Section 5061 unless he or she complieé with the provisions of this section and .
Section 56.1
111
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(b) A licensee who may receive a fee or commission pursuant to Business and
Professions Code Section 5061 shall furnish to the client, at or prior to the time the
recommendation of the product or service is made, a written disclosure statement in 12 point type
or larger that contains the following information:

(1) The fact that the fee or commission is to be paid for professional services and that
a fee or commission cannot be accepted solely for the referral of the client to the products or
services of a third party.

(2) A description of the product(s) or service(s) which the licensee is recommending
to the.client, the identity of the third party that is expected to provide the product or service, the
business relationship of the licensee to the third party, a description of any fee or commission
which may be received by the licensee, including, but not limited to, any supplemental fee or
commission or other compensation allocable to the client being provided with the product or
service of the third party. Where the product(s) or service(s) cannot be specifically identified at
the time of the initial disclosure, this information shall be included in a supplemental disclosure
within 30 days of receipt of the fee or commission. |

(3) The dollar amount or value of the fee or commission payment(s) or the basis on
which the payment(s) shall be computed.

(c) The written disclosure shall be on letterhead of the licensed firm or shall be signed
by the licensee. The disclosure statement shall be signed and dated by the client and contain an
acknowledgment by the client that the client has read and undérsta,nds the information contained
in the disclosure. Supplemental disclosures as described in subsection (b)(2) of Section 56 need
not be signed by the client or by the licensee. The licensee shall retain the disclosure statements
for a period of five years and shall provide copies to the clieﬁt.”

111
111
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COST RECOVERY

9.  Section 5107, subdivision (a), states, in pertinent part:

“The executive officer of the board may request the administrative law judge, as part
of the proposed decision in a disciplinary proceeding, to direct any holder of a permit or
certificate found to have committed a violation or violations of this chapter to pay to the board all
reasonable costs of investigation and prosecution of the case, including, but not limited to,
attorneys' fees. The board shall not recover costs incurred at the administrative hearing.”

STATEMENT OF FACTS

10. In or around QOctober 2004, Resppndent referred his client, M.R., to a licensed
insurance agent for the purpose of discussing financial investments, Following an initial meeting
Respondent set up between M.R, and the insurance agent, M.R. and his wife D.R. retained the
insurance agent as their financial advisor.

11, Onor about December 17, 2004, M.R. was issued a 419 Single Employer
Welfare Benefit Plan and Trust sold to him by the insurance agent. Respondent received a
$50,677.00 commission on the sale of this policy.

12.  On or about January 4, 2006, D.R. was issued a 419 ISingle Employer Welfare
Benefit Plan and Trust sold to her by the same insurance agent. Respondent received a |
$25,320.00 commission on this policy.

13.  Respondent never provided M.R. or D.R. with a written disclosure of the
commissions he would receive from the sale of their 419 Plans.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Provide Client with Written Disclosure of Commission)
14.. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (g),
in conjunction with section 5061, subdivision (e)(1), and California Code of Regulations, title 16,
section 56, subdivision (b), in that he failed to provide his clients M.R. and D.R. with written
disclosure .of the commissions he was to receive on the sale of their 419 investment plans,
Complainant hereby incorporates paragraphs 10-13, above, as though set forth fully.
111
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PRAYER - -

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein
alleged, and that following the hearing, the California Board of Accountancy issue a decision;

1. Revoking, suspending, or otherwise imposing discipline upon Certified Public
Accounting License No. 36308, issued to Donald Gene Lucia;

2. Ordering Donald Gene Lucia to pay the California Board of Accountancy the
reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursﬁant to Business and
Professions Code section 5107;

3. Ordering Donald Gene Luc’ia to pay the California Board of Accountancy an
administrative penalty, pursuént to Business and Professions Code section 5116; and

4. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

DATED: W’/ 677107 170 \3(1% é W %M
v PATTIBOWERSVY ™ ~
Executive Officer
California Board of Accountancy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California .

Complainant

LA2014511866
51621565.docx
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Attorney General of California

JAMES M. LEDAKIS " »

KAMALAD. HARRIS ®@%@%
@

Supervising Deputy Attorney General . @

it @@\

State Bar No. 13264

AMANDA DODDS ol o
Senior Legal Analyst ’ (Y O ®
elrilgrvveefﬁ‘A'ﬁfr]%t,lsuite 1100 ﬁﬁ\ ©@® @@Q&@
San Diego, CA 9210 A

P.0. Box 85266

San Diego, CA 92186-5266

Telephone: (619) 645-2141

Facsimile: (619) 645-2061
Attorneys for Complainant

: BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. AC-2015-9
DIANE MARY CASEY ACCUS'ATION

24310 Moulton Parkway O-570
Laguna Hills, CA 92637

Certified Public Accountant Certificate . o
No. CPA 59209 S

Respondent.

Executive Officer of the California Board of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs.

Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

1. Patti Bowers (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity as the

2. Onorabout August 1, 1991, the Califqrnia Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate Number CPA 59209 to Diane Mary Casey (Respondent). The
Certified Public Accountant Certificate expired on July 1, 2013, and has not been renewed.

JURISDICTION

3. This Accusation is brought before the California Board of Accountancy (CBA),
Department of Consumer Ai':fairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section references
are to the Business and Professions Code (Code) unless otherwise indicated.

1
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4. Section 5109 of the Code states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a license, practice
privilege, ot other authority to practice public accountancy by operation of law or by
order or decision of the board or a court of law, the placement of a license on a retired
status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a licensee shall not deprive the board of
jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any investigation of or action or disciplinary
proceeding against the licensee, or to render a decision suspending or revoking the
license.

STATUTORY PROVISIONS

5. Section 5050 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that except as otherwise
provided, no person shall engage in the practice of public accountancy in this state unless the
person is the holder of a valid permit to practice public accountancy issued by the Board.

6. Section 5051 of the Code states:

Except as provided in Sections 5052 and 5053, a person shall be deemed to be
engaged in the practice of public accountancy within the meaning and intent of this
chapter if he or she does any of the following:

(a) Holds himself or herself out to the public in any manner as one skilled in the
knowledge, science, and practice of accounting, and as qualified and ready to render
professional service therein as a public accountant for compensation.

(b) Maintains an office for the transaction of business as a public accountant.

(c) Offers to prospective clients to perform for compensation, or who does perform
on behalf of clients for compensation, professional services that involve or require an
audit, examination, verification, investigation, certification, presentation, or review of
financial transactions and accounting records.

(d) Prepares or certifies for clients reports on audits or examinations of books or
records of account, balance sheets, and other financial, accounting and related schedules,
exhibits, statements, or reports that are to be used for publication, for the purpose of
obtaining credit, for filing with a court of law or with any governmental agency, or for any
other purpose.

(e) In general or as an incident to that work, renders professional services to clients
for compensation in any or all matters relating to accounting procedure and to the
recording, presentation, or certification of financial information or data.

(f) Keeps books, makes trial balances, or prepares statements, makes audits, or
prepares reports, all as a part of bookkeeping operations for clients.

(g) Prepares or signs, as the tax preparer, tax returns for clients.

(h) Prepares personal financial or investment plans or provides to clients products
or services of others in implementation of personal financial or investment plans.

(i) Provides management consulting services to clients,

Accusation
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The activities set forth in subdivisions (f) to (i), inclusive, are 'public accountancy'
only when performed by a certified public accountant or public accountant, as defined in
this chapter.

A person is not engaged in the practice of public accountancy if the only services he
or she engages in are those defined by subdivisions (f) to (i), inclusive, and he or she does
not hold himself or herself out, solicit, or advertise for clients using the certified public
accountant or public accountant designation. A person is not holding himself or herself
out, soliciting, or advertising for clients within the meaning ofthis section solely by reason
of displaying a CPA or PA certificate in his or her office or identifying himself or herself
as a CPA or PA on other than signs, advertisements, letterhead, business cards,
publications directed to clients or potential clients, or financial or tax documents of a
client.

7. Section 5060 of the Code states:

(a) No person or firm may practice public accountancy under any name which is
false or misleading. '

(b) No person or firm may practice public accountancy under any name other than
the name under which the person or firm holds a valid permit to practice issued by the
board.

(c) Notwithstanding subdivision (b), a sole proprietor may practice under a name
other than the name set forth on his or her permit to practice, provided the name is
registered by the board, is in good standing, and complies with the requirements of
subdivision (a).

8. Section 5076 of the Code! states:

(a) In order to renew its registration, a firm, as defined in Section 5035.1, shall have
a peer review report of its accounting and auditing practice accepted by a board-
recognized peer review program no less frequently than every three years.

(b) For purposes of this article, the following definitions apply:

(1) “Peer review” means a study, appraisal, or review conducted in accordance with
professional standards of the professional work of a firm, and may include an evaluation
of other factors in accordance with the requirements specified by the board in regulations,
The peer review report shall be issued by an individual who has a valid and current
license, certificate, or permit to practice public accountancy from this state or another
state and is unaffiliated with the firm being reviewed.

(2) “Accounting and auditing practice” includes any services that are performed

‘using professional standards defined by the board in regulations.

! Amended by Stats.2010, c. 415 (S.B.1491), § 4.
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9. Section 5100 states:

After notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend, or refuse to renew any
permit or certificate granted under Article 4 (commencing with Section 5070) and Article
5 (commencing with Section 5080), or may censure the holder of that permit or certificate
for unprofessional conduct that includes, but is not limited to, one or any combination of
the following causes:

(b) A violation of Section 478, 498, or 499 dealing with false statements or
omissions in the application for a license, in obtaining a certificate as a certified public
accountant, in obtaining registration under this chapter, or in obtaining a permit to
practice public accountancy under this chapter.

(g) Willful violation of this chapter or any rule or regulation promulgated by the
board under the authority granted under this chapter.

REGULATORY PROVISIONS
10. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 45 states:

(b) The operative date of existing California-licensed firms to begin reporting peer
review results shall be based on a firm’s license number according to the following
schedule: for license numbers ending with 01-33 the reporting date is no later than July 1,
2011; for license numbers ending with 34-66 the reporting date is no later than July 1,
2012; for license numbers ending with 67-00 the reporting date is no later than July 1,
2013, .

(c) A firm licensed after the operative date of this Article that performs accounting
and auditing services or a firm not previously required to undergo a peer review shall have
a peer review report accepted by a Board-recognized peer review program no later than
18-months after the completion of the services as required by Section 40. Upon the
acceptance of the peer review report, the firm shall report specific peer review
information to the Board on form PR-1 (1/10).

11. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 52(a) states:

A licensee shall respond to any inquiry by the Board or its appointed representatives
within 30 days. The response shall include meking available all files, working papers and
other documents requested.

22010 CA REG TEXT 206963 (NS)
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COSTS & PENALITES

12.  Section 5107, subdivision (a) of the Code states:

. The executive officer of the board may request the administrative law judge, as part
of the proposed decision in a disciplinary proceeding, to direct any holder of a permit or
certificate found to have committed a violation or violations of this chapter to pay to the
board all reasonable costs of investigation and prosecution ofthe case, including, but not
limited to, attorneys' fees. The board shall not recover costs incurred at the administrative
hearing, )

13. Section 5116 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may order any
licensee or applicant for licensure or examination to pay an administrative penalty as part of any
disciplinary proceeding. Administrative penalties shall be in addit}on to any other penalties or
sanctions imposed on the licensee or other person, including, but not limitéd to, license revocation,
license suspension, denial of the application for licensure, denial of the petition for reinstatement,
or denial of admission to the licensing examination. Payment of these administrative penalties may
be included as a condition of probation when probation is ordered.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

14.  On February 28, 2013, the CBA received a copy of a memo dated February 1, 2013,
from the CBA’s Peer Review Unit (PRU) to open a complaint against Respondent for possible
violation of Business and Professions Code section 5076 for renewing her license without having a
peer review. In addition to the memo, the PRU included e-mail and regular correspondence from
the California Society of Certified Public Accountants (CalCPA) and Respondent.

15. OnJune 6, 2011, Respondent sent an e-mail to the Peer Review at CalCPA requesting
a peer review by the National Peer Review Committee (NPRC).?

16. On September 7, 2011, a letter from the PRU was sent to Respondent stating that the
CBA had previously notified Respondent on July 1,2010 and April 1, 2011 that she was required
to submit her Peer Review Reporting Form (Form) to the CBA no later than July 1, 2011, The

? CalCPA administers the American Institute of CPAs (AICPA) Peer Review Program fot
enrolled firms with their main office in California, Arizona and Alaska. The AICPA administers
this program through the National Peer Review Committee (NPRC) for firms required to be
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB). A peer review is a
periodic outside review of a firm’s accounting and auditing practice aimed at helping the firm
maintain and improve the quality of its services.

Accusation
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letter instructed Respondent to provide proof thaf either she was not subject to the peer review
requirements, or that she had obtained an extension of time from the CalCPA to complete the peer
review. Respondent replied via a letter dated October 5, 2011, stating that the CBA’s letter was
delivered to the wrong address and that she had already submitted the information required for
scheduling reviews on June 6, 2011. Respondent stated she would follow-up with CBA as soon as
the review was completed.

17. On Oqtober 11, 201 1, the PRU called Respondent and told her the CBA still needed
confirmation from CalCPA of her enrollment for a peer review. Respondent .provided the CBA
with a copy of a letter from the AICPA, dated November 10, 2011, stating that Respondent’s firm
had been enrolled in a Peer Review Program and that her peer review was due on June 30, 2012.

18. OnMarch 16, 2012, the PRU sent a letter to Respondent reminding her tﬂat she was
required to report her peer review information to the CBA r;o later than July 1, 2011, and
requested information regarding Respondent’s peer review no later than March 30, 2012, No
response was received.

19 On July 9, 2012, the PRU sent a second letter to Respondent reminding her that she
was required to report her peer review information to the CBA no later than July 1, 2011, and
requested information regarding Respondent’s peer review no later than August 3, 2012, No
response was received.

20. Ina letter dated November 19, 2012, from the CalCPA Peer Review Program, the
California Peer Review Committee accepted the report on the most recent system peer review of
“Your Bookkeeper, Inc.” Respondent was directed to “Submit an audit engagement and
workpapers to the team captain for a post issuance review. The team captain will review and
éubmit a repbrt of his findings to the Peer Review Committee. This report is due to the committee
by May 31, 2013. This review will be performed at your firm's expense.” In Respondent’s
acknowledgement of the letter, which she signed on July 11, 2013,.she included a handwritten note|
stating “Due to illness I did not perform an audit engagement.”

21. OnMarch 22,2013, the CBA mailed a letter to Respondent at her address of record

via certified and regular mail, requesting an update of her peer review. On March 29, 2013 and

6
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April 9, 2013, both letters were returned by the post office marked "Return to Sender — Not
Deliverable as Addressed."

22. OnlJuly 1, 2013, Respondent’s Certified Public Accountant Certificate expired and has
not been renewed.

23. Ina letter dated May 6, 2014, from the CalCPA Peer Review Pro gram, the California
Peer Review Committee determined that Respondent’s rnosf recent peer review was complete and
the next review would be due June 30, 2015.

24. OnMay 14, 2014, the CBA called Respondent and e-mailed her information regarding
her peer review, delinquent license and practicé activities. OnMay 16, 2014, Respondent e-mailed
the CBA stating that she was working on responding to their requests for information. To date,
Respondent has not complied with CBA’s request.

25. OnJuly 18, 2014, the PRU provided information to the Investigative CPA Supervisor
regarding information from the AICPA website that Respondent failed her peer review and that
she was grossly negligent in her work. According to the System Review Report from Farber Hass
Hurleyl LLP, Certified Public Accountants, in accordance with the Standards for Performing and
Reporting on Peer Reviews, dated Ju.ne 29, 2012, Respondent's firm, “Your Bookkeeper Inc.,” in
effect for the year ending December 31, 2011, had deficiencies in the system of quality control for
the accounting and auditing practice which was not suitably designed or complied with to provide
the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and/or, reporting in conformity with the
applicable professional standards in all material respects. Respondent’s firm “Your Bookkeeper
Inc.” received a peer review rating of FAIL. In Respondent’s reply to the peer review, dated July
12, 2012, she stated “The firm has adopted a quality control document and the firm plans to
implement practice monitoring by December of 2012.”

26. Respondent's firm, “Your Bookkeeper, Inc.” has been registered as a corporation with
the California Secretary of State since June 21, 2002. Respondent maintains a website at
http://www.yourbookkeeper.conm/. The website advertises that Respondent’s firm provides
“professional accounting, tax, and financial management services including outsourced controllers

and bookkeepers, payroll processing, tax planning and compliance, and other nontraditional

7
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services.” The firm “Your Bookkeeper, Inc.” is not registered with the CBA. Respondent’s CPA
certificate expired on July 1, 2013.
FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Willful Violation of the Accountancy Act or Rule/Regulation Promulgated by the Board)
27. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section Business and Professions

Code sections 498 and 5100, subdivisions (b) and (g) in that she renewed her Certified Public
Accountant Certificate for the renewal period ending on June 30, 2011, knowing that she had not
completed the mandatory peer review due July 1, 2011, as described in paragraphs 14-26, above.

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Obtain a Peer Review)

28. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section Business and Professions
Code section 5100(g) in that Respondent failed to comply with the provisions of Business and
Professions Code section 5076 and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 45, which
required she obtain a peer review, due no later that July 1, 2011, prior to the renewal of her CPA
certificate, as described in paragraphs 14-26, above.

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Practice of Public Accounting Without a Valid CPA Certificate)

29, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section Business and Professions
Code sections 5050 and 5100(g) in that Respondent’s CPA certificate expired on July 1, 2013, yet
she currently advertises accounting services on her website, as described in paragraph 26, above.

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Unregistered Firm Name)
30. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section Business and Professions
Code sections 5060 and 5100(g) in that Respondent’s firm “Your Bookkeeper, Inc.” is not
registered with the CBA, as described in paragraph 26, above.
111
171
111
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FIFTH CAUSE FOk DISCIPLINE
(Failure to Respond to Board Inquiries)

31. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Business and Professions Code
section 5100(g) and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 52(a) in that Respondent
failed to respond to the CBA’s multiple requests for information regarding the status of her peer
review, as described in paragraphs 14-26, above,

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the California Board of Accountancy issue a decision:

1.  Revoking or suspending or otherwise imposing discipline upon' Certified Public
Accountant Certificate Number CPA 59209, issued to Diane Mary Casey;

2. Ordering Diane Mary Casey to.pay the California Board of Accountancy the
reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this'case, pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 5107; |

3. - Ordering Diane Mary Casey to pay the California Board of Accountancy an
administrative penalty pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 5116; and

4.  Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

DATED: I’L / ’ / %) | C/ .

PATT BOWERS
Executive Officer
California Board of Accountancy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complainant

SD2014707959

Accusation




BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:
VICTOR PHILIP REPUBLICANO
875-A Island Drive # 250

Alameda, CA 94502

Certified Public Accountant License No.
CPA 85813 ‘

Respondent,

Case No. AC-2013-30
OAH No, 2013071314

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the

Calilomia Board of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this

matter,

This Decision shall become effective on

-1-15

It is so ORDERED !(9\(9*’ l"-{“

e 4

Attachment 4

Ul uipnp il fIL]

FOR THF CALIFORNIA BOARD OF
ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AIFAIRS


jsheldon
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4


4

ke |

KamMaLA D, HARRIS

Attorney Cieneral of California

I'RANK H. PACOR

supervising Deputy Attorney General

JONATHAN D). COOPER

Deputy Atiormey Genetal

State Bar No, 141461
455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000
San Franciseo, CA 94102-7004
Telephone: (415) 703-1404
Facsimile: (415) 703-5480

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Malter of the Accnsation Against: Case No, AC-2013-30

VICTOR PHILIP REPUBLICANO OAH Ne, 2013071314
875-A Island Drive # 250

Alameda, CA 94502 STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND

DISCIPLINARY ORDER
Certified Publie Accountant License No. DISCIPLINARY ORDER
CRA 55813

Respondent.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:
PARTIES

1. Patti Bowers ("Complainant") is the Exceutive Officer of the California Board of
Accountancy. She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this
matter by Kamala I3, Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Jonathan D. Cooper,
Reputy Attomey CGeneral,

2, Respondent Vietor Philip Republicano ("Respondent™) is represented in this
proceeding by Arthur V., Pearson: Murphy Pearson Bradloy & Feeney; 88 Kearny Street, Suite
1000; San I'rancisco, CA 94108,

3. Onorabout May 11, 1990, the California Board of Aceountancey issued Certified
Publie Accountant License Number C'PA 53813 to Vietar Philip Republicano (Respondent), ‘I'he

1
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Certilied Public Accountant License expired on September 1, 2009, and was not renewed until
September 1, 2011, Thereafler, the license has been in full foree and effect and, as of the date of
this stipulation, will expire on August 31, 2015, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

4, Accusation No, AC-2013-30 was filed before the California Board of Accountaney
(CBA), Department of Consumer Affairs, and s ewrrently pending against Respondent. The
Accusation and all other statutorily required documents were properly served on Respondent on
April 30, 2013, Respondent timely filed his Notice of Defense contesting the Aceusation.

5. Acopy of Aceusation No, AC-2013-30 is attached as exhibit A and ingorporated
herein by reference,

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

0. Respondent has carelully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the
charges and allegations in Accusation No, AC-2013-30, Respondent has also cavefully read, fully
discussed with counsel, and understands the eflvets of this Stipwlated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order,

7. Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the right to a
hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by counsel at
his own expense; the right to confront and eross-examine the witnesses against him; the right to
presont evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoenas to compel
the attendance of witnesses and the production of doguments; the right to reconsideration and
cowrt review of an adverse decision; and all other rights aceorded by the California
Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.

8, Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and
every right set forth above,

CULPABILITY,

9. Respondent understands and agrees that the charges and allegations in the pending
Aceusation, if proven at hearing, constitute cause for imposing discipline upon his Certificd

Public Accountant Certificate,

SSTIPULATHD SETTLEMENT (AC22013-30)
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10.  For the purpose of resolving the pending Accusation without the expense and
uncertainty of further proceedings, Respondent, without admitting the allegations in the pending
Accusation, agrees that, at a bearing, Complainant could establish a factual basis for the charges
in the Accusation, and Respondent hereby gives up his right 1o contest those charges,

CONTINGENCY

11, "I'his stipulation shall be subject to approval by the California Board of Accountaney.
Respondent understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the California
Board of Accountancy may communicate directly with the CBA regarding this stipulation and
settlement, without notice to or partieipation by Respondent or his counsel, By signing the
stipulation, Respondent understands and agrees that he may not withdraw his agreement or seek
to reseind the stipulation prior to the time the CBA considers and acts upon it. 1f the CBA fails to
adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Qrder, the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order
shall be of no force or effeet, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action
between the parties, and the CBA shall not be disqualified from finther action by having
considered this matter,

12, The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile
copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order shall have the same force and effect as
the originals.

13, This Stipulated Settlement and Diseiplinary Qrder is intended by the parties to be an
inteprated writing representing the complete, [inal, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement,
[t supersedes any and all prior or contemporancous agreements, understandings, discussions,
negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order may not be altered, amended, modilied, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a
writing executed by an authorized representative of ¢ach of the parties,

L4, Inconsideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the CBA may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enfer the following

Disciplinary Order;

i
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DISCIPLINARY ORDER
IT 18 HERERY ORDERED that Certified Public Accomntant License No, CPA 55813

issued 1o Respondent Vietor Philip Republicano (Respondent) is revoked, However, the
revocation is stayed and Respondent is placed on probation for three (3) years on the foliowing
terms and conditions,

I.  Obey All Laws

Respondent shall obey all federal, California, other states' and local laws, including those
ules relating to the practice of public accountaney in California,

2. Cost Reimbursement

Respondent shall reimburse the CBA $10,000.00 for its investigation and prosecution costs,
The payment shall be made in ten quarterly payments and are due at the same time that written
quarterly reports are due,

3. Submit Written Reports

Respondent shall submit, within 10 days of completion of the quarter, wrilten reports to the
CBA on a form obtained from the CBA. The respondent shall submit, under penalty of perjury,
such other written veports, declarations, and verification of actions as are required. These
declarations shall contain statements relative to respondent's compliance with all the terms and
conditions of probation, Respondent shall immediately execute all release of information forms
as may be required by the CBA or its representatives.

4, Personal Appearances

Respondent shall, during the period of probation, appear in person at interviews/meetings as
directed by the CBA or its designated representatives, provided such notification is accomplished
in a reasonable mannet,

5. Comply With Probation

Respondent shall fully comply with the terms and eonditions of the probation imposed by
the CBA and shall cooperate fully with representatives of the California Board of Accountaney in
its monitoring and investigalion of the respondent's complianee with probation terms and

conditons,

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (AC-2013-30)




0,  Practice Investigation

Respondent shall be subject 1o, and shall permit, a practice investigation of the respondent's
professional practice, Such a practiee investigation shall be condueted by representatives of the
CBA, provided notiflcation of such review is agecomplished in a repsonable manner,

7. Comply With Citations

Respondent shall comply with all final orders resulting from cltations {ssued by the
Calilornia Board of Accountaney,

8, Tolling of Probation for Qut-of-State Residence/Practice

In the event respondent should leave California to reside or practice outside this state,
respondent must notify the CBA in writing of the dates of departure and return, Periods of non-
California residency or practice outside the state shall not apply (o reduction of the probationary
period, or of any suspension, No obligation imposed herein, ineluding requirements to file
writlen reports, reimburse the CBA costs, and make restitution to eonsumers, shall be suspended
or otherwise affected by such periods of out-of-state residency or practice except at the written
direction of the CBA,

9, Violation of Probation

If respondent violates probation in any respect, the CBA, afier giving respondent notice and
an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the disciplinary order that was
stayed, If an accusation or a petition to revoke probation is filed against respondent during
probation, the CBA shall have continuing jurisdietion until the matier is final, and the period of
probation shall be extended until the matter is {inal.

The CBA's Eixecutive Officer may issue a citation under California Code of Regulations,
Section 93, to a licensee for a violation of a term or condition contained in a decision placing that
licensee on probation,

10, Completion of Probation

Lpon successul completion of probatjon, respondent's license will be fully restored,

11, Restitution

Respondent shall make restitution to P.D. in the amount of $10,000,00, and shall provide

5
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the CBA with a written receipt from P.ID, attesting that restitution in the amount of $10,000.00
bas been paid, Respondent shall prepare and submit a repayment plan to the CBA for approval,
Restitution shall be completed six months before the termination of probation,

12, Engagement Letters

Respondent shall use engagement letters with each engagement aceepted during probation
and shall provide copies of same to the CBA or its designee upon request,

13, Ethics Continuing Edueation

Respondent shall, within 12 months of the Effective Date of this Order, complete four hours
of continuing education in course subject matler pertaining to the following: a review of
nationally recognized codes of conduet emphasizing how the cades relate to professional
responsibilitics; case-based instruction focusing on real-life situational learning; ethical dilemmas
facing the accounting profession; or business ethies, ethical sensitivity, and consumer
expectations. Courses must be o minimum of one hour as deseribed in California Code of
Regulations Section 88.2, Said courses shall be in addition to continuing education requirements
for relicensing,.

If' respondent fails (o complete said courses within the time peviod provided, respondent
shall 5o notily the CBA and shall cease practice until respondent completes said courses, has
submitted prool of same to the CBA, and has been notified by the CBA that he may resume
practice. Failure to complete the required courses shall constitule a violation of probation,

4, Regulatory Review Course

Respondent shall, within 12 months of the Bffective Date of this Order, complete a CBA-
approved course or courses on the provisions of the California Accountancy Act and the
California Board of Accountaney Regulations specific (o the practiee of public aceountaney in
Calilornia emphasizing the provisions applicable to current practice situations, The course(s) alsa
will in¢lude an overview of historic and recent disciplinary actions taken by the CBA,
highlighting the misconduct which led to licensees heing diseiplined.  The course(s) shall be a
minimum of two hours. Said courses(s) shall be in addition to continuing edueation requirements
for relicensing,

O
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1 wspondeat falls to complete sald conrse(s) within the time period provided, respondent
shall o notify the CBA and shall cense practice until respondent eompletes said sourse(s), has
submitted proof of same (o the CIRA, and has been notified by the CBA that he or she may
rosume practice, Failure to complets the required conrse(s) shall constitute a vielation of
probation,

15, Continving Edueation Conrses

Respondent shall, within 12 months of the Effective Date of this Order, complete and

provide proper dacumentatton of sixteen hours of professional education courses in the subjects

of forensle accounting and valuatlon. Said eourses(s) shall be in addition to eontinuing education
requirements for relicensing,
Iallure 10 satisfactorily complete the required eourses as scheduled shall constitute o

vielation of probation,

10, Active License Btatus

Respondent shall at all thoes maintain an active license status with the CBA, Ineluding
during any period of suspension, Uf the lieense {s expired af the time the CBA's decision becomes
effective, the Heense must be renewed within 30 days of the effective date of the decision,

ACCEPTANCE

[ have carefully read the ahove Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have flly

diseussed it with my attorney, Arthur Pearson. [ understand the stipulation and the effeet it will

have on my Certified Publie Accountant License, [ enter into this Stipulated Settlement and
Y P

Diselplinary Order voluntarily, knewingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the
Decision and Qrder of the California and .

Y.
DATED \*? /] / {1,,‘6’;(;;‘( /f f /é&;a _/c,l/{fz{f/ 2
ok f b bf T

TCTOR PRIVIP REPURTAGANG
Respondent &

i
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Thave read and fully discussed with Respondent Vietor Philip Republicano the terms and
conditions and other matters contained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order,

I approve its form and content,

DATED: 4 /17/4y C/Cer ol 4.

Arthur V, Pearson
Attorney for Respondent

ORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby tespectfully

submitted for consideration by the California Board of Accountaney,

Dated: - /. ; Respectfully submitted,
? /}, N //‘/ P , ;
KaMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
FRANK H, PACOR

Supervising Deputy Attomcy General

DG
JONATHAN D, COGPER

Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Complainant

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (AC-2013-30)




Exhibit A

Accusation No, AC-2013-30



RS CE R o

6

KAMALA D, FARRIS

Attorney General of California

ERANK H, Pacon

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

JOMATHAN D, COOPER

Deputy Altorney General

State Bar No, 141461
455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000
San Francisco, CA 941027004
Telephone: (415) 7031404
Facsimile: (415) 703-5480

Attorneys for Complainant

' BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No, AC-2013-30
YICTOR PHILIP REPUBLICANO
875-A Island Drive # 250

Alameda, CA 94502 ACCUBATION

Cortified Public Aeconntant License No.
CPA 55813

Respondent.

Complainant alloges:
PARTIES

L, Paui Bowers.(Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity as .
the Executive Officer of the California Board of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs

2. Onorabout May |1, 1990, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certitied
Public Accountant Livense Number CPA 55813 to Vietor Philip Republicano (Respondent), The
Cerlified Public Agcountant License expired on September 1, 2009, and was not renowe unil
September 1, 2011, Thorealler, the license has been in full foree and effect and will expirc on,
August 31, 2013, unless renewed,

JURISDICTION

3 'This Aceusalion js brought before the California Board of Accountaney (CBA),

—
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Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All seetion
references are fo the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated,

4, Section 5070.6 of the Code states:

Bxeept as otherwise provided in [Chapter 1, commencing with section 5000.1], an expired
permit may be venewed at any time within five yeary aller ity expiration upon the filing of an
application for renewal on ’ form prescribed by the board, payment of all accrued and unpaid
renewal fees and providing evidence satisfactory to the board of compliance as required by
Seetion 5070.5, If the permit is renewed afiier fts expiration, its holder, as a condition precedent
to renewal, shall also pay the delinquency fee preseribed by this chapter. Ronewal under this
section shall be effective on the date on which the. application is filed, on the date on which the
acorued renewal foes are pald, or on the date on which the delinguency (ee, if any, is paid,
whichever last oceurs, 1f so renewed, the permit shall continue in effect through the date

provided in Section 5070.5 that next occurs aflter the effective date of the renewal, when it shall

“expire if it is not again renewed,

5. Scetion 8109 of the Code stales:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a license, practice privilege, or
other authority to practice public accountancy by eperation of law or by order or decision of the
board or a court of law, the placement of 4 license on 4 retired status, or the voluntary surrender
of a license by a licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commenge or proceed with
any investigation of or aclion or diseiplinary procecding against the licensee, or to render a
deeision suspending or revoking the license.

0. Seetion 8116 of the Code states:

(#) The board, afier dppropriate notiee and an apportunity for heaving, may order any
licensee or applicant for licensure or examination to pay an administrative penalty as provided in
this article as part of any diseiplinary proeceding or other proceeding provided for in this chaper,

() The board may assess ndiministrative penaltios under one or more provisions of this
article. Towever, the total adiministrative penalty to be paid by the licensee shall not exceed the
amount. of the highest administrative penalty authorized by this artjele,

2
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(¢) The board shall adopt regulations to establish criteria for assessing administrative
penalties based upon factors, including, but not limited to, actual and potential consumer harm,
nature and severity of the violatlon, the role of the person in the violation, the person's abllity to
ey the administratlve penalty, and the lovel of adminlstrative penally necossary to deter future
violations ol this chapter, '

(d) Administrative penalties assessed under this article shall be in addition to any other
penalties or sanetions imposed on the licensee or other person, ineluding, but not limited to,
license revoeation, lieense suspension, denial of the application for licensure, denial of the
petition for reinstatement, or denial of admiséion to the licensing examination. Payment of these
administrative penalties may be included as ,El,:QQ.lldiﬁQl] of probation when probation is ordered.

(¢) All administrative penalties collected under this article shall be deposited in the
Accountancy Fund,

STATUTES AND REGULATIONS

7. Section 5050 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

(&) Lixeept as pravided in subdivision (b) and (¢) of this seetion, in subdivision (a) of
Section 5054, and in Section 5096,12, no person shall engage in the prastice of publie
accountaney in this state unless the person is the holder of a valid permit to practice publie

accountangy issued by the board or a holder of a practice privilege pursuant to Article 5,1

(commencing with Section §096.),

8, Bectlon 8051 of the Cade states:

Bxeept as provided in Bections 5052 and 5053, a person shall be deemed to be engaged in
the practice of publie accountancy within the meaning and intent of [Chapter 1 of Division 3
(cammencing with Seetlon 5000)] if he or she does any of the following:

() Holds himselt or hersel( out to the public in any manner as one skilled in the knowledge,
seience, and practice of aceounting, and as qualified and ready to render prafessional service
therein as 4 public accountant for compensation,

(b) Maintains an office for the transaction of business as a public accountant.

3

Aecusation




27

28

(¢) Offers to prospective olients Lo perform for compensation, or wha does perform on
behalf of clients for compensation, professional services that involve or require an audit,
examinalion, verification, inyestigation, certification, presentation, or review of financial
{ransactions and ac'counting records.

(<) Prepares or certifios for clients reports on audits or examinations of books or records of
account, balance sheets, and other financial, aceounting and related schedules, exhibits,
statements, or reports that are to be used for publication, for the purpose of obtaining eredit, for
filing with a court of law or with any governmental agency, or for any other purpose,

() In general or as an incident to that work, renders professional services to clients for
compensation in any or all matters rclhting to accounting pracedure and 1o the recording,
presentation, or eertification of tinancial information or data,

(1) Keeps books, makes trial balances, or preparos statements, malces audits, or prepares
reports, all as a part of bookkeeping operations for ¢lients,

(g) Prepares or signs, as the tax preparer, tax returns for clients,

(h) Prepares personal financial or investment plans or provides to clients products or
setvices of others in implementation of petsonal finaneial or investment plans,

(1) Provides management consulting services to clients,

The activities set forth in subdivisions (f) to (i), inclusive, are 'public accountancy' only
when performed by 4 certified public accountant or public aceountant, as defined in this chapter,

A person is not engaged in tho practice of public accountancy if'the only services he or she
engages in are those defined by subdivisions () to (i), inelusive, and he ot she does not hold
himself or hersoll out, soliclt, or advertise for elients using the eertified public accountant or
public accountant designation, A person is not halding himself or herself out, soliciting, or
advertising for ¢lients within the meaning of this section solely by reason of displaying a CPA or
PA ceriilicate i_n.h..is ar her oftice or identifying himself or herself as a CPA or PA on ather than
signs, advertisements, letterhead, business eards, publications dirceted to elients or polential
clients, or financlal or fax doenments of'a client,

i

Acgusalion




I L3 DN

9, SBection 5058 of the Code states:

No person or partnership shall assume or use the title or designation 'chartered accountant,’
‘eestified aceountant,'enrolled accountant, 'regisigred accountant’ or 'licensed accountant,’ or any
other title or desigﬁation likely to be eonfused with 'ecrtified publie accountant' or public
accountant,’ or any of the abbreviations 'C.A., LA, TR.A. or LA, or similar abbroviations
likely to be confused with 'C.P.A. or 'P.A; provided, that any person qualkified as a certified
public accountant under this chapter who also holds a comparable title granted under the laws of
another country may use sueh title In conjunction with the title of ‘certified publie aceountant or
'C.P.A and provided, that any person enrolled fo practice before the Internal Revenue Service
and recognized as an enrolled agent may use the abbreviation *ILA" w

10, Section 5100 of the Code states, in pertinent part;

Alfter notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend, or refuse to renew any pormit or
cortificate granted under Article 4 (commencing with Section 5070) and Article 5 (commencing
with Bection 5080), or may eensure the holder of that permit or certiticate for unprofessional
gonduct that includes, but is not-limited to, one or any combination of the following causes:

(¢) Dishonesty, fraud, gross negligence, or repeated negligent acts commitled in the same or
different engagements, for the same or different clients, or any combination of engagements or
elients, each resulting In a violation of applicable professional standards that indicate a lack of
compeleney in the pragtice of public aecouniancy or in the performance of the bookkeeping
operations deseribed in Section 5052,

(g)‘ Willful violation of this ehapter or any rule or regulation proniu.lgatccl by the board

under the guthority granted under this ehapter,

11, Section 5121 of the Code stales;
The display or uttering by & person of a card, sign, advertisement or other printed, engraved
ar writlen instrument or device, bearing a person's name in conjunetion wilh the words 'oertified

§
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public accountant’ or any abbreviation thereof or the words public accountant’ or any
abbreviation thereof shall be prima facie cyidcmec in any prosecution, proceeding or hearing
brought under this article that the person whose name is so displayed caused or procured the
display or uttering of such card, sign, adverlisement or other printed, engraved ov written
ingtrument or device. Any sueh display ot witering shall be prima (acie evidonco that the person
whose name is o displayed holds himself or herse!f out as a certified pyblic accountant, or a
public aceountant holding a permit to practice publie accountaney in this State under the
pravisions of this chapter, In any prosecution or hearing under this chaptor, evidence of the
commission of a single aet prohibited by this ¢hapter shall be sufficient to justify a convietion
without evidence of a general course of conduct.

12, California Code of Regulations, Title 16, section 63, states:

A licensee shall not advertise or use other forms of solicitation in any manner which is
false, fraudulent, misleading, or in violation of Section 17500 of the Business and Professions

Cade,

13, Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent patt, that the Board may request the
administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to bave eommitted a vielation or violations of
the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of the case, with fullure of the licentinte to comply subjeeting the livense to not being
renewed or reinstated. 1fa case seltles, recovery of investigation and enforeement costs may be
ineluded In & stipulated settloment,

14, Section 8107(a) of the Code states:

The executive officer of the board may requoest the Z'administrative law judge, as part of the
proposed deeision in a diseiplinary proceeding, to direct any holder of a permit or certificate
found (o have sommitied a viotation or violations of this chapter to pay to the board all reasanable
costs ol investigation and proseeution of the ¢ase, including, bul not limited to, atlorneys' fees,
The board shall not recover costs incurred at the administrative hearing,

i
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FACTUAL SUMMARY

13, Respondent’s Certified Public Accountant license expived on September 1, 2009, due
to Respondent’s failure to submit required documents, |

16, On or about Qctober 22, 2010, Respondent entered into a contract to perform services
for L1 and thereafler performed accounting services for LuL. The contract stated prominently
that Respondent was a certified public accountant, and specified that Respondent was 1o be
retained Lo’ provide aceounting services. The contract stated, untruthfully, that Respondent
employed staff, senior assoeiates, managers, principals and diveetors, who worked at various
rates, In actuality, Respondent employed no sueh porsons, Pursuant to the contract, Respondent
demanded and recelved a retainer of $10,000.00, |

17, Onor about December 17, 2010, after the Board received a complaint regarding
Respondent’s unlicensed practice, the Board sent Respondent a letier demanding that Respondent
ceage and desist from practicing as a certified publie accountant, On or about January 20, 2011,
the Board re-sent the letter to Respondent, and Respondent acknowledged recelpt thereof,

18 Onorabout April [, 2011, Respondent entered into a contract to perform services for
P.D., and thereafter performed accounting services for her, The contract stated prominently that
Respondent was a certified public accountant, and specified that Respondent was to be retained to
provide accounting services, 'The contract stated, untruthfully, that Respondent emplayed staf,
senjor associatos, managers, principals and directors, who worked at various rates, In actuality,
Respondent employed no such persons, Pursuant to the contract, Respondent demanded and
received o retainer of $10,000.00. During the course of Respondent’s contraet with P.D.,
R.éapanclunt demanded and received a total of $20,000.00 in fees from .12, for accounting
services as of May 20, 2011,

19. | On ar shout June 22, 2011, the Board again sent Respondent a letter orderinghini to

cease and desist from holding himself out to be a licensed certified publie accountant,

' Al non-parties are identilied by lotters in arder to preserve privasy, The names of the
non-parties will be disclosed in response to a request for discovery,

7
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20.  Notwithstanding that Respondent’s license had expired, and notwithstanding
Respondent’s receipt of the Board’s prior cease-and-desist letters, Respondent continued to
advertise-and hold himself out to the public as a Certitied Publie Accountant, Respondent
engaged in advertising including, but not Jimited to, as follows:

a  Onorabout May 19, 2011, I{Qs[;on‘xclﬁx'xt’s website stated that Respondent is a “CPA?
and that Respondent is a practitioner of aceounting.

b, Onorabout August 18, 2011, Respendent’s website stated that Respondent s a
“CPA” and that Responcent is a practitioner of aceounting.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Unligensed Practice)

2], Respondent is subject to diseiplinary action under sections 5050(a) and 5100(g) of the
Code in that he engaged in the practice of publie accountancy while he was not the holder of a
valid permit to practice public accountancy issued by the Board, in willful vielation of the law, s
set forth above in paragraphs 15-20,

SECOND CAUSKE FOR DISCIPLINE

_ (Acts of Dishonesty/False Advertising)

22, Respondent is subject to diseiplinary action under seetion 5100, subscetions(c) and
(8), of the Code and under California Code of Regulations, Title 16, section 63, in that he
committed dishonest and/or fraudulent acts, and advertised and/or solicited in o manner which
was false, fraudulent or misleading, as set forth above in paragraphs 15-20,

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters hovein ‘alleg@’d,
and that following the hearing, the California Board of Aceountancy issuc a deglsion:

I, Revaking or suspending or otherwise imposing diseipline upon Certified Public
Accountant License Number CPA 55813, issued to ‘\/,‘l(}t()lf Philip Republicano;

2. Ordering Victor Philip Republicano to pay the California Boar;i of Accountaney the
reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant Lo Business and

Professions Code seclion 5107;

‘ Aceusalion
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3. Ordering Vietor Philip Republicano to an administrative penalty, pursuant to
Business and Professions Code section 5116;

4, Taking such other and further actio ™ deemed necegsary and proper.
Wy Lt
PATTIB IRS
Exeeutlve Offleer
California Board of Accountaney
Department of Consuymer Affalrs
State of California
Camplainant

oy

DATED: QL 1
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Attachment 5

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Againsty - Case No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-~
2013-45, AC-2013-46
TCA PARTNERS LLP
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211 . OAH No. 2014010481

Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Acwuntancy Partnership
Certificate No, PAR 6980

And
RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
36244

And
JERREL LEE TUCKER, Pariner
9074 N. Sierra Vista
Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
72045

. And

INGER ALICE SULLENGER, Partner
3046 Whispering Meadow Ln,

Plain City, UT 84404
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,
88971
Respondents,
DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the
California Board of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this

matter,

This Decision shall become effective on / - / ~ / §

1t is so ORDERED /.Q' Qf" /L'/

4

LLL g pdttnd AP,
FOR THE CALIFORNIA BOARD OF /
ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
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KAMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
KENT D, HARRIS
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
PHILLIP L. ARTHUR
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 238339
1300 I Street, Suite 125 -
P.O. Box 944255
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
Telephone; (916) 322-0032
Facsimile; (916)327-8643
E-mail: Phillip, Arthur@doj.ca.gov
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

TCA PARTNERS, LLP

1111 Herndon Avenue, #211

Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountancy Partnership
Certificate No. PAR 6980

And

RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211

Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,
36244 ,

And

JERREL LEE TUCKER, Partner

9074 N, Sierra Vista

Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.

[ 72045

And

INGER ALICE SULLENGER, Partner
3046 Whispering Meadow Ln.

Plain City, UT 84404

Certilfied Public Accountant Certificate No.
8897

Respondents,

1

Case Nos. AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-

2013-45, AC-2013-46
OAH No. 2014010481

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND

DISCIPLINARY ORDER -
(TCA PARTNERS, LLP ONLY)

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (TCA PARTNERS, LLP QNLY) (AC-2013-43, AC2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC~

2013-46)
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IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters are trye;
PARTIES

1. Patti Bowers ("Complainant") is the Executive Officer of the California Board of
Accountancy, She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this
matter by Kamala D, Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Phillip L, Arthur,
Deputy Attorney General,

2. Respondents TCA Partners LLP ("Respondent TCA"), Richard Edson Jackson
(“Respondent Jackson”), Jerrel Lee Tucker (“Respondent Tucker™), and Inger Alice Sullenger
(*Respondent Sullenger”) are represented in this proceeding by attorney Joshua 8. Goodman,
Esq,, whose address is: 417 Montgomery St., 10th F1., San Francisco, CA 94104, Respondent
TCA is proceeding through Respondents Jackson and Tucker, its authorized partners.

3. Onorabout May 12, 2005, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountaney Partnership Certificate No. 6980 to TCA Partners LLP (Respondent TCA),
The Certified Public Accountancy Partnership Certificate was in full force and effect at all timcs'
relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-
2013-46 and will expire on May 31, 2015, unless renewed.

4, Onor about December 3, 1982, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate No, 36244 to Richard Edson Jackson (Respondent Jackson), The
Certified Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 and
will expire on March 31, 2016, unless renewed,

5. Onor about September 20, 1996, the California Board of Accountancy issued
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No, 72045 to Jerrel Lee Tucker (Respondent Tucker),
The Certified Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 and
will expire on November 30, 2015, unless renewed.,

111
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6. Onorabout April 21, 2004, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate No. 88971 to Inger Alice Sullenger (Respondent Sullenger), The
Certified Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 and
will expire on October 31, 2014, unless renewed.' |

JURISDICTION

7. Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 was filed
before the California Board of Accountancy (CBA), Department of Consumer Affairs, and is
currently pending against Respondents. The Accusation and all other stafutorily required
documents were properly served on Respondents on December 9, 2013, Respondents timely filed
their Notices of Defense contesting the Accusation,

8. A copy of Accusation No, AC~2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 is
attached as exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference,

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

9. Respondent TCA has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands
the charges and allegations in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-
46, Respondent TCA has lalso carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the
effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order,

10, Respondent TCA is fully aware of its legal rights in this matter, including the right to

a hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by counsel

at its own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against them; the right

to present evidence and to testify on its own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoenas to
compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to reconsideration
and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the California
Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws,

1

| ‘U‘nles‘s othe_rwiée specified, the term “Respondents™ refers to Respondents TCA,
Jackson, Tucker, and Sullenger collectively.

3
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11, Respondent TCA voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each
and every right set forth above,

CULPABILITY

12, Respondent TCA understands and agrees that if proVen at a hearing, the charges and
allegations in Ac¢cusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 constitute
cause for disciplining Respondent TCA’s Certified Public Accountancy Partnership Certificate,

13. Respondent TCA agrees thaf its Certified Public Accountancy Partnership Certificate
is subject to discipline and agfees to be bound by the CBA's probationary terms as set forth in the
Disciplinary Order below,

CONTINGENCY

14, This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the California Board of Accountancy,
Respondent TCA understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the
California Board of Accountancy may communicate directly with the CBA regarding this
stipulation and settlement, without notice to or participation by Respondent TCA or its counsel,
By signing the stipulation,‘Respondent TCA understands and agrees that it may not withdraw its
agreement or seek lto reseind the stipulation prior to the time the CBA considers and acts upon if,
If the CBA fails to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settlement and
Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible
in any legal action between the parties, and the CBA shall not be disqualified from further action
by having considered this matter,

15, The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF), electronic,
and facsimile copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order, including Portable
Document Format (PDF), electronic, and facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same fcﬁ’ce
and effect as the originals,

16, This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement,
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,

negotiations, and commitments (written or oral), This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
4
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Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a
writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties,

17.  Inconsideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the CBA may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following
Disciplinary Order;

DISCIPLINARY ORDER
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Certified Public Accountancy Partnership Certificate-No,

6980 issued to Respondent TCA Partners LIP (Respondent TCA) is revoked, However, the
revocation is stayed and Respondent TCA is placed on probation for five (5) years on the
following terms and conditions. '

1. Obey All Laws

Respondent TCA shall obey all federal, California, other states' and local laws, including
those rules relating to the practice of public accountancy in California,

2. Submit Written Reports

Respondent TCA shall submit, within 10 days of completion of the quarter, written reports
to the CBA on a form obtained from the CBA, The Respondent shall submit, under penalty of
perjury, such other written reports, declarations, and verification of actions as are required, These
declarations shall contain statements relative to Respondent's compliance with all the terms and
conditions of probation, Respondent TCA shall immediately execute all release of information
forms as may be required by the CBA or its representatives,

3. Personal Appearances

Respondent TCA shall, during the period of probation, appear in person at
interviews/meetings as directed by the CBA or its designated representatives, provided such
notification is accomplished in a timely manner,

4, Comply With Probation

Respondent TCA shall fully comply with the terms and conditions of the probation imposed
by the CBA and shall cooperate fully with representatives of the California Board of

Accountancy in its monitoring and investigation of the Respondent's compliance with probation
5
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terms and, conditions.

5. Practice Investigation

Respondent TCA shall be subject to, and shali permit, a practice investigation of the
Respondent's professional practice, Such a practice investigation shall be conducted by
representatives of the CBA, provided notification of such review is accomplished in a timely
manner,

6,  Comply With Citations

Respondent TCA shall comply with all final orders resulting from citations issued by the
California Board of Accountancy,

7. Tolling of Probation for Qut-of-State Residence/Practice

In the event Respondent TCA should leave California to reside or practice outside this state,

| Respondent TCA must notify the CBA in writing of the dates of departure and return, Periods of

non-California residency or practice outside the state shall not apply to reduction of the
probationary period, or of any suspension. No obligatioﬁ imposed herein, including requirements
to file written reports, reimburse the CBA costs, and make restitution to consumers, shall be
suspended or otherwise affected by such periods of out-of-state residency or practice except at the
written direction of the CBA,

8,  Violation of Probation

If Respondent TCA violates probation in any respect, the CBA, after giving Respondent
TCA notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the diseiplinary
order that was stayed. If an accusation or a petition to revoke probation is filed against
Respondent TCA during probation, the CBA shall have continuing jurisdiction until the matter is
final, and the period of probation shall be extended until the matter is final,

The CBA’s Executive Officer may issue a citation under California Code of Regulations,
Title 16, section 95, to a licensee for a violation of a term or condition contained in a decision
placing that licensee on probation,

9. Completion of Probation

Upon successful completion of probation, Respondent TCA's license will be fully restored,
6
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10, Review of Audit and Review Engagements

During the course of probation, Respo,ndeht TCA shall annually provide the Board with a
listing of all audit and review engagements Respondent TCA knows it will undertake in the
subsequent twelve month period, A long with the list of audit and review engagements,
Respondent TCA shall provide the Board with the date on which the final audit and review report
for each audit and review engagement is due. During each year of probation, the Board will
specify the date on which the list of audit and review engagements is due, allowing at least fifteen
(15) days for Respondent TCA to provide the list of engagements and their due dates to the
Board, '

Irom the list of audit and review engagements and their due dates specified each year by
Respondent TCA, the Board will select twenty-five percent (25%) but no more than fifteen (15)
audit and review engagements whose work papers and final reports shall be reviewed by a
qualified outside CPA approved by the Board, The Board may select all twenty-five percent
(25%) but no more than fifteen (15) audit or review engagements to be reviewed at one time, or
may select up to twenty-five percent (25%) but no more than fifteen (15) audit and review
engagements to be reviewed throughout the course of each year of probation, Respondent TCA
shall maintain all work papers and final reports for all audit and review engagements undertaken -
by Respondent TCA during the course of probation, enabling inspection by the Board or qualified
outside CPA. |

Upon completion of the review of the work papers and final reports for each selected audit
or review engagement, Respondent TCA shall submit a copy of the report with the reviewer's
conclusions and findings to the Board, Review By the qualified outside CPA shall be at
Respondent TCA's expense,

11, Peer Review

During the period of probation, all audit, review, and compilation reports and work papers
shall be subjeet to peer review by a Board-recognized peer review program provider pursuant to
California Business and Professions Code section 5076 and California Code of Regulations, Title

16, Division 1, Article 6, at Respondent TCA’s expense. The specific engagements to be
7
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reviewed shall be at the diseretion of the peer reviewer, The peer review shall be completed

within a period of time designated and specified in writing by the CBA or its designee, which

time frame shall be incorporated as a condition of this probation, The review shall evaluate

Respondent TCA and the firm’s system of quality control, including its organizational structure,
the policies and procedures established by the firm, and the firm’s compliance with its quality
control system as determined on the basis of a review of selected engagements,

Within 435 days of the peer review report being accepted by a Board-recognized peer review
program provider, Respondent TCA shall submit to the CBA a copy of the peer review report,
including any materials documenting the prescription of remedial or corrective actions imposed
by the Board-recognized peer review program provider, Respondent TCA shall also submit, if
available, any materials documenting completion of any or all of the prescribed remedial or
corrective actions,

12, Continuing Education Courses

Respondent TCA shall have all those audit staff practicing in Respondent TCA's audit
practice complete 16 hours of professional continuing education courses, The courses shall be
completed at the expense of Respondent TCA. The courses shall be completed within 120 days
of the effective date of this Order, The continuing education courses shall be in audit practice
subjects including audit tools, testing, and techniques concerning areas that are commonly
assessed to be high risk areas in current audit practice, Respendent TCA shall provide a copy of
the agenda and related materials for review by the CBA for approval within 30 days from the
effective date of this Order. Within 30 days following completion of the continuing education
courses, Respondent TCA shall provide a list of those personnel who attended and proper
documentation of course completion. For those accountants and auditors who attend, the 16
hours of training shall not be counted towards the CBA's continuing education requirements (set
forth in Business and Professions Code section 5027 and California Code of Regulations, title 16,
section 87), but otherwise may be counted towards requirements for federal or non-CBA purposes
Or programs,

L
8
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13, Cost Reimbursement

Respondent TCA agrees that the CBA's total investigation and prosecution costs in this
matter are $62,601,32 and that such costs will not be reimbursed by Respondent TCA but will be
separately reimbursed by each individual Respondent,

14, Administrative Penélty

Respondent TCA shall pay to the CBA an administrative penalty in the amount of
$125,000.00 for violation of the California Accountancy Act, The payment shall be made within
six months of the date the CBA’s decision is final,

135, Dissemination of Qrder

Within fifteen days of the effective date of the CBA’s Order, Respondent TCA shall
disseminate this Stipul.ated Settlement and Disciplinary Order to all of its professional staff
officed in California and shall confirm such dissemination in writing to the CBA.

16,  Maintain and Use Published Materials and/or Checklists Consistent with
Practice

Respondent TCA shall maintain and use published materials and/or checklists consistent
with its practice. Such materials and checklists shall be produced for on-site review by the CBA
or its designee upon reasonable notice.
111
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AGCCEPTANCE
I'have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully
digeussed it with my attorney, Joshua 8. Goodman, Bsq, 1 understand the stipulation and the
effect it will have on my Certified Public Acconntancy Partnership Certificate, [ enter into this
Stipulated Setrlement und Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree

to be bound by the Decision and Qrder of the California Boatd of Aceountancy,

fdbeard c‘S’W ,.

TCA PARTNERS LLP

By Its Authorized Represe(wévc Richard Edson
Jackson

DATED:  jof 15/

DATELD:

TCA PARTNERS LLP
By Its Authorized Representarive Jerre! Lee Tucker

'have read and fully discussed with Respondent TCA Partners LLP the terms and
conditions and other matters contained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order,
1 approve its form and content.

DATED:

“Joshua 8, Goodman, Esq,
Attoimey for Respondent TCA Partners LLP

111
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ACCEPTANCE
I have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully
diseussed it with my attorney, Joshua S, Goodman, Bsq, Iunderstand the stipulation and the
effect it will have on my Certified Public Accountancy Partnership Certificate, I enter into this
Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree

to be bound by the Decision and Order of the California Board of Accountancy,

DATED:
TCA PARTNERS LLP
By Its Authorized Representative Richard Edson
Jackson
DATED:
TCA PARTNERS LLP

By Its Authorized Representative Jerrel Lee Tucker

I have read and fully discussed with Respondent TCA, Partners LLP the terms and

- conditions and other matters contained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order,

lapprove‘ its form and content, e /<
paTED: [0~/ Y 1Y Ll S A

Joshua 8, Coodman, Bsq,
Attorney for Respondent TCA Partners LLP
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- ENDORSEMENT
The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the California Board of Accountancy,

Dated: [0 ) XY } }(/ Respectfully submitted,

KAMALA D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California
KENT D, HARRIS

Supervising Deputy Attorngy General

~F IL + ARPH
Depaity Attorney General
Attorneys for Complainant

SA2013111406
11500317 _11.dacx
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"KAMALA D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California

KBNTD, HARRIS

Supervising Deputy Attomey General

PHILLP L, ARTHUR,

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No, 238339
1300 I Street, Sulte 125
P.O, Box 944255 .-
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
Telephone: (916) 322-0032
Facsimile: (916) 327-8643
E-poail: Phillip. Arthur@doj ca.gov |

- Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE '
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

Il JERREL LEE TUCKER, Yartner

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case Nos, AC-2013-43, AC~2013~44 AC-
' 2013-45, AC-2013-46
TCA PARTNERS, LLP .
1511 Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720 ACCUSATION

Certified Public Acconntaney Partnership
Certificate No. PAR 6980 _

And
RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
36244 And
n

9074 N, Sierra Vista

Fresno, CA 93720

gerﬂied Public Accountant Ceruficate No.
20

And
INGER ALICE SULLENGER, Partnex
1111 E, Herndon Avenue, 1L ' '
Fresno, CA 93720
gemﬁed Public Accountant Certificate No,
8971

Respondents,

A1
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Coﬁplginant alleges; .
‘ PARTIES
1. Patti Bowers (Complainant) brings this Aconsation golely in her official capacity as
the Executive Officer of the California Bozlard of ‘Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs,

2, Onorabout May 12, 2005, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified

'Public'Accountancy, Partnership Certificate No, 6980 to TCA, Partners LLP (Respondent), The

Certiﬁeleublic Accountancy Partnership Certificate was in fall force and effect at all times
relevant to the chearges brought heyein and will expire on May 31, 2015, unless renewed, '

3,  On orabout December 3, 1982', the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate No, 36244 to Richard Edson Jackson (Respondent), The Certified
Public Accountant Certifioate was in full foroe and effect at all times relervant't_o the charges
brought herein and willlexpire on March 31, 2014, unless renewed,

4,  On oy about September 20, 1996, the dalifornia Board of Accountancy issued
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No, 72045 to Jerrel Leo Tucker (Respondent), The
Certified EuBlio Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought herein and will expire on November 30, 201 3; unless rene\'?ved.

5. Onorabout April 21, 2004, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate No. 88971 to Inge'r Alice Sullenger(Responﬁenﬁc). The Cex,*tiﬁed
Public Accountant Certificate was in full foroe and effect at all times rele\.rant to the charges |
Brought herein and will expire on Qotober 31, 2014, unless renswed',

_ JURISDICTION ‘

6. This Accusation s brought before the California Board of‘ Accountancy (CBA),
Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All section
references are to the Business and Professlons Code (Code) unless otherwise indicated,

11

i Unless otherwise 3pec1ﬂed the term “Respondents” refers to R.espondents TCA
7 ackson, Tucker, and Sullenger colleotwely

- - ’ ‘  Acousation
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7. Section 5100 of the Code states, In pertinent part:

"After notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend; or refise to renew any permit or

certificate granted under Article 4 (commencing with Section 5 070) and Article 5 (commencing

with Section 5080), or may censure the holder of that permit or certificate for unprofessional
conduot that includes, but is not Jimited to, one or any combination of the following causes:

i

(o) Dishonesty, fraud, gross negligence, or repeated negligent acts committed in the same

or different engagements, for the same or diffetent clients, or any combination of engagements or -

olients, each resulting in a violation of applicable professional standards that indicate a lack of

competency in the practice of public accountancy or in the performance of the bookkeeping

operations described in Section 5052,

¢

e !

(&) Violation of Section 5097,

L1

LI )

(2) Willfal violation of this chapter or dny rule or regulation promulgated by the board

'under the authority grented under this chapter. ,

~ REGULATIONS
8. California Code of Regulations, txt]e 16, section 52 (Regul ations), states:
“(a) A licensee shall respond to any Inquiry by the Board or its appointed representatives
within 30 days, The response shall include making available all flles, working papers and other

" documents requested,

“(b) A licensee shall respond o any subpoena issued by the Board or its executive officer

. or the assistant executive officer in the absenco of the executiva officer within 30 days and in

accordance with the provisions of the Accounténcy Act and other applicable laws or regulations.
*(e) A licenseo shall appear in person upon written notice or subpoena issued by the Board

or its executwq ofﬁcer or the assistant executlve ofﬁcex in thc abscnce of the executive officer,

e

Hes A e PR A e
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“d) A licensee shall provide true and acourdte information and respoﬁses fo questions,
subpoenas, interrogatories or other requests for information or documents and not take any action
to obstruct any Board inquiry, inv’estigation, hearing or proceeding, ' '

9. Section 58 of the Regulations provides that licensees engaged i the practios of
public accountahcey shall comply with all applicable professional standards, including but not
limited to generally accepted accounting principlos and generally accepted auditing standards,

10, Section 68,2 of the Regulations states that: '

“(a) To provide for the identification of audit'documcntation, audit documentation shall

include an index or guide to the audit documentation which identifies the components of the audit

documentation.
(b) In addition to the requirements of Buginess and Professions Code Section 5097(b),
audit documentation shall provide the date the docwment or warking paper was completed by the

preparer(s) and any reviewer(s), and shall include the identity of the preparer(s) and any

.
¢

reviewer(s), ) .
(6) Audit dosumeniation shall inolude both the report date and the date of issuance of the
report,” ' .

‘ . STATUTES
11, Section 5062 of the Code provides that a licensee shall issue a report which

conforms to professional standards upon completion of a compllation, review or audit of financial |

Statements,

12, Section 5097 of the Code states:

“(a) Audit documentation shall be a licensee's records of the procedures applied, the tests
performad, the ‘inff)rmation obtained, and the pertinent conclusions reached in an audit
engagement, Audit documentation shall include, but s not mited to, programs, analyses,

memoranda, letters of confirmation and representation, copies or abstracts of company

documents, and schedules or commentaries prepared or obtained by the lioensee,

erecre

relevant knowledge and experience, having no previous connection with the andit engagement, to

4 -

“(b) Audit documentation shall contain sufficient documentation to enable a reviewer with

~ Aocausation
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understand the nature, timing, extent, and results of the auditing; or other prooodureé performed,
evidenoce obtained, and cogclusions reached, and to determine the identity of the persons who
performed and reviewed the work, ’

“(¢) Failure of the audit documentation to documert the procedures applied; tests

performed, evidenoe obtained, and relevant conclusions reached in an engagement shall raise a

presumption that the procedures were not applied, tests were not performed, information was not

obtained, and relevant conclusions were not reached, This presumnption shall be a rebuttable
presumption affecting the burden of proof relative to thoge portions of the audit that arenot *
documented as required in subdivision (b), The burden may be met by a preponderance of the
“d) Andit dooumnentation shall be maintained by a lioensee for the longer of the following: i
“(1) The minimum périod of retention provided in subdivision (e):
“(2) A period sufficient to satisfy professional :standards and to comply with applicable
laws and regulations, | . | ,
“(e) Andit documentation shall be maintained fot a minifnum of seven years which shall be

extended during the pendency of any board investigation, disciplinary action, or legal action

"involving the licensee or the licensee's firm, The board may adopt regulations to establish a

different retention period for specific categories of audit documentation whete the board finds |

‘that the natuie of the documentation warrants it.

“(H Licensees shall maintain a written documentation retention and destruction policy that
shall set forth the licensee's .praotioes and procedures oorhplying with this article,

13, Section 5101 of the Code states:

"After notice and hearing the board shall revoke the registration and permit to practice of &
parimership if at any time it does not have all the qualifications preseribed by the section of this

chapter under which it qualified for registration, After notice and hearing the board may revoke,

suspend or refuse to renew the perml‘c to praotme ofa partnersmp or may censure the holder of

suoh permm for any ofthe oauses enumerated 1n Sectlon 5 100 and for the folloW1ng adchtlonal e

CAUSES;

Aceusation
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“(a) The revocation or suspension of the certificate or registration or the revocation or.
suspension of or refusal to renew the permit o practice of any partner.

(b) The cancellation, revocation or suspension of certificate or other authority to practice or
refusal to renew the certificate or other authority of the partnership of any partner thereof to
practice public accountancy in any other state.” )

14, ‘Section 5109 of the Code states;

“The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of  license, practice privilege, or
other authority to practice public accountancy by operation of law or by order or decision of the
board 61* a court of law, the placement of a license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender
of a license by a licensee shall not deprive the board ofjurisdiotion to commence or proceed with
any investigation of or action or diseiplinary proceeding against the licensee, or to render a |
decision suspending or rg:voking the license,” '

' ~ CIVIL CODE

15, California Civil Code section 1798.81.5 states, in pertinent part:

“(a) Tt is the intent 6 the Legislatu}“e to ensurg that personal information about Caliifornia '
residents s protected, To that end, the purpose of this section is to encourage businesses that own |,

or license personal information about Caltfornians to provide regsonable seourity for that

|| information. - For the purpose of this section, the phrase "owns or licenses™ is intonded t0 include,

but is not limited to, personal information that  business refains as part of the business' internal
oustomer acoount or for the purpose of using that information in transactions with the person to
whom the information relates,

" %(b) A business that owns or licenses personal information about & California resident shall
'implement and maintain reasonable security proceqlure; and practices appropriate to the nature of
the information, to prdteot the personal information from wnauthorized access, destruction, use,
modiﬁcation, or disclosure, ‘

“(o) A business that discloses personal mfoxmation about g California resident pursuant to
a contraot w1th a nonaﬁiliateé third party shall 1equ1re by contract that the third party 1mplement

and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices appropriate to the nature of the

6

Acousation




n3

O 0 ~I & i A

10
11

12

13
14
15

16

17
18

19.

20
21
2
23
24
25
26

27

28

information, to protect the personal information from unauthorized aceess, destruction, use,
modification, or disclosure,
“(d) For purposes of this section, the following terms have the following meanings;

(1) "Personal information” means an individual's first name or first initial and his or her’

|| Tast name in combination with any one or more of the following data elements, when efther the

neme ot the data elements are not eporypted or redacted:
. (A) Soclel seourity pumber, .. »
‘ COST RECOVERY

16, Section 5107(a) of the Codeistates: ‘

"The executive officer of the board may request the adminiétrativs law judge, as part of the ;
proposed decision in a disciplinary proceeding, to direct any holder of a permit or certificate |
found to have committed a w'ziolation or violatiqns of this qhaptei* 1o pay to the board all reasonable
costs of investigation and prosecution of the case, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees.

+The board shall not recover cogts incutred at the administrative hearing,"
APPLICABLE PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

17. Standards of practice pertinent to thxs Agcusation and the cngagements in issue
include, without limitation; . ,

"8 Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (*GAAS™) issued by the American Instliute
of Certified Public Accountants ("AICPA”), The ten GAAS (AU § 150) are interrelated and
disoussed In the Statements on Auditing Standards (FSAS”). Among the SAS relevant herein, in
addition to AU § 150 which sets forth GAAS; gre AU § 230 (Due Professional Care); AU §311.
(Planning and Supervision); AU § 312 (Planning the Audit); AU § 314 (Understanding the Entity
and its Environment and Assessing the Risk§ of Material Missta’_cement); AU §316 \
(Consideration of Fraudj; AU § 318 (Performing Audit Procedures in Response to Assessed
Risks and Evalvating the Audit Bvidence Obiamed), AU § 326 (Audlt Evidence); AU § 329
(Analytwal Plocedures), AU § 331 (Inventorws), AU § 339 (Audi’c Dooumentahon), AU § 35 0
(Audit Sampl ng) and AU § 5 60 (Subsequent Bvents) i 1

(]
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b,  Generally Acoepteé Government Auditing Standards (“GAGAS”) are discugsed in
the GAO’s Government Auditing Standards, 2007 Revision, as amended (“Yellow Book™)
promulgated by the U.S, Government Accountability Office. The Yellow Book incorporates the
ten GAAS, ' |

¢. Single Audits are-audits conducted under the standards set forth by the Office of
Management and Budget in OMB Circular A-133 in addition to the requirsments of the Yellow
Book. :

d.  The BEmployee Retirement Income Security Act ("‘ERISA”) of 1974 established
auditing and reporting guidelines for defined benefit and.-defined contribujdon plans with 100 or

more participants, The Auditing Standards Board issued the interpretative publication Audit and

|l Accounting Guide for Employment Benefit Plans (“Guide”) to assist management of employee

benefit plans in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with US Generally Accepted
Accounting Prineiples (“GAAP”) and to assist andifors in auditing and reporting on such financial
staternents, The interpretive gnide is non-authoritative but tho awditor should be prepared to

address how the auditor complied with the SAS provisions sddressed by the auditing guidance,

The Guide is codified by.the “AAG-EBP” number, The Relevant AAG-EBP chapters include

Chapter 5 (Planning and General Auditing Considerations); Chapter 6 (Internal Control), Chapter
7 (Anditing Tnvestments), Chapter 8 (Auditing Contributions Recetved and Related

. Contributions); Chapter 9 (Auditing Benefit Payments); Chapter 10 (Auditing Participant Data,

Participant Allqcatio}xs, and Plan Obligations), and Chapter 13 (The Auditor’s Report),
FACTUAL BACKGROUND - ,
2008 County of Modoc Aundit

18, Respondent TCA Partners, LLP (ICA) issued an auditor’s report on the financial
statements of the County of Modoc? (Modoc) for the year ending June 30, 2008, The auditor's:
report, dated April 17, 2009, stated that the audit was conducted in accordance with GAGAS,

similar to deficiencies noted on other audits, Tucker’s deficiencles are described in the North
Hawail section and Sullenger’s deficiencies in the San Disgo section,

8
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GAAS, and Circular A~133, Respondent Sullenger was the engagement partner, Respondent
Tuclcer wag the reviewing partner,

19, On October 30, 2009, the State Controller s Office (SCO) issued its quality control
review of Respondent TCA’s audit for Modoc, 8 governmental unit, The 8CO's report.diselosed
that TCA's audit was not performed in accordance with the standards and requirements set forth
in GAGAS, GAAS, and Ciroular A-133, | |

20,  The SCO specifically noted the following deficiencies; thé sudit was not properly
planned, supervised and reviewed; the auditor fail?d t0 obtain & sufficient understanding of
internal conirols, the auditor did not acourately assess andit risk; the auditor falled 1o obtain
sufficlent appropriate audit svidence; the anditor failed to exercise due professional care; and the
auditor failed to comply with standards, ‘

21.  Beocayse of the deficiencies, the SCO felt that users could not rely on the aﬁditor’s
opinions that Modoo’s finencial statements faltly presented the county’s finaneial position or that
Modoc complied with federal program requirements.

] 22.- The CBA recelved the referral from the 8CO,

23, OnNovember 11, 2009, TCA informed the Modoe County Administrative Officer
that TCA withdrew its audit report dated April 17, 2009 for the year ending June 30, 2008,

T

24,  The CBA requested and received audit documentation for Modoo from responderts
TCA and Sutlenger, . '

2010 Noith Hawali Community Hospital, Inc. Audit

25, Respondent Tucker, through Respondent TCA, Issued an auditor’s report on the
financial statements of the North Hawail Community Hospital, Ine, 401(K) Plan (North Hawali)

for the year ending December 31, 2010, The auditor’s report, dated June 29, 2011, stated that the
audit was conducted in accordance with GAAS and reforenced supplemental mformatxon ‘required
by the Department of Laber (DOL) and ERIBA, .

26 \ The CBA received a referral from the DOL Thelr quality revxcw of TCA’S 2010
audlt ofNorth Hawai1 notcd mixltzple daﬂmenoies in TCA’s performanoe oftbe audit R
111
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27. ' The DOL noted that the audit was not properly planned; the audito.r failed to obtain
sufficiont apprql'oriatc andit evidence In the areas of intemal conirols, investments, contributions,
benefit payments, participant data, administrative expenses, and subsequent events; and the audit
was not conducted in aocoréance with GAAS,

28, Because of the deficlencies, the DOL felt that the auditor’s opinion on the plan's

financial staterments was not supported by the audit procedures performed,

29, The CBA requested and received audit documentation for North Hawaii from
respondents TCA. and Tucker, . :

2011 San Diego American Indian Health Center Audit

30. Respondent Sullenger, through Responéient TCA, issued the auditor’s report under
the requirements of OMB Cireular A-133, known Ia.s a Single Audit, on the financial statements

for the San Diego American Indian Health Center'(San Diego) for the year ending Yuno 30, 2011,

Il ‘The Single Audit report, flated December 7, 2011, stated that the andit was conducted in

accordance with GAAS and GAGAS, and refersnced supplemental information required under
OMB Circular A-133, . ,
-31.  The CBA requested and reoeived audit doocumentation for San Dxego from

respondents TCA, Sullenger, and Tucker,

2012 Ridgecrest Regional Hospital Audits

32.  Respondent Jackson, through Respondent TCA, issved the auditor’s report on the
financial statements for Ridgecrest Regional Hospital (Rldgecrestj for the' fiscal year ending
January 31, 2012, The' auditor’s report was dated April 27, 2012, and stated that the audit was
conducted in accordance with GAAS, o

33, Respondent Sullenger, through Respondent TCA, issued the Single Audit report for
Ridgecrest for the fiscal year énding J an;lary 31,2012.% The Single Audit report, dafed July 17,
2012, statad that the audit was sonducted in accordance with GAAS and GAGAS, and obntained

3 Peficlencies T Sullengers work as outlined ofi THE Sar Diegs andit are §imilarts thioss™
found on the Ridgecrest Single Audit and are not additionally deseribed in the Ridgecrest section,
Only Jackson’s deficiencies are described in the Rldgecrest seotion,

10
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supplemental information required under OMB Circular A-133, Sullenger’s audit documentation
reflected her reliance on work done by Respondent Jackson during the Ridgecrest financial
staternent audit, ' ' ’

34, The CBA requested and received audlt documentation for Ridgecrest from
Respoﬁdcnts TCA, Sullenger, and Tucker,

Peer Reviews

35, " Respondent TCA received a system of quality control review (peer review) for the

year ended October 31, 2006, The qualified pser revisw report, dated May 8, 2007, included

comments that indicated that reviewsd items did not conform to the requirements of professional

" standards in all material respects, Issues noted in the letter of comments were that reference

materials were not consulted on engagémer;ts in specialized industries, including government
audits, and that firm policies did not require specific andit documentation when accepted auditing
procedures were not desmed necessary,

36, Respondent TCA received & peer roview report that reflected a rating of Pass with
Deficiency (rating nomenclature was upda’c&d in 2009) for the review year ending October 31,

2009. The peer review teport included deflciencies in the performance of an employee benefit

| plan audit which inoluded that required diselosures were omitted and certain tests specifio to

employee benefit plans were not performed or documented, Deficiencies noted in the ;
performance of an audit performed under GAGAS included that disbursement testing did not
identify programs to ‘{Vhioh they corfespondea an;i that compliance testing of controls was
insufﬁcieﬁt. _ . '

37, The CBA reviewed the three additional audits desaribed above that Were petformed
and issued by the Respondents subscciuent 10 the receipt of the 2007 qualified peer review
containing eonyments, the 2009 8CO’s notlfication of deficiencies and the 2010 Pass with
Deficiency peerreview. | |
11 '
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RESPONDENTS TCA AND TUCKER
FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE*

(Gross Negligence/Repeated Negligent Acts)

38, Respondents TCA and Tucker are subject to disciplinary action undeér section 5100,
subseation (o) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents TCA and Tucker committed gross
negligence and/or repeated negligent acts in Respondent TCA's isswance of the 2010 North
Hawali audit report and performance by Respondent Tucker of audit procedures that departed
ext'remcly from professional standards as follows: |

a. Respondent Tucker-failed 1o properly plan the audit (AU '150.02, AU 311,03, AU
311,08, AU 311,09, AU § 311,13, AU § 311,14, AU § 311,19, AU § 311,20, AU § 311.21, AU §
318,09, AU § 326,17, AU § 329,01, AU § 329,06, AU § 339,03, AU § 339,10, AU § 339.18, and
AAG-EBP 528).

I The understandinig with the client lacked required wording regarding
management’s responsibilities in ensuring compliénoe with apblicable laws and regulations,
informing the auditor abowt known or suspected fraud and did not describe any procedures
relative to the supplemental information, | ’ _

i, Respondent Tucker’s audit strategy did not describa areas of risk and did not
include the nature, timing, and extent of procedures that respended to the planned risk
assessment, | X

iii, Respondent Tucker did not apply preliminary analytical procedures,

. b, | Resi_aondent Tucker did not obtain a sufficient undetstanding of the nature of i\rorth
Hawail and its environment to assess risks, inolu,d.ing conirol tisk, Comments in the
documentation centered on management and did not consider risks or controls present in fiduciary
entities (AU § 150,02, AU § 312,11, AU § 314.26, AU § 314.40, AU § 314,54, AU § 314,55, AU
§ 314,83, AU 31641, AU § 316,83, AU § 339.03, AU § 335.10, and AAG-EBP 6.08), -
1t

4 Defioiencies noted in North Hawaii are similar to deficiencies noted in Modoc,

12
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¢, Respondent Tucker did not obtain sufficient appropriate svidential matter to suppoit

{| his opinion on the financial statements with regard to material balances presented in the financial

statements for investments and ofher assets, participant loan balanoes, and employer and
employee contributions (AU § 150,02, AU § 312,18, A[{ § 318,74, AU § 326,04, AU § 339,03,
AU § 339,10, AAG-EBF 7.65, AAG-EBP 7.66, AAG-EBP 8,06, AAG-EBP 10,05, and AAG-
EBP 10,19).

d.  Respondent Tucker failegi to perform proper cut-off procedures including, byt not
limited to, contribution amounts, the timing of 6ont;ibution deposits, and unrecorded iabilitles
(AU § 150.02, AU § 339,03, AU § 339,10, AU § 560,11, AU § 560,12, AAG-EBP 8.06, and
AAG-EBP 10,19), |

;s. ' Respondent Tucker failed to Iapply auditixig procedures to individual participant
accounts, participant Joens, and other participant data to cdmply with ERISA re‘quirem‘ents (AU §
3:;9.03, AU § 339.10, AAG-EBP 8,02, AAG-EBP 9.02,'AAG—EBP 10.02, and AAG-EBP 10,05),,

£ Respondent Tucker fafled to perform analytical review prooédures in the review stage
of the audit (AU § 329,01, AU § 339,03, and AU § 339,10),

g ReSponden‘c Tucker falled to exercise due professional care in the performance and

reporting on the North Hawall audit by disclosing approximately 1,000 participant soclal security

numbers, un-redacted, in the audit documentation provided to the CBA during its Investigation,
and by issumg a limited scope andit when he did not perform eudit procedures necessary 1o allow
him to issve a limited scope andit report (AU § 150,02, AAG-EBP 7,66, AAG-EBP 13,26, AAG-
EBP 13.27, and California Clvil Code gection 1798.81,5),

111!
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RESPONDENTS TCA AND SULLENGER.
SECOND CAUSE JOR DISCIPLINE®  °

‘ (Gross Negligence/Repeated Negligent Acts)

39, Respondents TCA and Sullenger are subject to disoiplinéry action under section 5100,
subsection (c) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents TCA and Sullenger committed gross
‘ negligenéze and/or repeateé negligent acts in Respondent TCA’s issuance of the 2011 San Diego
andit report and performance by Respondent Sullenger of audit procedures that departed
extremely from professional standards as follows:

a,  Respondent Sullenger failed to properly plan the andit (AU § 150, 02 AU § 311 03,
AU § 311 19, AU § 311,20, AU § 311,21, AU § 312,16, AU § 318,09, AU § 326.17, AU §
326.35, AU § 329.17, AU § 339, 03, AU §339.10, AU § 339,18, and AU § 350.12).

i, The Planning Memorandum stated the audit would follow Single Audit
approach requirements for Internal controls and compliance, and that festing would be done to '
meet andit objectives, Testing procedures for the Single Audit were limited to the federal
programs and were not documented as fo the effect on the audit as a whole, |
' ii.* The Audit Program reflected the general checklist of procedures to be
performed but w}vlthout objectives to describe the nature, timing, or extent of planned audit
pro'oédures‘ '

iil,  Audit Strategy Worksheets (ASW) reflected assessments related to'the financial
statement assertlons 0 plah the audit but there were no audit pr ooedure;s with obj ectives to
describe the nature, timing, or extent of planned aundit procedures,

b Respondent Sullenger’s documentation lacked evidence 1o support her understanding
of the status and effectiveness of internal controls, including those of suﬁervision, override, and
review, Sullenger’sunderstanding of risks was contradicted by information from the fraud

brainstorming session (AU § 150,02, AU § 312,11, AU § 314,26, AU § 314,40, AU § 314.34, AU

B T s L TR T L L woyesny
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7 San Diégé deficiencies are similar to deficiencies noted in Modoc,
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§314.55, AU § 314.83, AU § 316,13, AU § 31627, AU § 31641, AU § 316,42, AU § 31644,
AU §316.83, AU § 326,35, AU § 339,03, and AU § 339.10), ' '

c.  Respondent Sullenger did not obtain sufficient appropriate evi&ential matter to
support her opinion on the financial statements with regard to matérial balances presented in the
finanocial stafements, such ag accounts receivable, accounts payable, and unearned revenus (AU §
150,02, AU §312.18, AU § 316,68, AU § 318,71, AU § 318,74, AU § 326,04, AU § 326,08, AU
§329.05, AU § 339.03, AU § 339,10, and ATJ §350.26),

4 Respondent Sullenger failed to exercise due professional cars in the performance and
reporting on the San Disgo audit and by inswfficient documentation regarding the osfensibly |
corrected prior year “finding” regarding reconciliations (AU § 150.02 and Yellow Book 4.09),

. RESPONDENTS TCA AND JACKSON
THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE.
(Gross Neéligen ce[Repeated Negligent Acts)

40, Respondents TCA, and Jackson are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100,
subsection (c) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents TCA and J aokson committed gloss
negligence and/or repeated negligent acts in Respondent TCA's isswance of tha 2012 Rxdgecrest
aundit report and performance by Respondent Jackson of audit procedures 'that departed extremely
from professional standards as follows: \

a.  Respondent Jackson failed to propetly plan the audit (AU § 150,02, AU § 31 1.03, AU
§311.19, AU § 311.20, AU § 311,21, AU § 318,08, AU § 318.09, AU" § 326,17, AU § 329,17, .
AU §339.03, AU § 339,10, and AU § 339.18),

ic  The audit planning memérandum referenced that there was little segrogation of
duties and that compliance testing of controls would not be necessary, Respondent Jackson
planned to perform more substantive testing for balance sheet ttems, However, substantive
testing of Acoounts Receivable, for example, does not reflect a substantive tosting approach,

ii, The Audit Program reﬂeoted thfa gencra] oheckhst of prooedures tobe

performed but W1thout ObjeotiVGS to desoribe the nature, tlming, or extent of planned aucht

procedures,

15
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i, Audit Strategy Worksheets (ASW) did not describe the nature, timing, or extent
of planned audit procedures and did not support the low 1isk assessments.

b,  Respondent Jackson failed to obtain a sufficient understanding of the entity and its
environment to assess risks and fafled to assess the status and effectiveness of intetnal controls,’
inolﬁding those é)f supervision, override, and reviev'v. Jackson's understanding of risks was
contradicted by information in the fraud memo (AU § 150,02, AU § 312,11, AU § 314,26, AU §
314.40, AU § 314,54, AU § 314,55, AU § 314,83, AU § 316,13, AU § 316,15, AU § 316,27, AU
§ 31642, AU § 316,44, AU § 316,83, AU § 318,71, AU § 318.74, AU § 326,35, AT § 339,03,
and AU § 332,10),

c.  Respondent Jackson did not obtain sufficient appropriate evidentiary matter to
support his opinion on the financial statements with regard to material balances presented. in the
financial statements for accounts recejvable, accounts payable, and inventories (AU § 150.02, AU
§ 312,18, AU § 316,68, AU § 318.09, AU § 326.04, AU § 33101, AU § 331,09, AU § 33110,
AU §331.11, AU § 331,12, AU § 339,03, and AU § 339,10).

4. Respondent Jackson failed to exercise due professional care in the performance and
reporting on the Ridgeerest audit (AU § 150.02), "

RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
FOURTE CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE |

(Violation of Business and Professions Code section 5097)

41, Respondents TCA, Tucker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subject to disciplinéry action
under section 5100, subsection (e) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents violated section
5097 of the Code iﬁ conjunction with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 68.2 by
failing to comnply with audit documentation requirements as more particularly set forth in
paragraphs 38-40 and all of thelr subparts, |
1 |
1

[
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FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE, ‘
Report Conforming te Professional Standards)

42, Respondents TCA, Tucker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subjéot fo disciplinary actlon
under section 5062 of the Code on the grounds that Respon&ents’ audit documentation does not
support the opinions rendered in the andit reports and, therefore, the andit reports do not conform
to professional standards, as more partlcﬁlarly set forth in paragraphs 38-40 and' all of their
subparts, '

RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON

SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Compliance With Standards)

‘ 43, Rcébondcnts TCA, Tixcker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subject té disciplinary action
under California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 58 on the grounds that Respondents failed
to comply with all applicable professional standards, includin'g but not limited t0 GAGAS, GAAS
and BRISA regarding the audit documentation and performance of the audit, as more partioularly
set forth in paragraphs 38-40 and all of their subparts,

RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Willful V).O]atloll)

44, Respondents TCA, Tucker, Sullcnger, and Jackson are subJect to dlsmplinary action
under section 5100, subseotion (g) of the Code on thg grounds that Respondents wulfully violated
varjous provisions of the Business and ‘Profassions Code and California Code of Regulations, as
more particularly set forth in paragraphs 18-43 and all of their subparts, |

' PRAYER
WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,

and that following the hearing, the Cahfomia Board of Accountancy lssue-a dccxslon

27
98

1 Ayt b

L Revokmg or suspending or otherwise imposing discipline upon Certified Public |
Accountancy Partnership Certificate No, 6980, issued to TCA Partners LLP;

17
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2. Revoking or suspending or other\x;ise imposing diseipline upon Certified Public .
Acecountant Certificate No, 36244, issued to Richard Bdson Jackson;

3. Revoking or suspending or 6therwise imposing discipline upon Certified Public
Aocounte;nt Certificate No, 72048, Issned 1o Jerrel Lee Tucker; '

4. Revoking or suspending or otherwise imposing discipline upon Certified Pubhc
Accountant Certificate No, 88971, issued to Inger Alice Sullenger;

5, Ordering TCA Partners LLP, Richard Edson Jackson, Jerrel Lee Tucker, and Inger
Alice Sullenger to pay the California Board of Accountancy the reasonable costs of the
investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section
5107; and
6, Taking such other and further actio s deemed necessary and proper,

,,xa FOore—
) PA’,!’TI‘B WBRS i ‘
Bxecutive Officer

California Board of Accountancy

Depattment of Consumer Affairs

State of California

Complainant

SA2013111406/11132031.doox
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Attachment 6

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT QF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-
2013-45, AC-2013-46
TCA PARTNERS L1P
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211 OAH No. 2014010481

Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Accountancy Partnership
Certificate No, PAR 6980

And
RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720 '
‘Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,
36244

And .
JERREL LEE TUCKER, Partner
9074 N. Sierra Vista
Fresno, CA 93720 :
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,
72045

, And

INGER ALICE SULLENGER, Partner
3046 Whispering Meadow Ln,
Plain City, UT 84404
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
88971

Respondents.

DECISION AND ORDER
The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the
California Board of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this
matter, |

o
This Decision shall become effective on / - / - / 5 .

It is so ORDERED ia";" L[;/ | - _
Allin sty MOLMUM

FOR THE CALIFORNIA BOARD OF
ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
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KAMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney Gieneral of California
KENT D, HARRIS
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
PHILLIP L. ARTHUR
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No, 238339
1300 I Street, Suite 125
P.O. Box 944255
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
Telephone; (916) 322-0032
Facsimile: (916) 327-8643
E-mail: Phillip. Arthur@doj.ca.gov
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOQUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

TCA PARTNERS LLP

1111 Herndon Avenue, #211

Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountancy Partnership
Certificate No, PAR 6980

And
RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner

1111 Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.

36244
And
JERREL LEE TUCKER, Partner

9074 N, Sierra Vista
Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,

72045
And

INGER ALICE, SULLENGER, Partner
3046 Whispering Meadow L,

Plain City, UT 84404
Certified Public Acconntant Certificate No,
| 88971
Respondents,
1

Case No. AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-
2013-45, AC-2013-46

OAH No, 2014010481
STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND

DISCIPLINARY ORDER
(RICHARD EDSON JACKSON ONLY)

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (RICHARD EDSON JACKSON ONLY) (AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, |

AC-2013-46)
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IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

| entitled proceedings that the following mattors are true:

PARTIES
1, Patti Bowers ("Complainant") is the Executive Officer of the California Board of

Accountancy. She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this

| matter by Kamala D, Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Phillip L, Arthur,

Deputy Attorney General,

~ 2. Respondents TCA Partners LLP ("Respondent TCA"), Richard Edson Jackson
(“Respondent Jackson™), Jerrel Lee Tucker (“Respondent Tucker”), and Inger Alice Sullenger
(“Respondent Sullenget™) are represented in this proceeding by attorney Joshua S, Goodman,
Esq., whose address is: 417 Montgomery St., 10th Fl,, San Francisco, CA 94104,

3. Onorabout May 12, 2005, the California Board of Accountancy issved Certified
Public Accountancy Partnership Certificate No. 6980 to TCA. Partners LI.P (Respondent TCA),
The Certified Public Accountancy Partnership Certificate was in full force and effect at all times
relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-201 3-45, AC-
2013-46 and will expire on May 31, 2015, unless renewed,

4, Onorabout December 3, 1982, the California Board of Accountaﬁcy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate No, 36244 to Richard Edson Jackson (Respondent J aclcson), The
Certified Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought in Accusation No, AC—ZO] 3-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 and
will expire on March 31, 2016, unless renewed.

5. Onor about September 20, 1996, the California Board of Accountancy issued
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. 72045 to Jerrel Lee Tucker (Respondent "I‘uoker),l
The Certified Public Accountant Certificate was in full foree and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 and
will expire on November 30, 20135, unless renewed,

6. Onorabout April 21, 2004, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified

Public Accountant Certificate No, 88971 to Inger Alice Sullenger (Respondent Sullenger), The
2

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (RICHARD EDSON JACKSON ONLY) (AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, |
AC-2013-46)
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Certified Public Acoountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 and
will expire on Qctober 31, 2014, unless renewed, '
| JURISDICTION
7. Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 was filed

before the California Board of Accountancy (CBA), Department of Consumer Affairs, and is
cutrently pending against Respondents, The Accusation and all other statutorily required
documents were properly served on Respondents on December 9, 2013, Respondents timely filed
their Notices of Defense contesting the Accusation,

8, Acopy of Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 is
attached as exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference.

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

9. Respondent Jackson has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands
the charges and allegations in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-
46. Respondent Jackson has also carefully read, fully diseussed with counsel, and understands
the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order,

10, Respondent Jackson is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the right
to a hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by
counsel at his own ekpense,_; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him;
the right to present evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right o the issuance of
subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the p’roduct,ion of documents; the right to
reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other righ‘ts accorded by the
California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws,

11, Respondent Jackson voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up
each and every right set forth above, |
111

o Unless dthérwise spéoiﬁed, the term “Respondents” refers to Respondents TCA,
Jackson, Tucker, and Sullenger collectively,

3
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CULPABILITY

12, Respondent Jackson understands and agrees that if proven at a hearing, the charges
and allegations in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46
constitute cause for disciplining Respondent Jackson’s Certified Public Accountant Certificate.

13, Respondent Jackson agrees that his Certified Public Accountant Certificate is subject
to discipline and agrees to be bound by the CBA's probationary terms as set forth in the
Disciplinary Order below.

CONTINGENCY

14, This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the California Board of Accountancy,
Respondent Jackson understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the
California Board of Accountancy may communicate directly with the CBA regarding this
stipulation and settlement, without notice to or participation by Respondent Jackson or his
counsel, By signing the stipulation, Respondent Jackson understands and agrees that he may not
withdraw his agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the CBA considers and
acts upon it, If the CBA fails to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated
Settlement and Disciplinary Order shall be of no foree or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall
be inadmissible in any legal action between the parties, and the CBA shall not be disqualified
from further action by having considered this matter,

15, The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF), electronic,
and facsimile copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order, including Portable
Document Format (PDF), electronic, and facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force
and effect as the originals, | |

16,  This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement,
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,
negotiations, and commitments (written or oral), This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary -
Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a

writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties.
| 4

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (RICHARD EDSON JACKSON ONLY) (AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45,
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17, In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the CBA may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the.foll_owing
Disciplinary Qrder:

DISCIPLINARY ORDER
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. 36244 issued

to Respondent Richard Edson Jackson (Respondent Jackson) is revoked, However, the
revocation is stayed and Respondent Jackson is placed on probation for five (5) years on the
following terms and conditions,

1. Obey All Laws

Respondent Jackson shall obey all federal, California, other states' and local laws, including
those rules relating to the practice of public accountancy in California.

2. Cost Reimbursement

Respondent Jackson shall reimburse the CBA $16,200,46 for its investigation and

. prosecution costs. The payment shall be made as follows: - ten quarterly payments (due with

quarterly written reports).

3. Submit Written Reports

Respondent Jackson shall submit, within 10 days of completion of the quarter, written
reports to the CBA on a form obtained from the CBA, The Respondent shall submit, under
penalty of perjury, such other written reports, declarations, and verification of actions as are
required, These declarations shall contain statements relative to Respondent's compliance with
all the terms and conditions of probation. Respondent Jackson shall immediately execute all
release of information forms as may be required by the CBA or its representatives.

4. Personal Appearances

Respondent Jackson shall, during the period of probation, appear in person at
interviews/meectings as directed by the CBA or its designated representatives, provided such
notification is accomplished in a timely manner,
111
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5, Comply With Probation

Respondent Jackson shall fully comply with the terms and conditions of the probation
imposed by the CBA and shall cooperate fully with representatives of the California Board of
Accountaney in its monitoring and investigation of the Respondent's compliance with probation
terms and conditions,

6.  Practice Investigation

Respondent Jackson shall be subject to, and shall permit, a practice investigation of the
Respondent's professional practice. Such a practice investigation shall be conducted by
representatives of the CBA, provided notification of such review is accomplished in a timely
manner, | |

7. Comply With Citations

Respondent Jackson shall comply with all final orders resulting from oitations issued by the
California Board of Accountancy,

8. Tolling of Probation for Qut-of-State Residence/Practice

In the event Respondent Jackson should leave California to reside or practice outside this
state, Respondent Jackson must notify the CBA in writing of the dates of departure and return,
Periods of non-California residency or practice outside the state shall not apply to reduction of the
probationary period, or of any suspension. No obligation imposed herein, including requirements
to file written reports, reimburse the CBA costs, and make restitution to congumers, shall be
suspended or otherwise affected by such periods of ouf—of-state residency or practice except at the
written direction of the CBA,

9. YViolation of Probation

If Respondent Jackson violates probation in any respect, the CBA, after giving Respondent
Jackson notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the
disciplinary order that was stayed, If an accusation or a petition to revoke probation is filed
against Respondent Jackson during probation, the CBA shall have continuing jurisdietion until
the matter is final, and the period of probation shall be extended until the matter is final,

The CBA’s Executive Officer may issue a citation under California Code of Regulations,
6
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Tifcie. 16, section 935, to a licensee for a violation of a term or condition contained in a decision
placing that licensee on probation.

10, Completion of Probation

Upon successful completion of probation, Resﬁondent Jackson''s license will be fully
restored,

11, Review of Audit and Review Engagements

During the course of probation, Respondent Jackson shall annually provide the Board with
a listing of all audit and review engagements Respondent Jackson knows he will undertake in the
subsequent twelve month period. Along with the list of audit and review engagements,
Respondent Jackson shall provide the Board with the date on which the final audit and revilew
report for each audit and review engagement is due. During each year of probation, the Board
will specify the date on which the list of audit and review engagements is due, allowing at least
fifteen (15) days for Respondent Jackson to provide the list of engagements and their due dates to
the Board,

From the list of audit and review engagements and their due dates specified each year by
Respondent Jackson, the Board will select twenty-five percent (25%) but no more than fifteen
(15) audit and review engagements whose work papers and final reports shall be reviewed by a
qualified outside CPA approved by the Board, The Board may select all twenty-five p'ercent
(25%) but no more than fifteen (15) audit or review engagements to be reviewed at one time, or
may select up to twenty-five percent (25%) but no more than fifteen (15) audit and review
engagements 1o be reviewed throughout the course of each year of probation, Respondent
Jackson shall maintain all work papers and final reports for all audit and review engagements
undertaken by Respondent Jackson during the course of probation, enabling inspection by the
Board or qualified outside CPA,

Upon completion of the review of the wark papers and final reports for each selected audit

conclusions and findings to the Board, Review by the qualified outside CPA shall be at

Respondent Jackson's expense,
7

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (RICHARD EDSON JACKSON ONLY) (AC-2013-43; AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45,
AC-2013-46)




[\ ]

O

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18.

19
20
21
22
23

24

25
26

27 4

28

®w 3 A U S~ W

12,  Continuing Education Courses

Within the probationary term, Respondent Jackson shall complete and provide proper
documentation of the following courses: eight hours of an audit documentation course, twenty-
four hours of accounting and auditing training, and eight houts of audit of 401(k) Plans,

Respondent Jackson shall also complete four hours of continuing education in the course
subject matter pertaining to the following: a review of nationally recognized cades of conduct
emphasizing how the codes relate to professional responsibilities; case-based instruction focusing
on real-life situational learning; ethical dilemmas facing the accounting profession; or, business
ethics, ethical sensitivity, and consumer expectations within 120 days from the effective date of
this Order. The courses must be a minimum of one hour as described in California Code of
Regulations, title 16, section 88.2,

This shall be in addition to continuing education requirements for relicensing,

If Respondent Jackson fails to complete said courses within the time period provided,
Respondent Jackson shall so notify the CBA and shall cease practice until Respondent Jackson
completes said courses, has submitted proof of same to the CBA, and has been notified by the
CBA that he may resume practice.

Failure to satisfactorily complete the required courses as scheduled shall constitute a
violation of probation,

13.  Active License Status

Respondent Jackson shall at all times maintain an active license status with the CBA,
including during any period of suspension. If the license is expired at the time the CBA's
decision becomes effective, the license must be renewed within 30 days of the effective date of
the decision,

14, Samples - Audit, Review or Compilation

During the period of probation, if Respondent Jackson undertakes an audit, review, or

“compilation engagement, Respondent Jackson shall submit to the CBA as an attachment to the

required quarterly report a listing of the same, The CBA or its designee may select one or more

from each category and the resulting report and financial statement and all related working papers
8
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1 || must be submitted to the CBA. or its designee upon request,
5 ACCEPTANCE
3 I have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully
4 || discussed it with my attorney, Joshua 8, Goodman, Esq. | understand the stipulation and the
5 1| effect it will have on my Certified Public Accountant Certificate, | enter Into this Stipulated
6 || Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be
7 || bound by the Decision and Order of the California Board of Acgountancy,
: .
o DATED: _ polrs'fey /M&J & den row—w"’ :
- ' RICHARD EDSON JACKSON ‘
10 Respondent
77/
12 - Thave read and fully discussed with Respondent Richard Edson Jackson the terms and
13 || sonditions and othet matters contained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Diseiplinary Order,
14 || T approve its form and content,
15 | DATED:
Joshua'S, Goodman, Bsq, '
16 Attorney for Respondent Richard Edson Jackson
17 ENDORSEMENT
18 The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfuily
19 1| submitted for consideration by the California Board of Aceountancy,
20 .
21 Dated: : Respectfully submitted,
KaMaLa D. HARRIS A
22 Attorney General of California
_ KenNT D, HARRIS
23 Supervising Deputy Atiorney Genetal
24 |
25
PHILLIP L, ARTHUR
26 Deputy Attorney General
Attorngys for Complainant
7 $A2013111406
28 | 11300669 _1.doox
9 _
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must be submitted to the CBA or its designee upon request,
ACCEPTANCE
I have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully
discussed it with my attorney, Joshua 8, Goodman, Esq, Tunderstand the stipulation and the
effect it will have on my Certified Public Accountant Certificate. T enter into this Stipulated-
Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be

bound by the Decision and Order of the California Board of Accountaney,

DATED:

RICHARD EDSON JACKSON
Respondent

11
I have read and fully discussed with Respondent Richard Edson Jackson the terms and
conditions and other matters contained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order,
I approve its form and content, 4‘
DATED: [0-/% /Y /Zz /
' ! Joshua S Goodman, R
Attorney for Respondent Rmhaxd Edson Jackson

ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the California Board of Accountanoy,

D_ate.d: { 0 / 9\0 / / Y | Respectfully submitted,

KAMALA D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California
KENTD, HARRIS

Superviging Deputy Attor#¥ General

uty A:ttomey Gereral
Hitorneys for Complainant

5A2013111400
11500669_1.doex
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"KAMALAD, FIARRIS
Attorney General of California
KENTD. HARRIS
Supervising Deputy Aitomey General
PHILLIP L. ARTHUR
Deputy Attorney General
Siate Bar No, 238339
1300 I Street, Suite 125
PO, Box 944255 .-
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
. Telephone: (916) 322-0032
Facsimile: (916) 327-8643
E-mail: Phillip.Arthur@daj.ca,gov
Artorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Agalnst:

TCA PARTNERS, LLP
1113 Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Acconntancy Partnership
Certificate No, PAR 6980 .

And .
RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner
1111 Kerndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720 ‘
ngrzﬂed Public Accountant Certificate No,
3 . .

And :
JERREL LEE TUCKER, Partner
9074 N, Sierra Vista
Fresno, CA 93720 '
$°stﬂ°d Public Accountant Certificate No,
2 .

And '
INGER ALICE SULLENGER, Partner
1111 . Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720 '
ge;";iﬁed Public Accountant Certificate No,
18971 '

Respondents,

' /// . Comeen et ke s et G b re e

A1

Case Nos. AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-
2013-45, AC2013-46 =

ACCUSATION
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Co:r;plginant alleges: ‘
| PARTIES
1, Pattl Bowers (Complainant) brings this Aoousation solely in her official capacity as
the Executive Officer of the California BO?J‘CI of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs,
2, Onorabout May 12, 2005, the California Board of Accountﬁnoy tssued Certified

"Public Accountancy. Partnership Certifioate No, 6980 to TCA Partners LLP (Respondont), The

Certiﬁeleublic Accountaricy Partnership Certificate was in full force and effect at all times
relevant to the charges brought hemin and will expire on May 31, 2015, unless renewed, '

3. On or about December 3, 1982’, the California Board of Accountancy isswed Certified
Public Accountant Certificate No, 36244 to Richard Edson J ackson (Respondent), The Certified
Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevantvto the charges
brought hetein and will'e,xpire on March 31, 2014, »unless renewed,

4, On or about September 20, 1996, the California Board of Accountancy issued

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No, 72045 to Jerrel Lee Tucker (Respondent), The

Cextified E{uﬁlio Acebuntant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought heréin and will expire on November 30, 2013;_uﬁ1ess rene\;ved.

5, Onor abaut April 21, 2004, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate I\'Yo. 88971 10 Ingai Alice Sullenger'(Responc'ient). The Ca;tiﬁed
Public Accountant Certificate was in full fores and effect at all times rcle\;ant 10 the charges |
Brought herein and will expire on Qgtober 31, 2014, unless renewed’,

o JURISDICTION

6. This Accusation i browght before the California Board olf Acoountancy (CBA),
Department of Consumer Affairs, under the anthority of the following laws, All sectlon
roferences are to the Business and Professions Code (Code) unless otherwise indicated,

1

o Unless o’cherwise s aclﬁed the term “Respondents” refers to Respondents TCA,
b ackson, Tucker, and Sull enger collectwely ,

Acousation
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7, Section 5100 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

"After notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend, or refuse to renew any permit or
certificate granted upder Article 4 (commencing with Section 5070) and Article 5 (commeneing
with Section 5080), or may censure the holder of'that pexmit or certificate for unprofessional |

conduct that includes, but is not limited to, one or any combination of the following causes:

11

- "(c) Dishonesty, frand, gross nogligence, or repeated negligent acts committed in the same
or different engégéments,l for the same or different clients, or any combination of engagements or -
"olient‘s, each resulting in a violation of applicablo professional standards that indicate a lack of
competency In the practice of public accountancy or in the performance of the bookkeeping

operations described in Section 5052,

111

e !

"(8) Violation of Section 5097,

i*

(®) Willful violation of this chapter or dny rule or regulation promulgated by thc board
'under the authority granted under this chaptet, ., !
;  REGULATIONS
g, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 52 (Regulations), states:
“(a) A licensee shall respond to any inquiry i:y the foard or Its appointed representatives

within 30 days, The reSponse shall include making available all files, working papers and other

" doouments requested, _ '

“(b) A licensee shall respond t0 any subpoena issued by the Board or its executive officer

. o the assjstant sxeoutive officer in the absence of the executive officer within 30 days end in

accordance with the provisions of the Aocounténcy Act and other applicable laws or regulations.
“(c) Alicensee shall appeer In person upon written notme or subpoena issued by the Board

or its exccutive officer or the assistant exeoutive ofﬁocr in the absence of the exaoutiva officer,

nore e

i
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“(d) A licensee shall provide true and acourate information and rcspon'ses fo guestions,
subpoenas, iterrogatories or other requests for information or documents and not take any action
to obstruct any Board inquiry, invéstigation, hearing or proceeding, ' '

9, Section 58 of the Regulations provides that licensess engaged In the practice of
public accountaiicy shall comply with all applicable professional standards, including but not
limited to generally accepted acoounting principles and generally aceepted auditing standards,

10.  Section 68.2 of the Regulations states that:

.“(a) To provide for the identification of a_udit documentation, audit documentation shall
include an index or guide to the audit documentation which identifies fhe components of the audit
documentation, |

(b) In addition to the requirements of Business and Professions Code Section 5097(b),
audit documentation shall provide tbe date the dooument or working paper was completed by the
preparer(s) and any reviewe;r(s'), and shall include the tdentity of the preparer(s) and any
reviewer(s), ‘ : ' ' .

(c) Audit documentation shall include both the report date and the, date ofis isswance of the
report, .

| STATUTES
11, Section 5062 of the Code provides that a licensee shall issue a report which

conforms to professional standards upon completion of a compilation, review or audit of fineanciel |

Statements,

12, Seotion 5097 of the Code states:

“(a) Audit documentation shall be a licensee's records of the procedures applied, the tests
performsd, the ‘in,fénnation obtained, and the pertinent conclusions reached in an audit
engagement, Audit documentation shall include, but is not limlted to, programs, analyses,

memoranda, letters of confirmation and representation, coples or abstracts of company

doouments, and schedules or commentatles prepared or obtained by the Heensee,

“(b) Andit dooumentatlon shall contain sufficient documentation to enable a roviewer with

relevant knowledge and experience, having no previous conneotlon with the audit sngagemant, to

4
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understa\nd the nature, timing, extent, and results of the auditiné or other procedures performed,
evidence obtained, and conclugions reached, and to determine the identity of the persons who
performed and reviewed tﬂe work,

“(c) Failure of the audit documentation to documment the procedures applied; tests
performed, evidence obtained, and relevant conclusions reached in an engagement shall raise a
presumption that the procedures were not applied, tests were not performed, information was not
obtained, and relevant conclusions were not reached, This presumption shall be a rebuttable
presuimption affecting the burden of proof relative to those portions of the audit that are not

documented as required in subdivision (b), The burden may bo met by a preponderance of the

evidence,

“(d) Awdit dooumentation.shall be maintained by a licensee for the longer of the following: i

“(1) The minimum period of retention ﬁrovided in snbdivision (e):

“(2) ‘A period sufficient to satisfy professional I'standards and to comply With applicable
laws and regulations, | o | '

*“(e) Audit documentation shall be maintained for a miniﬁxum df seven years which shall be

¢xtended during the pendency of any board investigation, diseiplinary action, or legal action

"involving the licensee or the licensee's firm, The board may adopt regulations to establish a

different retention period for specific categories of audit documentation where the boaxd finds |
that the nature of the documentation warrants it, o

“(f) Licensess shall maintain a written dogumentation retention. and destruction policy that
shall set forth the licer;sce’sipractioes and procedures oorhplying with this article,

13, Section 5101 of the Code states:

"After notioe and hearing the board shall revoke the registration and permit o practice of'a
partnership if at any time it does not have all the qualifications prescribed by the_ section of this
chapter under which 1t qualified for registration, After notlos and hearing the board may revoke,

suspend or refuse to renew the parmit to practme of a partnelship or may censure the holder of

tarlle wpremenmiar ey

such pemnit for any ofthe oausas enumerated in Sectlon 5100 anci for the following addltxonal Sy

causes:

" Acousation
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“(a) The revooation or suspension of the certificate or registration or the revocation or.
suspension of or refusal to renew the permit to practice of any partner.

(b) The cancellation, revocation or suspension of certificate or other authority to practice or
refiisel to renew the certificate or other authorlty of the partnership of any pertner thereof to
practice public accountancy in any other state." | .

14, Section 5109 ofthe Code states:

“The expiration, cancellation, forfeitnre, or suspension of a license, practice privilege, or
other authority to practice public accountancy by operation of law or by order or decislon of the
board ora court of law, the placement of a license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrendex;
of a license by a licensee shall not deprive the bogrd ofjurisdiotion to commehee or procesd with
any investigation of or action or diseiplinary proceeding against the llcensee, or to render a |
decision suspending or r§voking the Heense,” '

g . CIVIL CODE

15,"  California Civil Code section 1798,81,5 states, in pertinent part;

“(a) It is the intent of the Legislature t ensure thet personal nformation about California .
residents 1s protected, To thet end, the purpose of this seotion 18 to encourage businesses that own |,
or license personal Information about Californ{ans to provide reasonable security for that

information, - For the purpose of this seetion, the phrase "owns or licenses" is intended to include,

but is not limited to, personal information that a business retains as part of the business' internal

customer account or for the purpose oﬁusmg that information in transactions with the person to
whom the information relates,

" %(b) A business that owns or licenses personal informeition about & California resident shall
‘-im'plement and maintain reasonable sequrity procedures and practices appropriate to the nature of
the information, to prdte,ot the personal information from unanthorlzed access, destruction, use,
mocliﬁcatxon, or disclosure, . ' |

“(o) A busmess that dlscloses pcrsonal mformation about a California resident pursuant to
a contraot with a nonéfﬁliateé ihlrd party shall l‘aqulre by contraot that the third party imﬁlemé;};t
and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices appropriate to the nature of the

6
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information, to protect the personal information from unauthorized access, destruction, use,
modification, or disclosure.

“{d) For pwrposes of this section, the following terms have the following meanings:

“(1) "Personal information” means an 'individgal‘é first name or first Initlal and his or her’
last name in combination with any one or more of the following data elements, when eifher the
natme or the d‘ata elements are not encrypted or redacted:

- (A) Soctal security number, , . .” '
, COST RECOVERY
16, Section 5107(a) of the Code‘states: '
© "The executive officer of the board may request the adminiétrative law judge, as part of the "
proposed declsion 1n & disciplinary procesding, to direct any holder of a permit or certificate |
found to }';ave committed a violation or violatiqns of this qhapteiv to pay to the board all reasonable
costs of investigation and prosecution ofthe case, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees,
f.Thﬁ board shall not recover costs incurred at the administrative hearing,"
| APPLICABLE PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

17, Standards of practice pertinent to thxs Accusation and the engagernents in 1ssue
include, without limitation: . ,

&, Generally Avcepted Auditing Standards (“GAAS™) issued by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“ATICPA™), The ten GAAS (AU § 156) are interrelated and
discussed In the Statements on Auditing Standards (“SAS™), Among the SAS relevant hersin, in
addition to AU § 150 which sets forth GAAé, are AU § 230 (Due Professional Care); AU § 311,
(Planning and Supervision); AU § 312 (Planning the Andit); AU § 314 (Understanding the Entity
and its Bnvironment and Assessing the Risks of Matetial Misstatement); AU § 316 \
(Consideration of Fraudj; AU § 318 (Performing Andit Procedures in Response to Assessed
Risks and Evaluating the Audit Bvidence Obtained); AU § 326 (Audit Evidence); AU § 329

(Audlt Sampl ng) and AU § 560 (Subsequent Events)
(

(Analytioal Procedures), AU § 331 (Irwentomes), AU § 339 (Audxt Documentation), AU § 350

. FAccﬁsat_ié‘n'
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. Conirfbutions); Chapter 9 (Auditing Benefit Payments); Chapter 10 (Auditing Participant Data,

b,  Generally Acocpted Government Auditing Standards (“GA.GAS") are discussed in
the GAQ’s Government Awditing Standards, 2007 Revision, as amended (“Yellow Book™
promulgated by the U.S, Government Aoobuntability Office. The Yellow Book incorporates the
fon GAAS. | | |

¢. ~ Single Audits are-audits conducted under the standards set forth by the Office of
Management and Budget in OMB Circular A-133 in addition to the requirements of the Yellow
Book, ' .

d.  The Employee Retiroment Income Security Act ("‘ERISA”) 0f 1974 established
auditing and reporting guidelines for defined benefit and defined oontribujcion plans with 100 or
more participants, The Awditing Standards Board issued the interpretativé publication Audit and
Accounting Guide for Employment Benefit Plans (‘quide”) 10 assist management of ém,ployee
benefit plans in the preparation of financial statements n confolrmity with US Generally Acoepted
Accounting Pfinciples {(“GAADR”) and to assist auditoré In guditing and reporting on such financial
statements, . The interpretive guide Is nox'l-authoritative but the auditor should be prepared to
ad.dress how the auditor complied with the SAS pravisioss addressed by the anditing guidance,
The Guide is codified by. the “AAG-EBP” number. The Relevant AAG-EBP chapters include
‘Chapter 5 (Planning and General Auditing Considerations); Chapter 6 (Internal Control), Chapter
7 (Auditing Tnvestments), Chapter 8 (Aliditing Contributions Recelved arid Related

Participant Al]qoatio}xs, and Plan Obligat‘ions), and Chapter 13 (The Auditor’s Report).
 FACTUAL BACKGROUND
2008 County of Modoe Audit | |
18, Respondent TCA Partners, LLEP (TCA) issued an auditor’s report on the financial
statements of the County of Modoe® (Modoc) for the yoar ending June 30, 2008, The auditor's
report, dated April 17, 2009, stated that the audit was conducted in acedrdance with GAGAS,

[—

similar to deficiencies fioted on other audits, Tucker's deficiencies are deseribed in the North
Hawaii section and Sullenger’s deficiencies in the San Diego section,

Aoccvsation
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" GAAS, und Ciroular A-133. Respondent Sullenger was the engagement pdrtner'. Respondent

Tucker was the rewewing partuer,
19, On October 30, 2009, the State Cont’roller’s Office (SCO) issued its quality control

review of Respondent TCA’s andit for Modog, a governmental unit, The SCO's report disclosed

that TCA’s audit was not performed in acoordance with the standards and requirements set forth |
in GAGAS, GAAS, and Ciroular A-133, | |

20, The SCO specifically noted the following deficiencies; the audit was ot properly
planned, supervised and reviewed; the anditor failfzd to obtain a sufficient understanding of

internal controls, the anditor did not accurately assess audit risk; the auditor failed 1o obtain

Il sufficient appropriate audit evidence; the auditor failed to exervise due professional care; and the

auditor failed to comply with standards. ‘

21.  Because of the deficiencies, the SCO felt that nsers could not rely on the aﬁditor’s
opinions that Modoe’s financial statements fairly presonted the county’s financial position or that
Modoc complied with federal program requirements,

22, The CBA received the referral from the SCO,

23, OnNovember 11, 2009, TCA informed the Modoe County Administrative Officer
that TCA withdrew its audit report dated April 17, 2009 for the year ending June 30, 2008,

24, The CBA requested and recetved andit documentation for Modoe from respondents
TCA and Sullenger, '

2010 North Hawaii Communigg Hospital, Inc, Audit
25, . Respondent Tucker, through Respondent TCA, lssued an auditor’s report on the

financial statements of the North Hawaii Community Hospital, Ine. 401(K) Plan (North Hawaii)
for the year ending December 31, 2010, The auditor's report, dated June 29, 2011, stated that the
audit was conducted in accordance with GAAS and referenced supplementa mformat:on required

by the Department of Labor (DOL) and ERISA,

26. The CBA reoewed 8 referral from the DOL Theu qua]ity review of TCA’s 2010
audit ofNorth HaWa1i noted mu tiple deﬁmenoias in TCA’S pcrformance of the audlt N

1
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27, The DOL noted that the audit was not properly planned; the audltc;r failed to obtain
sufficient apprgériatc audit evidence in the areas of Internal confrols, investments, contributiéns,
benefit payments, participant date, administrative expenses, and subsequent events; and the audit
was not conducted In accordance with GAAS, '

28, Bocause of the deficienoles, the DOL felt tha the auditor’s opinion on the plan's

_financial statements was not supported by the audit procedures performed,

29, The CBA requested and received audit dosumentation for North Hawaii from
respondenfs TCA and Tucker, . .
2011 San Diego American Indian Health Center Audit

30, Respondent Sullenger, through Respondent TCA, issued the auditor's report under

‘the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, known as a Single Audit, on the financial statements

for the San Diego American Indian Health Center'(San Diego) for the year ending June 30, 2011,

|| The Single Audit report, dated December 7, 2011, stated that the audit was conducted in

accordance with GAAS and GAGAS, and referenced supplemental information required wnder

| OMB Circular A-133,

31, The CBA requested and received audit documentation for San Diego from
respondents TCA, Sulléngcr, and Tucker,

2012 Ridgecrest Regional Hospital Audits

32. Respondent Jackson, through Respondent TCA, issued the auditor’s report on the
financial statements for Ridgecrest Regional Hospital (Ridgecrest) for the' fiscal year ending

| anuary 31, 2012, The'-auditor’s report was dated April 27, 2012, and stated that the audit was

conducted in accordance with GAAS, Ny

33, Respondent Sullenger, through Respondent TCA, issued the Single Audit report for |
Ridgeorest for the fisoal year ending J anﬁaly 31,2012, The Single Audit report, dated July 17,
2012, stated that the audit was conducted In acoordance with GAAS and GAGAS, and contained

T Datfoletioles 1 SBlfiges Work d$ Gublined G SaT DISEO ANAIARY SHilars wowe [

found on the Ridgecrest Single Audit and are not additionally described in the Ridgecrest section,
Only Jackson's deficlencies are described in the Ridgeorest seotion,

10
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supplemental information required under OMB Circular A~133, Sullenger’s sudit documentation
reflected her reliance on work done by Respondent J éckson during the Ridgecrest financlal
staternient audit, ' | ' ' |

34, The CBA requested and recelved audit documentation for Ridgecrest from
Respondents TCA, Sullenger, and Tucker,

Peer Reviews

35, ' Respondent TCA received a system. of quality control review (peer review) for the
year ended October 31, 2006, The qualified peer roview report, dated May 8, 2007, ineluded

comments that indicated that reviewed items did not conform 1o the requirements of professional

*standards in all material respects. Issues noted in the lefter of comments were that reference

materials were not consulted on engagemerll’cs in speclalized Industries, inoludin'g government
audits, end that firm policies did' not require specific audit documentation when accepted auditing
procedures were not deemed necessary.

36. Respondent TCA recelved a peer review report that reflected a reting .of Pass with
Deficiency (rating nomenoclature was upciated In 2009) for the review year ending Qctober 31,
2009. The peer review report inclnded deficlencies in the performance of an employes benefit
plan audit which included that required disclosures were omitted and certain tests specific to
employee benefit plans were not performed or documented, Deficiencies noted inthe
performance of an audit performed under GAGAS included that disbursement testing did not
dentify programs to whmh they corresponded and thet compliance testing of controls was
insufficient. . .

37, The CBA reviewed the three additional audits described above that were performed
and issued by the Respondents subsequent 1o the recelpt of the 2007 qualified peer review
containing comments, the 2009 SCO’s notification of deficiencies and the 2010 Pass with
Deficlency peerreview, ‘

[
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FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE?
(Gross Negligence/Repeated Negligent Acts)

38, Respondents TCA and Tucker are subject to disoiplinary action under section 5100,
subsection (0) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents TCA and Tuoker committed gross
negligence and/or repeated negligent acts in Respondent TCA’s issuance of the 2010 North
Hawaii audit report and performance by Respondent Tucker of andit prooedures that departed
extramely from professional standards as follows: '

a. Respondent Tucker failed to properly plan the andit (AU 150 02, AU 311,03, AU
311,08, AU 311,09, AU § 311,13, AU § 311,14, AU § 311,19, AU § 311.20, AU § 311,21, AU §
318,09, AU § 326.17, AU § 329.01, AU § 329,06, AU § 339,03, AU § 339,10, AU § 339.18, and
AAG-EBP 5.28).

i The understahd'mg with the cl'leqt lacked required wording regarding |

management’s responsibilities in ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations,

informing the anditor aboit known or suspected fraud and did not describe any prooedures

relative to the supplemental information,
. 4, Respondent Tucker’s audit strategy did not desoribe areas of rigk and dld not
include the nature, timing, and extent of procedures that responded to the planned risk
assessment, | '
iil, Respondent Tucker did not apply preliminary analytical procedures,

b Rcsiaondent Tucker did not obtain a sufficlent understanding of the nature of North
Hawaii and its environment to assess risks, including control risk, Cormments in the
documentation centered 'pn management and did not consider 1isks or controls present in fiduoiary
entities (AU § 150,02, AU § 312,11, AU § 314.26, Aﬁ § 314.40, AU § 314,534, AU § 314,55, AU
§ 314,83, AU 316,41, AU § 316,83, AU § 335.03, AU § 339,10, and AAG-EBP 6,08),

11

* Defilclencies noted 1n North Hewali are similar to doficiencies noted in Modoo,

12
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o.  Respondent Timk,er did not obtain sufficient appropriate evidential matter to suppott
his opinion on the financial statements with regard fo material balanoes presented in the financial
statements for investments and other assets, participant Joan balances, and employer and
employes contributions (AU § 150,02, AU § 312,18, AU §318,74, AU § 326,04, AU § 339,03,
Al § 339,10, AAG-EBP 7.65, AAG-EBP 7,66, AAG-EBP 8,06, AAG-EBP 10,05, and AAG-
EBP 10.19), ,

d. Respondent Tucker failed to perform proper cut-0ff procedures including, but not
limited to, confribution amounts, the timing of 6ont;ibution deposits, and unrecorded liabilities
(AU § 150,02, AU § 339,03, AU § 339,10, AU § 560,11, AU § 560.12, AAG-EBP 8,06, and
AAGEBP 10.19), | .

& Respondent Tucker failed to Vapply auditixig prosedures to individual participant
accounts, participant loans, and other partiotpant data to odmply with ERISA rt;quireménts (AU §
3?;9.03, AU §339.10, AAG-EBP 8.02, AAG-EBP 9.02, AAG-EBP 10,02, and AAG-EBP 10.05)..

f.  Respondent Tucker failed to perform analytical review procédureé in the review stage
of the audit (AU § 329,01, AU § 339,03, and AU § 339.10). 5 |

g Res;?oﬁdent Tucker failed to exercise due professional care in the p;arformance and
'reporting on the North Hawall audit by disclosing approximately 1,060 participant soclal security
numbers, un-redacted, in the audit documentation provided to the CBA. during ifs investigation,
and by Issuing a limited scope audit when he did not perform eudit proveciures neeessary to allow
him to issue a limited soopé audit report (AU § 150.02, AAG-EBP 7,66, AAG-EBP 13,26, AAG-
EBP 13,27, and Callfornia Civil Code seation 1798.81,5),

1]
i
111
I
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RESPONDENTS TCA AND SULLENGER
SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE®

' (Gross Negligenc'e/Repéated Negligent Acts)
39, Respondents TCA, and Sullenger are subject to diseiplinary action under section 5100,
subsectiori (c) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents TCA and Sullenger committed gross

' negligence and/or repeate& negligent acts in Respondent TCA's issuance of the 2011 San Diego

audit report and performance by Respondent Sullenger of audit procedures that departed
extrémely from professional sfandards as follows;

a.  Respondent Sullenger failed to properly plan the audit (AU § 150, 02, AU § 311 03,
AU § 311 19, AU § 311.20, AU § 311,21, AU § 312,16, AU § 31809, AU § 326,17, AU §
326.35, AU § 329,17, AU § 339,03, AT § 339,10, AU § 339,18, and AU § 350,12),

i The Planning Memorandum stated the audit would follow Single Audit
approach requirements for internal controls and compliance, and that testing would be done to |
meet andit objectives, Testing procedures for fhe Single Andit were limited to the federa)
programs and were not documentad as to the effect on the dudit asa vyhole. .
| fi," The Audit Frogram reflected the general checklist of procedures to be
performed but without objectives to describe the nature, timing, or extent of planned audit
procedures

iil,  Andit Strategy Worksheets (ASW) reflected assessments related to'the financial
étatement éssertions to plat the audit but there were no audit procedufas with objestives to
deseribe the nature, timing, or extent of planned audit procedures, '_ |

b, Respondent Sullenger’s dooumentation lacked evidence to support her understanding
of the status and effectiveness of infernal controls, inpluding those of suﬁervision, override, and
review, Sullenger’sunderstanding of risks was contradicted by in‘formationﬁoin thc; fraud

“brainstorming session (AU § 150.02, AU § 312,11, AU § 314,26, AU § 31440, AU § 314.54, AU

O TE ey i gty

 San Diegb deficiencies are similar to deficlenoies noted in Modoc.
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§314.55, AT § 314,83, AU § 316,13, AU § 316.27, AU § 31641, AU § 31642, AU § 316,44,
AU §316.83, AU §.326,35, AU § 339,03, and AU § 339,10), ' |

e, | Respondent Sullenger did not obtain sufficient appropriate eviéential mafter to
support her opinion on the financial statements with rega'rd.to matérial balances presented in the
financial statements, such as accounts recelvable, accounts payable, and unearned revenue (AU §
150,02, AU §312,18, AU § 316,68, AU § 318,71, AU § 318,74, AU § 326,04, AU § 326,08, AU
§ 329,05, AU § 330.03, AU § 339,10, and AU §350.26).

d, Respondent Sullenger failed to exerclse dus professional care in the performance and
reporting on the San Diego audit and by inswfficient documentation regarding the os'tens,ibly
corrected prior year “finding” regarding reconcillations (AU § 150.02 and Yellow Book 4,09),

~ RESPONDENTS TCA AND JACKSON
THIRI? CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE.
{Gross Negligence/Repeated Negligent Acts)

40, Respondents TCA. and Jackson are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100,
subsection (¢) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents TCA. and J ackson committed gross
neghgcnce and/or repeated negligent acts in Respondent TCA’s issuance of the 2012 Rldgecrest
audit report and performance by Respondent Jackson of audit procedures that departed exiromely
from professional standards as follows:

a.  Respondent Jackson failed to properly plan the audit (AU § 150,02, AU § 311, 03 AU
§311.19, AU § 311,20, AU § 311,21, AU § 318,08, AU § 318,09, AU § 326.17, AU § 329,17, .
AU § 339,03, AU § 339,10, and AU § 339.18).

i The audit planning memorandum referenced that there was little segregation of
duties and that compliance testing of controls would not be necessary, Respendent Jackson
planned to perform more substantive testing for balance sheet ltems, However, substantive
testing of Accounts Receivable, for example, doeé not reflect a substantive testing approach,

ii| The Audit Program reflected the general oheckhst of prooedures tobe

1t e A

performed but w1thout objeotlves to dascribe the nature, tlming, or extent of planned audlt R

progcedures,
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Jii.  Audit Strategy Worksheets (ASW) did not describe the naturs, timing, or extent
of planned audit procedures and did not support the low risk assessments,
b, Respondent Jackson failed to obiain a sufficient understanding of the entity and its -

environment to assess risks and failed to assess the status and effectiveness of internal controls,

including those of supervision, override, and review, Jackson’s understanding of risks was

contradicted by information in the fraud memo (AU § 150,02, AU § 312,11, AU § 314,26, AU §
314,40, AU § 314.54, AU § 314,55, AU § 314,83, AU § 316.13, AU § 316,15, AU § 316,27, AU
§ 31642, AU § 316,44, AU § 316,83, AU § 318,71, AU § 318.74, AU § 326,35, AU § 339,03,
and AU § 339.10), |

¢, Respondent Jackson did not obtatn sufficlent appropriate evidentiary matter to
support his opinion oﬁ the financial statements with regard to material balances presented. inthe
financial statements for accounts receivable, accounts payable, and inventories (AU § 150,02, AU
§312.18, AU §316.68, AU § 31§.‘09, Al § 326,04, AU § 331,01, AU §, 331.09, AU § 331,10,
AU §331,11, AU § 331,12, AU § 339:03, and AU § 339.10),

d. Respondent Jackson failed to exercise due professional care in the performance and
reporting on the Ridgecrest audit (AU § 150,02), L

RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
FOURTH CAUSE FOR‘DIS CIPLINE

(Violation of Buslness and Professions Code section 5097)

41, Respondents TCA, Tucker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subject to disoiplinéry action
under seetion 5100, stibsection (e) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents violated section
5097 of the Codo m conjunetion with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 682 by -
failing to comply with audit documentation rcquircmcxits as more partioularly set forth'in
paragraphs 38-40 and all of thelr subparts.

11 |
11

[

16

~ Accusation




v N Tt ot B W0

—t

RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE ‘

(Report Conforming to Professional Standards)
42, Respondents TCA, Tucker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subject to disciplinary action
under section 5062 of the Code on the grounds that Respon&ents’ audit documentation does not
support the opinions rendered in the audit reports and, therefore, the andit reports do not conform

to professiona) standards, as more particularly set forth in paragraphs 38-40 and all of thetr

lsubparts.

RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Compliance With Standards)
‘ 43, Reébondents TCA; Tucker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subject t5 diseiplinary action |
under California Code of Regulations; title 16, section 38 on the grounds that Respondents failed
to comply with all applicable professional standards, includiﬁg but not limited fo GAGAS, GAAS
and BRISA regarding the audit documentation and performanes of the audxt, as more particularly
set. forth In paragraphs 38-40 and all of their subparts,
RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER. AND JACKSON
SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

. (Willful onlation) ,

.44, Respondents TCA, Tucker, Sullcnger, and J ackson are subj co’c to. d1soip1inary action

under seotion 5100, subssct} on (g) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents wxllfully violated

various provisions of the Business and Professions Code and California Code of Regulations, as |

|| more particulatly set forth in paragraphs 18-43 and all of their subparts,

PRAYER -
WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,

5 || and that followmg the hearing, the Califorma Board of Aooountancy issue 8 decismn

N
‘o ~X

¥ rres qnwdmtet o

1, Rovoking or suspending or otherwiss imposing disoipline wpon Certified Publio
Accountancy Partnership Certificate No, 6980, issued to TCA Partners LLP;

17
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2. Revoking or suspending or otheMise Irmposing discipline upon Certiﬁed Public .
Accountant Certificate No, 36244, issued to Richard Edson Jackson;

3, . Revoking or suspending or c;themise imposing discipline wpon Certified Public
Accountant Certificate No, 72045, issued to Jerrel Lee Tucker:

4. Revoking or suspending or otherwise imposing diseipline upon Cemﬁed Publw
Accountant Certificate No, 88971, issued to Inger Alice Sullenger;

5. Ordering TCA Partners LLP, Richard Edson Jackson, Jerrel Lee Tucker, and Inger
Alice Sullenger to pay the Califortiia Board of Ascountancy the reasonable costs of the
investigation and enforcement of this case, purswant to Bustness and Prdfessions Code section
5107§ and
| 6.  Taklng such other and further agtio gdeemed necessary and proper,

PANITBOWERS ™ 7

Executive Officer

California Board of Aocountancy

Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complainant '

8A2013111406/1113203 1 doex
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Attachment 7

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

TCA PARTNERS LLP
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Accountancy Partnership
Certificate No, PAR 6980
And
RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,
36244
And

JERREL LEE TUCKER, Partner
9074 N. Sierra Vista
Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,

72045
: And _
INGER ALICE SULLENGER, Partner
3046 Whispering Meadow Ln,
Plain City, UT 84404
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
88971

Respondents,

Case No, AC-2013+43, AC-2013-44, AC-
2013-45, AC-2013-46

OAH No. 2014010481

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the

California Board of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this

matter,

This Decision shall become effective on

-5

Itis so ORDERED __[ .2~ ) - | S/

r

WlLetar g dLTEML,

FOR THE CALIFORNIA BOARD OF
ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
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KAMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
KENT D, HARRIS
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
PHILLIP L, ARTHUR -
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No, 238339
1300 I Street, Suite 125
P.O. Box 944255
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
Telephone: (916) 322-0032
Facsimile: (916) 327-8643
E-mail: Phillip, Arthur@doj.ca.gov
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

! In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

TCA PARTNERS LLP

1111 Herndon Avenue, #211

Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountancy Partnership
Certificate No. PAR 6980

And

RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211

Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.

1} 36244

And

JERREL LEE TUCKER, Partner

9074 N, Sierra Vista

Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,
72045 ’

And

INGER ALICE SULLENGER, Partner
3046 Whispering Meadow Ln,

Plain City, UT 84404 ‘
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
88971

Respondents.

Case No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-

201345, AC-2013-46
OAH No, 2014010481

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND

DISCIPLINARY ORDER
(JERREL LEE TUCKER ONLY)

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (JERREL LEE TUCKER ONLY) (AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-

2013-46)
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IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-
entitled proceedings that the following matters are true;
PARTIES
1, Paiti Bowers ("Complainant") is the Executive Officer of the California Board of

Accountancy, She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this

| matter by Kamala D, Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Phillip L, Arthur,

Deputy Attorney General,

2, Respondents TCA Partners LLP ("Respondent TCA™), Richard Edson Jackson
(“Respondent Jackson”), Jerrel Lee Tucker (“Respondent Tucker”), and Inger Alice Sullenger
(“Respondent Sullenger™) are represented in this proogeding by attorney Joshua S, Goodman,
Esq., whose address is; 417 Montgomery St., 10th Fl,, San Francisco, CA 94104,

3. Onorabout May 12, 2005, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountancy Partnership Certificate No, 6980 to TCA Partners LLP (Respondent TCA),
The Certiﬁed Public Accountancy Partnership Certificate was 1n full force and effect at all times
relévant to the charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-~
2013-46 and will expire on May 31, 2015, unless renewed,

4. Onor about December 3, 1982, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate No, 36244 to Richard Edson Jackson (Respondent Jackson), The
Certified Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 and
will expire on March 31,2016, unless renewed,

5. Onorabout September 20, 1996, the California Board of Accountancy issued
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No, 72045 to Jerrel Lee Tucker (Respondent Tucker),
The Certified Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 and
will expire on November 30, 2015, unless renewed.

6. Onorabout April 21, 2004, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified

Public Accountant Certificate No, 88971 to Inger Alice Sullenger (Respondent Sullenger), The
2

- STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (JERREL LEE TUCKER ONLY) (AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-
: 2013-46)
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Certified Public Accountant Certiﬁcate.was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
c_:ha,rges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 and
will expire on October 31, 2014, unless renewed,'

JURISDICTION ,

7. Accusation No, AC~2013~43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 was filed
before the California Board of Accountancy (CBA), Department of Consumer Affairs, and is
currently pending against Respondents, The Accusation and all other statutorily required
documents were properly served on Respondents on December 9, 2013, Respondents timely filed
their Notices of Defense contesting the Accusa’uon

8. A copy of Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC~2013 46 is
attached as exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference,

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

9. Respondent Tucker has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands
the charges and allegations in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-

46. Respondent Tucker has also carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the

“effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order,

10, Respondent Tucker is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the right
to a hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by
counsel at his own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him;
the right to present evidence and fo testify on his own behalf; the right to the issuance of
subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to
reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the
California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws,

11, Respondent Tucker voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up
each and every right set forth above,

11

' Unless othelwlse specified, the term “Respondents” refers to Respondents TCA,
Jackson, Tucker, and Sullenger collectively,

3

~ STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (JERREL LEE TUCKER ONLY) (AC2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-
2013-46)
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CULPABILITY

12, Respondent Tucker understands and agrees that if proven at a hearing, the charges
and allogations in Accusation No. AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46
constitute cause for disciplining Respondent Tucker’s Certified Public Accountant Certificate

13, Respondent Tucker agrees that his Certified Public Accountant Certificate is subject
to discipline and agrees to be bound by the CBA's probationary terms as set forth in the
Disciplinary Order below, | _

CONTINGENCY

14, This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the California Board of Accountancy,
Respondent Tucker understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the
California Board of Aceouniancy may communicate directly with the CBA, regarding this
stipulation and settlement, without notice o or participation by Respondent Tucker or his counsel,
By signing the stipulation, Respondent Tucker understands and agrees that he may not withdraw
his agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the CBA considers and acts wpon
it, Ifthe CBA fails to adopt this stipulation as its Declsion and Order, the Stipulated Settlement
and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or effect, except for thig paragraph, it shall be
inadmissible in any légal action between the parties, and the CBA shall not be disqualified from
further action by having considered this matter,

15, The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF), electronic,
and facsimile copies of this Stipulated Seitlement and Disciplinary Order, including Portable
Document Format (PDF), electronic, and facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force
and effect as the originals,

16,  This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties to be a,li
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement,
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions, |

negotiations, and commitments (written or oral), This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary

“ Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a

writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties,
| 4
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17.  In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the CBA may, without further notioé Qr formal proceeding, .issue and enter the following
Disciplinary Order: |

DISCIPLINARY ORDER

IT1S HEREBY ORDERED that Certified Public Accountant Certificate No, 72045 issued
to Respondent Jetrel Leoe Tucker (Respondent Tucker) is revoked, However, the revocation is
stayed and Respondent Tucker is placed on probation for five (5) _yearé on the following terms
and conditions, |

1, Obey All Laws

Respondent Tucker shall obey all federal, California, other states' and local laws, including
those rules relating to the practice of public accountancy in California,

2. Cost Reimbursement

Respondent Tucker shall reimburse the CBA $21,536.20 for its investigation and
prosecution costs. The payment shall be made as follows: ten quarterly payments (due with_
quarterly written reports),

3. Submit Written Reports

Respondent Tucker shall submit, within 10 days of completion of the quarter, written
reports to the CBA on a form obtained from the CBA, The Respondent shall submit, under
penalty of petjury, such other written reports, declarations, and verification of actions as are
required, These declarations shall contain statements relative to Respondent's compliance with
all the terms and conditions of probation, Respondent Tucker shall immediately execute all
release of information forms as may be 1'eq1iil'ed by the CBA or its representatives,

4, Personal Appearances

Respondent Tucker shall, during the period of probation, appear in person at
interviews/meetings asldirected by the CBA or its designated representatives, provided such
notification is accomplished in a timely manner,

111

11!
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5. Comply With Probation

Respondent Tucker shall fully comply with the terms and conditions of the probatipn
imposed by the CBA and shall cooperate fully with representatives of the California Board of
Accountaney in its monitoring and investigation of the Respondent's compliance with probation
terms and conditions,

6, Practice Investigation

Respondent Tucker shall be subject to, and shall permit, a practice investigation of the
Respondent's professional practice, Such a practice investigation shall be conducted by
representatives of the CBA, provided notification of such review is accomplished in & timely
manner,

7. Comply With Citations

Respondent Tucker shall comply with all final orders resulting from citations issued by the
California Board of Accountancy. |

8. Tolling of Probation for Qut-of-State Residence/Practice

In the event Respondent Tucker should leave California to reside or practice outside this
state, .Respondent Tucker must notify the CBA in writing of the dates of departure and return.
Periods of non-California residency ot practice outside the state shall not apply to reduction of the
probationary period, or of any suspension, No obligation imposed heréin, including requirements
to file written reports, reimburse the CBA costs, and make restitution to consumers, shall be
suspended or otherwise affected by such perlods of out-of-state residency or practice except at the
written direction of the CBA,

9, Violation of Probation

If Respondent Tucker violates probation in any respect, the CBA, after giving Respondent
Tucker notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the disciplinary
order that was stayed, If an accusation or a petition to revoke probation is filed against
Respondent Tucker during probation, the CBA shall have continuing jurisdiction until the matter
is final, and the period of probation shall be extended until the matter is final,

The CBA's Executive Officer may issue a citation under California Code of Regulations,
6
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Title 16, section 95, to a licensee for a violation of a term or condition contained in a decision
placing that licensee on probation,

10. Completion of Probation

Upon successful completion of probation, Respondent Tucker 's license will be fully
restored,

11, Review of Audit and Review Engagements |

During the course of probation, Respondent Tucker shall annually provide the Board with a
listing of all audit and review engagements Respondent ‘Tuoker knows he will undertake in the
subsequent twelve month period. Along with the list of audit and review engagements,
Respondent Tucker shall provide the Board with the date on which the final audit and review
report for each audit and review engagement is due, During each year of probation, the Board
will specify the date on which the list of audit and review engagements is due, allowing at least

fifteen (15) days for Respondent Tucker to provide the list of engagements and their due dates to

. the Board,

From the list of audit and review engagements and their due dates specified each year by
Respondent Tucker, the Board will select twenty-five percent (25%) but no more than fifteen (15)
audit and review engagements whose work papers and final reports shall be reviewed by a
qualified outside CPA approved by the Board, The Board may select all twenty-five percent

(25%) but no more than fifteen (15) audit or review engagements to be reviewed at one time, or

| may select up to twenty-five percent (25%) but no more than fifteen (15) audit and review

engagements to be reviewed throughout the course of each year of probation, Respondent Tucker
shall maintain all work papers and final reports for all audit and review engagements undertaken
by Respondent Tucker during the course of probation, enabling inspection by the Board or
qualified outside CPA,

Upon completion of the review of the work papers and final reports for each selected audit
or review engagement, Respondent Tucker shall submit a copy of the report with the reviewer's
conclusions and findings to the Board. Review by the qualified outside CPA shall be at

Respondent Tucket's expense,
7
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12. Continuing Education Courses

Within the probationary term, Respondent Tucker shall complete and provide proper
documentation of the following courses; eight hours of an audit documentation course, twenty-
four hours of accounting and auditing training, and eight hours of audit of 401(k) Plans,

Respondent Tucker shall also complete four hours of continuing education in the course
subject matter pertaining to the following: a review of nationally recognized codes of conduet

emphasizing how the codes relate to professional responsibilities; case-based Instruction focusing

| on real-life situational learning; ethical dilemmas facing the accounting profession; or, business

ethics, ethical sensitivity, and consumer expectations within 120 days from the effective date of
this Order, The courses must be g minimum of one hour as described in California Code of
Regulations, title 16, section 88.2,

This shall be in addition to continuing education requirements for relicensing,

If Respondent Tucker fails to complete said courses within the time period provided,
Respondent Tucker shall so notify the CBA and shall cease practice until Respondent Tucker
completes said courses, has submitted proof of same to the CBA, and has been notified by the
CBA that he méy resume practice, |

Failure to satisfactorily complete the required courses as scheduled shall constitute a
violation of probation,

13, Active License Status

Respondent Tucker shall at all times maintain an active license status with the CBA,
including during any period of suspension. If the license is expired at the time the CBA's
decision becomes effective, the license must be renewed within 30 days of the effective date of
the decision,

14, Sampies - Audit, Review or Compilation

During the period of probation, if Respondent Tucker undertakes an audit, review, or
compilation engagement, Respondent Tucker shall submit to the CBA as an attachment to the
required quarterly report a listing of the same, The CBA or its designee may select one or more

from each category and the resulting report and financial statement and all related working papers
8
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must be submitted to the CBA or its designee upon request,
ACCEPTANCE
I have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully

Il discussed it with my attorney, Joshua S, Goodman, Esq. I understand the stipulation and the

effect it will have on my Certified Public Accountant Cettificate. I enter into this Stipulated
Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be

bound by the Decision and Order of the California Board of Accountancy,

DATED;

JERREL LEE TUCKER
Respondent

/1

I have read and fully discussed with Respondent Jerrel Lee Tucker the terms and conditions

|l and other matters contained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order, Tapprove

its form and content,

DATED; /D</7 /¥

“Joshua S, Goo' man, Esq,
Attorney for Respondent Jerrel Lee Tucker

ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the California Board of Accountaney,

Dated: / O /20 / /(/’ Respectfully submitted,

KAMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
KENTD, HARRIS

Supervising Deputy Attorney.

'Dep ty Attofney G;meral
Attorneys for Complainant

SA2013 111406
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KAMALAD FIARRIS
Attorney General of California
KENT D, HARRIS
Superviging Deputy Aftotney General
Prwre L, ARTEUR
Deputy Attomne g General
State Bar No, 238339
1300 I Strest, Sulte 125
P.0. Box 944255 .-
Sacramento, CA 94244-2530
Telephone: (916) 322-0032
Facsimile: (916) 327-8643
E-mail: Phillip. Arthur@doj.ca.gov
Attorneys for Complainant

REFORE THE,

B ‘
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

TCA PARTNERS, LLP

1111 Herndon Avenue, #2171

Fresno, CA 93720 ,
Certified Public Accountancy Partnership

{| Certificate No, PAR 6980

And
RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner
1111 Herndon Avenwe, #211
Kresno, CA, 93720
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
36244 And
n

JERREL LEE TUCKER, Partner

2074 N, Sierra Vista

Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountant Certlficate No.
72045 o
And

INGER ALICE SULLENGER Partner

1111 E. Herndon Avenue, 11

Fresno, CA 93720

ge;';lﬁed Public Accountant Certificate No,
8971

Respondents,

- / // . Poemenmt et s b o mmews el potem 1 b oerer

Ry

Cuse Nos, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-

201345, AC-2013-46
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Coﬁplginant alleges: .
' PARTIES
I, Patti Bowers (Complainant) brings this ‘Acousation solely in her official capacity as
the Executive Officer of the California Board of ‘Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs,
2, Onorabout May 12, 2005, the' California Board of Accountancy issued Certified |

'Public'Accountanoy‘Partnership Certificate No, 6980 to TCA, Partners LLP (Respondent), The

Certiﬁed'Public Accountancy Partnership Certificate was in full force and effect at all times
relovant to the charges brought he;eiﬁ and will expire on May 31, 2015, unless renewed, '

3,  On or about December 3, 1982', the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate No, 36244 to Richard Edson J ackson (Respondent), The Certified
Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effoot af all times relevant to the charges
brought herein and will expire on March 31, 2014, unless renewed,

4, Onorabout September 20, 1996, the Caiifornia Board of Accountancy issued
Cortified Piblic Accountant Certificate No. 72045 to Jervel Leo Tucker (Respondent), The
Certified P'ublio Accbuntant Certificate was in full foree and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought hereln and will expite on November 30, 2013,.'un]ess rene\.vved.

5. Onorabout April 21, 2004, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certiﬁoate I;Io, 8897110 In gef Alice 'Sullcnger'(Responc.len{c). The Ce;tiﬁed
Public Accountant Certificate was In full force and cffect at all times rele\'lant 1o the charges |
brought hereln and will explre on Qctober 31, 2014, unless rencwed',

9 © JURISDICTION
6,  This Accusation 15 brought before the California Board of Accountangy (CBA),

Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All seotion

references are 1o the Business and Professions 'Cdde (Codg) unless otherwise Indicated,
1" |

' Unless otherwise speci,ﬂ,ed, the term “Respondents” refers to Respondents TCA,
Jackson, Tucker, and Sullenger collectively,

Acousation
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7. Section 5100 of the C'ode, states, in pertinent part:
"After notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend; or reflise 1o renew any pormit or
certificate granted under Article 4 (commencing with Section 5070) and Article 5 (commencing
with Section 5080), or may censure the holder of that permit or certificate for unprofessional

conduct that includes, but is not Jimited to, one or any combination of the following causes:

'
1
X

"(0) Dishonesty, frand, gross negligence, or repeated negligent acts committed in the same
or different engagements, for the same or different clients, or any combination of engagements or -
clienty, each resulting in a violation of applicable professional standards that indicate a,lack of
competency in the practice of publie accountancy or in the performance of the bookkeeping

operations described in Section 5052,

¢

vey !

") Violation of Section 5097,

1

[

() Willful violation of this chapter or dny rule or regulation p‘romulgated by the board

‘under the authority granted under this chapter, , , "

_ REGULATIONS
3 California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 52 (Regulations), states:
“(a) A licensee shall respond to any inquiry ioy thchomtd or its appointed representatives
within 30 days. The response shgll include making available all files, working papers and other

" documents requested,

“(b) A licenseo shall respond o any subpoena issued by the Board or its executive officer

. or the assistant executive officer in the absence of the executive officer within 30 days and in

accordance with the provisions of the Accounté.noy Act and other applicable laws or regnlations,
“(c) A licensee shall appear in person upon written notice or subpoena fssued by the Board
or its executlve officer or the assistant exeeutive officer in the absence of the executive officer,

IO TP PR

1

’ Acgousation



F]

s
~

W &0 3 & L & W9 =

b NNN,_;»—:-)—IV)—JI‘—E)—SHQ—‘)—‘?P"
gg.p.bugmn—-owoooxioxtn-hwwﬂ—‘o

™
o0

“(d) A licensee shall provide true and acourdie information and rcspaﬁses fo questions,
subpoenas, interrogatories or other requests for information or documents and not take any action
to obstruct any Board inquity, _inv'est.igation, hearing or proceeding, ' '

9, Section 58 of the Regulations provides that licensees engaged in the _pr.aétioc: of
public accountancy shall comply with all applicable professional standards, including but not
limited to generally accepted accounting principles and generally accepted auditing standards,

10,  Section 68,2 of the Regulations states that;

"‘(a) To provide for the identification of auclit documentation, audit docuwmentation shall

include an index or guids to the audit docymentation which identifies the components of the audit

documentation,

(b) In addition o the requirements of Business and Professions Code Section 5097(b),
audit documentation shall provide ﬂc_le date the document or working paper was completed by the
preparer(s) and any reviewer(s), and shall include the identity of the preparer(s) and any
reviewer(s), ‘ " ' ,

(&) Audit documentation shall include both the report date and the date of iésuan,oe ofthe
report.” ' | | o
| STATUTES

11, Sectlon 5062 of the Code provides that a licensce shall issue a report which
conforms to professional standards upon completion of a corapilation, review or audit-of financlal |.
Statements,

12, Section 5097 of the Code states:

“(a) Audit dogumentation shall be a licensee's records of the procedures applied, the tests
performed, the ‘mfbr,mation obtained, and the pertinent conolusions reached in an audit
engagement, Aundit c_locumentatioli shail Include, but is not limited to, programs, analyses,
memoranda, letters of confirmation and representation, copies or abstracts of'company ,

documents, and schedules or commentaries prepared or obtained by the licensee,

e e
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“(b) Audit dpcum?ntation s,hfall contain suffieient documentation to enable a reviewer with
relevant knowledge and experience, having no previous connectlon with the audit engagement, fo

4
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understand the nature, timing, extent, and resulfs of the auditiné or other procedures performed,
gvidence obtained, and conelugions reached, and to determine the identity of the persons who
performed and reviewed tﬂa wotk,

*(¢) Failure of the audit documentation to document the procedures applied; tests
performed, evidence obtalned, and relevant conclusions reached in an engagement shall raise &
presumption that the procedures were not applied, tests were not performed, information was not
obtained, and relevant conclusions were not reached, This presumption shall be a rebuttable
presumption affecting the burden of proof relative fo those portions of the audit that are not *
documented as required in subdivision (b). The burden may be met by a preponderance of the
evidence, L '

“(d) Audit documentation shall be mamtained by a licensee for the Ionger of the following: i

%(1) The minimurm period of retention provided in subdlvision (e):

“(2) ‘A period sufficient to satisfy professional fstandards and to comply with applicable

laws and regnlations,

- “(e) Audit documentation shall be maintained fot & minitut of seven years which shall be

sxtended during the pendeney of any board investigation, disciplinary actlon, or legal action

involving the licensee or the licensee's firm, The board may adopt regulations to establish a

different retention period for specific categories of audit documentation where the board finds |
that the nature of the dooumentation warrants if, o

“(f) Licenseos shall maintain a written documentation retention and destruction policy that
shall set forth the Iioer;see’s.practices and procedures coxixplying with this erticle,

13, Section 5101 of the Code states:

"After notice and hearing the board shall revoke the registration and permit to practice of a
partnership if at any time {t does not have all the qualifications prescribed by the section of this
chapter under which if qualified for registration, After notice and hearing the board may revoke,
suspend or refuse to renew the permlt to practwc of g panne1sh1p or may censure the helder of

3

such penmt for any ofthe causes enumerated 1n Seotmn S 1 00 and for the f0110\‘>;m;g acldltxonal

causes:
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“(a) The revocation or suspension of the certificats ot registration or the revoeation or.
suspension of or refysal to renew the permit to practice of any partner,

(b) The oancellation, revocation or suspension of certificate or other authority to practioe or
refusal to renew the certificate or other authority of the partnership of any partner thereofto
practioe public accountancy in any other state," |

14, ‘Seetion 5109 of the Code states:

“The expiration, cancellation, forfefture, or suspension of a license, practice privilege, or
-pther authority to practice public accountancy by operation of law or by order or decision of the
board or a court of law, the placement of a license on 4 retired status, or the voluntary surrender
of & license by a licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commehcs or procesd with
any investigation of or action or diseiplinary proceeding against the licensee, or to render a |
decision suspending or r§voking the license,” ‘

, . CIVIL CODE

15,7 California Civil Code section 1798.81.5 states, in pertinent park:

“(a) Ttis the intent of the Legislature 10 ensure that personal information aboﬁt California _
residents s protected, To that end, the purpose of this section is fo encourage businesses that own |,
or license personal information about Califom%ans to provide reasonable seourity for that
ir;fqrmation. -For the purpose of Fhis section, the phrase "owns or licenses” is intchded to include,
but is not limited to, personal information that & business retains as part of the business' internal
Sustomer acoount or for the purpose of using that information in transactions with the person to
whom the information relates. A

" (k) A business that owns or licenses petsonal informtion abont a California resident shall
‘implemem and malntain reasonable seourity procedures and praotiées appropriate to the nafure of
the information, to protect the personal information from unautherlzed access, destruction, use,
modlﬁoation, or disclosure, ‘

¥

“(c) A busmess that discloses personal information about & California resident pursuant to

a oontraot wlth a nonaffili ted thircl party shall require by oontraot that the third party xmplement

and maintain reasonable .securxty procedures and prastices appropriate to the nature ofthe

.6
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information, to protect the personal information from unauthorized access, destruction, use,

W modification, or disclosure.

*(d) For purposes of this section, the following terms have the following meanings:

“(1) "Personal information” means an individpal"s first name or first initial and his or her’
last name in combination with any one or more of the following data elements, when eitiwr the
name or the d‘ata elements are not enerypted or redacted:

. (A) Social security number, , , " '
' COST RECOVERY

16, Section 5107(a) of the Code!states: .

"The executive officer of the board may request the administrative law judge, as part of the "
proposed decision in a diseiplinary proceeding, to direct any holder of a permit or certificate |
found to }mve sommitted a violation or violatiolns of this qhapte’r to pay to the board all reasonable|
costs of investigation and prosecution of the case, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees,
 The board shall not recover costs incurred at the adriinistrative heating.”

| APPLICABLY, PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

17, Standards of practice pertinent to thls Aoccusation and the cngagem&nts in 1ssue
include, without limitation:

8, Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (“GAAS”) issued by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA™), The ten GAAS (AU § 15 0) are interrelated and
disoussed in the Statemenis on Auditing Standards (“SAS”™), Among the SAS relevant herein, in
addition to AU § 150 which sets forth GA.AS, dre AU § 230 (Due Professional Care); AU § 311,
(Plenning and Supervision); AU § 312 (Planning the Audi); AU § 314 (Understanding the Entity
and its Bnvivonment and Assessing the Risks; of Material Misstatement); AU§316 ‘
{Consideration of 'Fraudj; AU § 318 (Performing Audit Procedures in Response to Assessed
Risks and Evaluating the Audit Evidence Obtained); AU § 326 (Audit Evidence); AU § 329

(Audit Samphng) and AU § 560 (Subsequent Events)
Yy

(Analytlcal Procedures), AU § 331 (Inventorles), AU § 339 (Audlt Dooumentation), AU § 350

Accusation
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b, Generally Acoeptcd Government Auditing Standards ("GACGAS™) are disoussed in
the GAQ’s Government Avditing Standards, 2007 Revision, as amended (“ﬂf’ellow Book™)
pronxu!gatcd by the U.S, Goveriment Accountability Office, The Yellow Book, incorporates the
ten GAAS, | | |

¢.  Single Aundits are-audits conduoted nder the standards set forth by the Offloe of
Management and Budgetin OMB Clroular A-133 in addition to the requirements of the Yellow
Book, ' . |

d.  The Bmployee Retirement Income Security Aot (‘!‘ERISA”) of 1974 established
auditing and reporting guidelines for defined benefit and defined contribution plans with 100 or
more participants, The Auditing Standards Board [ssued the in’cerpretativé publication Audit and
Accounting Guide for Employment Benefit Plans (‘quide”) to assist management of émpleee
benefit plans in the preparation of financial statements in cc_mfo’rrnity with US Generally Accepted
Aocoﬁnt_ing P%inciples (“GAAR”) and to assist auditofs in auditing and reporting on such financial
statements, The interpretive guide is noﬁ~authoritative but the audiior should be prepared to
a&dress how the auditor complied with the SAS privvisions addigssed by the auditing guidance,
The Guide is codified by.the "AAG-EBP” number, The Relevant AAG-EBP chapters include
Chapter 5 (Planning and General Auditing Considerations); Chapter 6 (Internal Control), Chapter
7 (Auditing Investments), Chapter 8 (Auditing Contributions Received and Related

. Contributions); Chapter 9 (Auditing Benefit Payments); Chapter 10 (Auditing Participant Data,

Participant Allgcatio}ls, and Plan Obligations), and Chapter 13 (The Auditor’s Report),
FACTUAIL BACKGROUND
2008 County of Modoe Audit

18, Respondent TCA Partners, LLP (TCA) issued an auditor’s report on the financiel
statements of the County of Modoc? (Modoc) for the year ending June 30, 2008, The auditor’s-
report, dated April 17, 2009, stated that the andit was conducted in accordance with GAGAS,

' Deﬁdleﬁdxes ilrvi’rfucker s wiid Sullernger’s wofk S GHHImEA oh e Modoe miidit afe ™
sirmlar to deficienciss noted on-other andits. Tucker’s deflciencies are described in the North
Hawail section and Sullenger’s deficiencies in the San Disgo seotion,

8
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GAAS, and Ciroular A-133, Respondent Sullenger was the engagement partner, Respondent
Tucker was the reviewing periner,

19, On October 30, 2009, the State Controller s Office (SCO) issued its quality control
review ofRes_pondent TCA’s audit for Modoe, a governmental unit, The SCO’s report. disclosed
that TCA’s audit was not performed in acoordance with the standerds and requirements scf forth
in GAGAS, GAAS, and Cirouler A-133, | -

20, The SCO specifically noted the following deficiencies: the audit was not properly
planned, supervised and reviewed; the auditor failed to obtain a sufficient understanding of
internal controls, the auditor did not accurately aséegs’ audit risks the auditor failed to obtain
sufﬁcianf approptiate gudit evidence; the auditor falled to exervise due professional care; and the
auditor failed to comply with standards, ‘

21, Because of the deficiencies, the SCO felt that users could not rely on the auditor’s
opinions that Modoe’s financial statements Tairly presented the county’s financial position or that
Modoe complied with federal program requirements.

‘ 22, The CBA received the referral from the SCO,
23, OnNovember 11, 2009, TCA informed the Modoc County Administrative Officer

that TCA withdrew its audit report dated Aprii 17, 2009 for the year ending June 30, 2008,

24, The CBA requested and received andit documentation for Modoe from respondents
TCA and Sullenger, '

2010 Noith Hawaii Community Hospital, Inc. Audit

25, Respondent Tucker, through Respondent TCA, {ssued an anditor’s report on the
financial statsments of the North Hawail Comtounity Hospital, Inc. 401(K) Plan (North Hawai)
for the year ending December 31, 2010, The anditor’s report, dated June 29, 2011, stated that the

|| andit was condueted in accordance with GAAS and referenced supplamental mformatlon Tequired

by the Department of Labor (DOL) and ERISA,

26. The CBA receWed B referral from the DOL Theur quality revlew of TCA’s 2010

wrprmeey 090 T 4 g et 1+

audlt of North Hawaii noted mumple doﬂowncics in TCA’S pal formanoe ofthe aud1t
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27, ' The DOL noted that the audit was not properly planned; the auditc;r failed to obtain
sufficient apprc’)}'aria.te andit evidence in the areas of Intemal controls, Investments, contributions,
benefit payments, participant data, administrative expenses, and subsecuent events; and the andit
was not conducted in secordance With GAAS.

28, Because of the deficlencles, the DOL felt that the auditor’s opinion on the plan's

financial statements was not supported by the audit procedures performed,

29, The CBA requested and recetved audit documentation for North Hawail from
rcspondenfs TCA and Tucker, ' .

2011 San Diego American Indian Health Center Audit

30, Respondent Sullenger, through Respon'dent TCA, issued the auditor’s report under
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, known ;13 a Single Audit, on the financial statements

for the San Diego American Indian Health Canter'(San Diego) for the year ending June 30, 2011,

|l The Single Audit report, dated December 7, 2011, stated that the andit was conducted in

accordance with GAAS and GAGAS, and referenced supplemental information required under
OMB Cireuler A-133, , |

31, The CBA requested and received audit documentation for San Diego from
respondents TCA, Sullénger, and Tucker,

32. RespondentJ é.,okson, through Respondent TCA, issued the auditor’s report on the
financial statements for Ridgecrest Regional Hospital (Ridgecrest) for the fiscal year ending
January 31, 2012, The‘ auditor’s report was dated April 27, 2012, and stated that the audit was
conducted in accordance with GAAS, , o

33, Respondent Sullenger, through Respondent TCA, issued the Single Audit report for
Ridgecroest for the fiscal yoar énding Janﬁary 31, 20127 The Single Audit report, da%cd July 17,
2012, stated that the andit was condusted in accordance with GAAS and GAGAS, and contained

S Peftelerioles i SHlletgers Work 4 GUllingd i Ve Sai DICED A A SHAIAF 10 thowe” [

found on the Ridgecrest Single Audit and are not additionally deseribed in the Ridgecrest section,
Only Jackson's deficlencies are described in the Ridgecrest section,

10
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supplemental information required under OMB Cireular A-133, Sullenger’s audit documentation
teflected her reliance on work done by Respondent Jackson during the Ridgeerest financial
statement audit, : _ .

34. The CBA requested and received audit documentation for Ridgecrest from
Respondents TCA, Sullenger, and Tucker,

Peer Reviews ‘

35, ' Respondent TCA recelved a system of qualify control review (peer review) for the
year ended October 31, 2006, The qualified peer review report, dated May 8, 2007, included

gomments that indicated thet reviewed items did not conform to the requirements of professional

' standards in all material respects. Jssues noted in the letter of comments were that reference

materials were not consulted on engagemeﬁ'cs in specialized ndustries, ineluding government
andits, and that firm policles did not require specific andit documentation when accepted anditing
procedures were not deemed necessary,

36, Respondent TCA received a peer review report that reflected a rating of Pass with
Deficiency (rating nomenclature was u,pciawd In 2009) for the review year ending Qutober 31,
2009, The peer review ro}aort included deflclencies in the performance of an employee benefif
plan audit which included that required disclosures were omitted and certain tests specific to
employee benefii plans were not performed or documented, Deficiencios notedinthe
performance of an audit performed under GAGAS ineluded that disbursement testing did not
identify programs to \,vhioh they corfespo,ndeﬁ anél that complianoce testing of controls was
insuffioieﬁt, , , |

37, The CBA reviewed the fhreo additional audits desoribed sbove that were petformed
and issued by the Respondents subseciuan't to the receipt of the 2007 qualified peer review
containing comments, the 2009 SCO’s notification of deficlencies and the 2010 Pass with.
Deficlency peer'review, '
11
"
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RESPONDENTS TCA AND TUCKER
PIRST CAUSE FOR DISCYPLINK

(Gross Negligence/Repeated Negligent Acts)

38, Respondents TCA and Tucker are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100,
subsection .(o) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents TCA and Tucker committed gross
negligenoe and/or repeated negligont acts in Respondent TCA’s issuance of the 2010 North
Hawaii audit report and performance by Respondent Tucker of endit procedures that departed
-ext.rcmely from professional standards as follows; |

a. Respondent Tucker falled to properly plan the audit (AU '150'02, AU 311,03, AU
311,08, AU 311.09, AU § 311,13, AU § 311,14, AU § 311,19, AU § 311,20, AU § 311,21, AU §
318,09, AT § 326,17, AU § 329,01, AU § 329,06, AU § 339,03, AU § 339,10, AU § 339,18, and

AAG-EBP 5:28),

i,  The understanding with the client lacked required wording regarding
management’s responsibilities in ensuring compliénce With apfnlicable laws and regulations,
informing the auditor about known or suspected fraud and did not describe any procedures
relative to the supplemental information, '

i,  Respondent Tucker’s audit strategy did not describe areas of risk and did not
include the nature, timing, and extent of procedures that responded to the planmed risk
assessment, ‘

| iil.  Respondent Tucker did not apply preliminary analytical procedures.

. b, A Resivondent Tucker did not obtain a sgfﬁcien’c understanding of the nature ofNorth
Hawali and jts environment to assess risks, including control risk. Comments in the
documentation centered on management and did not consider risks or controls present in fiduciary
entities (AU § 150,02, AU § 312,11, AU § 314,26, AU §314.40, AU § 314,54, AU § 314,35, AU
§314.83, AU 316.4], AU § 316,83, AU § 339,03, AU § 335.9‘10, and AAG-EBP 6,08), -

1

et yemrren P e e b

4 Deﬁoienéicé noted i‘foort_t'_l Hawail are similar to deficiencies noted in Modoc,

12

2 rTriigte Gy e ean | ge ek r 181 bt AR L e Seer bSO N 1 e ve e Strg A miordy Yaoe o mer

~ Aceusation




w0 0 -~ N wy o (¥ 3 3 .

S I
N

3
i

N
e <]

¢

6. Respondent Tucker did not obtain suffictent appropriate evidential mattor to suppoit
his opinion on the financial statements with regard to material balances presented in the financial
statements for investments and other assets, participant loan balances, and employer and
employee contributions (AU § 150,02, AU § 312.18, AI{ § 318,74, AUJ § 326,04, ATJ § 339,03,
AU §335.10, AAG-EBP 7.63, AAG-EBP 7,66, AAG-ERP 8,06, AAG-EBP 10,05, and AAG-
EBP 10,19). '

d. Respondent Tucker failed to perform proper cut-off procedures Including, but not
limited fo, contribution amounts, the timing of contribution deposits, and unrecorded ligbilities
(AU § 150,02, AU § 339,03, AU § 339,10, AU § 56'0,11, AU § 560,12, AAG-EBP 8,06, and
AAG-EBP 10,19), |

;3. 'Respondent Tucker falled to ‘apply auditing procedures to individual participant
accounts, partiolpant loans, and other participant data to odmply with ERISA, re\quiremén’cs (AU §
359.03, AU § 339,10, AAG-EBP 8.02, AAG-EBP 9.02, AAG-EBP 10,02, and AAG-EBP 10.05),.

f. Respondent Tucker failed to perform analytical review procédures in the review stage
of the audit (AU § 329,01, AU § 339,03, and AU § 339.10), . ‘

g Respoﬁdent Tucker failed to exercise due professional cate in tﬁe performandce and
reporting on the North Hawall audit by disclosing approximately 1,060 participant social security
numbers, un-redacted, in the audit documentation provided to the CBA during its fhvestigation,
and by issuiné a limitéd Scops audit when he did not perform audit proqedures neceséary to allow
him to issye & limited scope audit report (AU § 150,02, AAG-EBP 7.66, AAG-EBP 1326, AAG-
EBP 13.27, and Callfornia Civi} Code seotion 1798,81.5),

1
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RESPONDENTS TCA AND SULLENGER
SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE®
J (Gross Negligence/Repeated Negligent Acts)
39, Respondents TCA and Sullenger are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100,
subscc‘cionf (c) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents TCA and Sullenger committed gross
' negligen;:e and/or repeateci negligent acts in Respondent TCA/'s issuance of the 2011 S'an Diego
audit report and performance by Respondent Sullenger of audit procedures that departed
extremely from professional standards as follows: .
8. Respondent Sullenger fafled to properly plan the audit (AU § 150, 02, AU § 311 03,
AU § 311 19, AU § 31120, AU § 311,21, AU § 312,16, AU § 318.09, AUr § 326,17, AU §
326.35, AU §320.17, AU § 339,03, AU § 339.10, AU § 339,18, and AU § 350.12).

i, The Planning Memorandum stated the audit would follow Single Audit
approach requirements for internal controls and vompliance, and that testing would be done to '
meet audit objectives, Testing procedures for the Single Audit wers limited to the federal
programs and were not documented as fo the effect on the audit &3 a whole, |

ii." The Audit Program reflected the general checklist of procedures to be

performed but w1thout objectives to describe the nature, timing, or extent of planned andit
procedures
i, Audit Strategy Worksheets (ASW) reflected assessments related to'the financial

| s'tatement assertions 1o plain the audit but there were no andit procedures with objectives to
describe the nature, timing, or extent of planned audit procedures, ’ |

b, ‘ Respondent Sullenger’s documentation lacked eyidenca 1o support her understanding
of the status and effectiveness of internal controls, Including those of suﬁervision, overtide, and
review, Sullenger’sunderstanding of risks was contradicted by information from the fraud

brainstorming session (AU § 150,02, AU § 312.11, AU § 314,26, AU § 314.40, AU § 314,54, AU

N, [

R R R L R I

¥ San Diégo deficiencies are similar to defisioncies noted in Modoo,
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§314.55, AU § 314,83, AU§316 13, AU §316.27, AU § 316,41, AU § 31642, AU § 31644
AU §316.,83, AU § 326,35, AU § 339,03, and AU § 339.10),

¢,  Respondent Sullenger did not obtain sufficient appropriate eviacntial matter to
support her opinion on the financial statements with regard to matérial balances presented in the
financial statements, such as accounts receivable, accounts payable, and unearned revenue (AU §
150,02, AU §312,18, AU § 316,68, AU § 318.71, AU § 318,74, AU § 326,04, AU § 326,08, AU
§ 329,05, AU § 330,03, AU § 339,10, and AU §350.26).

'cl. Respondent Sullenger failed to exercise due professional care in the performance and
reporting on the San Diego audit and by insufficient documentation regarding the os'tensibly
corrected prior year *finding” regarding reconciliations (AU § 150,02 and Yellow Book 4,09),

 RESPONDENTS TCA AND JACKSON

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE.
{Gross Negligence/Repeated Negligent Acts)
40, Respondents TCA and Jackson are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100,
subseation (v} of the Code on the grounds that Respondents TCA and I ackson committed gross

negligence and/or repeated negligent acts in Respondent TCA?s issuance of the 2012 Ridgecrest
audit report and performance by Respondent Jackson of audit procedures ‘that departed exiremely
from professional standards as follows: \

‘a, Respondent Jackson falled to properly plan the audit (AT § 150,02, AU § 31103, AU/
§311.19, AU § 311,20, AU § 311,21, AU § 318,08, AU § 318,09, AU §326,17, AU § 329,17, .
AU §339.03, AU § 339,10, and AU § 339.18),

i,  Theaudit planning memt').randum referenced that there was little segregation of
duties and that compliance testing of controls would not be neeessary, Respondent Jackson
planned to perform more substantive testing for balance sheet items, However, substantive
testing of Aceounts Recelvable, for example, does not reflect & substentive testing approach,

ii, The Audit Program reﬂected the gencral oheckhst of prooedures tobe

anof |

- NI

performecl but w1thout obJeotwes to describe the nature, uming? or extent of planned aucht "

procedures,
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iii,  Audit Strategy Worksheets (ASW) did not describe the nature, timing, or extent
of planned audit procedures and did not support the low risk assesgments,

b, Respondent Jackson failed to obtain a sufficient understanding of the entity and its
envu'onment fo assess risks and failed fo assess the status and effectiveness of internal controls,’
includmg those of superyision, override, and rewew. Jackson’s understanding of risks was
contradicted by information in the fraud memo (AU § 150,02, AU § 312,11, AU § 314,26, AU §
314,40, AU § 314,54, AU § 314,55, AU § 314.83, AU § 316,13, AU § 316.15, AU § 316,27, AU

§316.42, AU § 316,44, AU § 316,83, AU § 518,71, AU § 318,74, AU § 326,35, AU § 339,03;
and AU § 339,10),

c.  Respondent Jackson did not obtain sufficient appropriate evidentiary matter to
support his opinion oﬁ the financla) statements with regard to material balances presented. inthe
financial statements for accounts receivable, acoounts payable, and inventories (AU § 150,02, AU
§312.18, AU § 316.68, AU § 318,09, AU § 326.04, AU § 331.01, AU § 331,09, AU § 33110,
AU §331,11, AU § 331,12, AU § 339.03, and AU § 339,10),

d,  Respondent Jackson failed to exercise due professional care in the performanoc and
reportmg on the Ridgecrest audit (AU § 150, 02),

RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
FOURTH CAUSE FOR‘DISC[PLINE

(Violation of Business and Professions Code section 5097)

41, Respondents TCA, Tuoker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subject to disciplinézry action
under section 5100, subsection (6) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents violated section
5097 of the Code 1n conjunetion with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 68.2 by
failing to comply with audit documentation requirements as more particlarly set forth'in
paragraphs 38-40 and all of their subparts,

1 |
i
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RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE. *

(Report Conforming to Professional Standards)
42, Respondents TCA, Tncker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subject to disciplinary action

|| under section 5062 of the Code on the grounds that Respondents’ audit documentation does not

support the opinions rendered in the audit reports and, therefore, the andit reports do not conform
to professional standards, as more particularly set forth in pavagraphs 38-40 and’ all of their
subparts, '
- RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Compliance With Standards)

' 43, Re&bondcnts TCA; Tucker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subject t6 disciplinary action
under California Code of Regulations; title 16, section 58 on 1;:he grounds that Respondents failed
to comply with all applicable professional standards, including but not limited to GAGAS, GAAS
and ERISA regarding the audit documentation and performance of the audit, as more particnlarly
set forth in paragraphs 38-40 and all of their subparts.
RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE |
_ (Willful Violation) ,

44.' Respondents TCA, Tucker, Sullenget, and J ackson are subjeot to dlsoiplmary action

under section 5100, subseotlon 4] oftl'w Code on the grounds that Respondents wdlﬂxll‘y violated

various provisions of the Business and Professions Code and California Code of Regulations, as

|| more particularly set forth in paragraphs 18-43 and all of their subparts, |

PRAYER
WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matfers hersin alleged,

; and that following the hearing, the Cahfornia Board of Aocountancy 1ssue a dectsi

VA rerrem mrniin s PN

1, Revoking or suspending or otherwise 1mposmg disoiplme upon Certiﬂed Publm R

Accountancy Partnership Certificate No, 6980, 1ssued to TCA Partners LLP;
B
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2, Revoking or suspending or otheMise imposing discipline wpon Certified Public -
Aceountant Cerilficate No, 36244, Issued to Richard Edson Jackson;

3 ' Revoking, or suspending or c;tharwisc imposing discipline upon Certified Publie
Accountant Cerificate No, 72045, Issued o Jerrel Loe Tucker; '

4. Revoking or suspending or otherwise imposing diseipline upon Ccﬂiﬁed Pubhc
Accountant Certificate No, 88971, issued to Inger Alice Sullenger;

3. Ordering TCA, Partners LLP, Richard Edlson Jackson, Jerrel Lee Tucker, and Inger
Alice Sﬁllenggr to pay the Califorida Board of Accountancy the reasonable costs of the
investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section
5107; and '

6,  Taking such other and further actio s deemed necessary and proper,

H-POo— .

SWERE ™ "7
Exeoutive Officer

Celifornia Board of Accountancy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complatnant ’

8A2013111406/1113203 1 doex
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Attachment 8

: BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOQUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

- In the Matter of the Accusation Against;

TCA PARTNERS LLP
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Accountancy Partnership
Certificate No. PAR 6980
And
RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,
36244
And

JERREL LEE TUCKER, Partner
9074 N. Sierra Vista
Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,
72045
And
INGER ALICE SULLENGER, Partner
3046 Whispering Meadow Ln.
Plain City, UT 84404
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,
88971

Respondents,

Case No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-
2013-45, AC-2013-46 :

OAH No, 2014010481

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Diéciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the

California Board of\Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this

matter,

This Decision shall become effective on _

[—/-/5

It is so ORDERED /;lral, /('/

s

| Iy

L3

) U {
FOR THE CALIFORNIA BOARD OV
ACCOUNTANCY

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
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KAMALA D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California

KENT D, HARRIS

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

| PHILLIP L, ARTHUR

Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No, 238339
1300 T Street, Suite 123
P.0O. Box 944255
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
Telephone: (916) 322-0032
Facsimile: (916) 327-8643
E-mail: Phillip. Arthur@doj.ca.gov
Attorneys for Complainant

* BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT QF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Agalnst:

TCA PARTNERS LLP

1111 Herndon Avenue, #211

Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountancy Partnership
Certificate No, PAR 6980

And

RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211

Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,
36244

And

JERREL LEE TUCKER, Partner

9074 N, Sierra Vista

Fresno, CA 93720

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
72045 ‘

And

INGER ALICE SULLENGER, Partner
3046 Whispering Meadow Ln,

Plain City, UT 84404

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,
88971

Respondents,

1

Case No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-
2013-45, AC-2013-46

0OAH No, 2014010481
STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND

DISCIPLINARY ORDER
(INGER ALICE SULLENGER ONLY)

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (INGER ALICE SULLENGER ONLY) (AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-43,

AC-2013-46)
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IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:
PARTIES

1. Paiti Bowers ("Complainant”) is the Executi{/e Officer of the California Board of
Accountancy, She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this
matter by Kamala D. Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Phillip L, Arthur, |
Deputy Attorney General,

2, Respondents TCA Partners LLP ("Respondent TCA"), Richard Edson Jackson
(“Respondent Jackson”), Jerrel Lee Tucker (“Respondent Tucker”), and Inger Alice Sullenger
(“Respondent Sullenger™) are répresented in this proceeding by attorney Joshua S, Goodman,
Fsq., whose address is: 417 Montgomery St., 10th Fl,, San Prancisco, CA 94104,

3. Onor about May 12, 2005, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountancy Partnership Certificate No, 6980 to TCA Partners LLP (Respondent TCA),
The Certified Public Accouhtanoy Partnership Certificate was in full force and effect at all times
relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-
2013-46 and will expire on May 31, 2015, unless renewed,

4, Onor about December 3, 1982, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate No, 36244 to Richard Edson Jackson (Respondent Jackson), The
Certified Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-46 and
will expire on March 31, 2016, unless renewed.

5. Onor about September 20, 1996, the California Board of Accountancy issued
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. 72045 to Jerre! Lee Tucker (Respondent Tucker),
The Certified Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 and
will expire on November 30, 2015, unless renewed,

6, Onorabout April 21, 2004, the Californla Board of Accountancy issued Certified

Public Accountant Certificate No, 88971 to Inger Alice Sullenger (Respondent Sullenger). The
2

- STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (INGER ALICE SULLENGER ONLY) (AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45,

AG-2013-46)
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Certified Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought in Aceusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-201 3—46 and
will expire on October 31, 2014, unless renewed.’
JURISDICTION
7. Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 was filed

before the California Board of Accountancy (CBA), Department of Consumer Affairs, and is
ourrently pending against Respondents, The Accusation and all other statutorily required
documents were properly served on Respondents on December 9, 2013, Respondents-timely filed
their Notices of Defense contesting the Accusation,

8, A copy of Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46 is
attached as exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference,

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

9, Respondent Sullenger has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and
understands the charges and allegations in Acousation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-
45, AC-2013-46. Respondent Sullenger has also carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and
understands the effects of thig Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order.

10, Respondent Sullenger is fully aware of her legal rights in this matter, including the

right to a hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by

counsel at her own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against her; the
right to present evidence and to testify on her own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoenas
to compel the attendance of witnesses arid the production of documents; the right to
reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the
California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.

11, Respondent Sullenger voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives wp
each and every right set forth above,
111

! Unless ot_hérwise spéciﬁed, the term “Respondents” refers to Respondents TCA,
Jackson, Tucker, and Sullenger collectively, -
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CULPABILITY

12, Respondent Sullenger understands and agrees that if proven at a hearing, the charges
and all‘egations in Accusation No, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-2013-45, AC-2013-46
constitute cause for disciplining Respondent Sullenger’s Certified Publio Accountant Certificate

13.  Respondent Sullenger agrees that her Certified Public Accountant Certificate is
subject to diseipline and agrees to be bound by the CBA's probaticnary terms as set forth in the

Disciplinary Order below.

CONTINGENCY

14,  This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the California Board of Accountaney,
Respondenf Sullenger understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the
California Board of Accountancy may communicate directly with the CBA regarding this
stipulation and settlement, without notice to or participation by Respondent Sullenger or her
counsel, By signing the stipulation, Respondent Sullenger understands and agrees that she may
not withdraw her agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the CBA considers
and acts upon it, If the CBA fails to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the
Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this
paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the parties, and the CBA shall not
be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter,

15, The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF), electronie,
and facsimile copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order, including Portable
Document Format (PDF), electronic, and facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force
and effect as the originals,

16.  This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agresment,
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,
negotiations, and commitments (written or oral), This Stipulated Settlement and Diéoiplinary
Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a

writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties,
4
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17, In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the CBA may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following
Disciplinary Order;

DISCIPLINARY ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Certified Public Accountant Certificate No, 88971 issued
to Respondent Inger Alice Sullenger (Respondent Sullenger) is revoked. However, the
revoeation is stayed and Respondent Sullenger is placed on probation for five (5) years on the
following terms-and conditions,

1, Obey All Laws

Respondent Sullenger shall obey all federal, California, other states' and local laws,
including those rules relating to the practice of public accountancy in California,

2, Cost Reimbursement

Respondent Sullenger shall reimburse the CBA $15,000.00 for its investigation and
prosecution costs. The payment shall be made as follows: eighteen quarterly payments (due with
quarterly written reports),

3, Submit Written Reports |

Respondent Sullenger .éh,all submit, within 10 days of completion of the quarter, written
reports to the CBA on a form obtained from the CBA, The Respondent shall submit, under
penalty of perjury, such other written reports, declarations, and verification of actions as are
réquired. These declarations shallvcontain statements relative to Respondent's compliance with
all the terms and conditions of probation, Respondent Sullenger shall immediately execute all
release of information forms as may be required by the CBA or its representatives,

4, Personal Appearances

Respondent Sullenger shall, during the period of probation, appear in person at
interviews/meetings as directed by the CBA or its designated representatives, provided such
notification is accomplished 1n a timely manner, |
/11

/17
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5, Comply With Probation .

Respondent Sullenger shall fully comply with the terms and conditions of the prebation
imposed by the CBA and shall cooperate fully with representatives of the California Board of
Accountancy in its monitoring and iflvestigation of the Respondent's compliance with probation
terms and conditions,

6. Practice Investigation

Respondent Sullenger shall be subject to, and shall permit, a practice investigation of the
Respdndenf’s professional practice. Such a practice investigation shall be conducted by
representatives of the CBA, provided notification of such review is accomplished in a timely
manner, |

7. Comply With Citations

Respondent Sullenger shall comply with all final orders resulting from citations issued by
the California Board of Accountancy,

8. Tolling of Probation for Out-of-State Residence/Practice |

In the event Respondent Sullenger should leave California to reside or practice outside fhis
state, Respondent Sullenger must notify the CBA in writing of the dates of departure and return.
Periods of non-California residency or practice outside the state shall not apply to reduction of the
probationary period, or of any suspension, No obligation imposed herein, including requirements
to file written reports, reimburse the CBA costs, and make restitution to consumers, shall be
suspended or otherwise affected by such periods of out-of-state residency or practice except at the
written direction of the CBA. -

9. Violation of Probation

If Respondent Sullenger violates probation in any respect, the CBA, after giving
Respondent Sullenger notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out
the disciplinary order that was stayed. If an accusation or a petition to revoke probation is filed
against Respondent Sullenger during probation, the CBA shall have continuing jul*iédiotion until
the matter is final, and the period of probation shall be extended until the matter is final.

The CBA's Executive Officer may issue a citation under California Code of Regulations,
6
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Title 16, section 95, to a licensee for g violation of a term or condition contained in a decision

placing that licensee on probation,

10, - Completion of Probation

Upon successful completion of probation, Respondent Sullenger's license will be fully
restored,

| 11, Review of Audit and Review Engagements ‘

During the course of probation, Respondent Sullenger shall annually provide the Board
with a listing of all audit and review engagements Respondent Sullenger knows she will
undertake in the subsequent twelve month period. Along with the list of audit and review
engagements, Respondent Sullenger shall provide the Board with the date on which the final audit
and review report for each audit and review engagement is due, During each year of probation,
the Board will specify the date on which the list of audit and review engagements is due, allowing
at least fifteen (15) days for Respondent Sullenger to provide the list of engagements and their
due dates to the Board,

From the list of audit and review engagements and their due dates specificd each year by
Respondent Sulienger, the Board will select twenty-five percent (25%) but no more than fifteen
(15) audit and review engagements whose work papers and final reports shall be reviewed by a
qualified outside CPA approved by the Board, The Board may select all twenty-five percent
(25%) but no more than fifteen (15) audit or review engagements to be reviewed at one time, or
may select up to twenty-five percent (25%) but no more than fifteen (15) audit and review
engagements (o be reviewed throughout the course of each year of probation, Respondent
Sullenger shall maintain all work papers and final reports for all audit and review engagements
undertaken by Respondent Sullenger during the course of probation, enabling inspection by the
Board or qualified outside CPA,

Upon completion of the review of the work papers and final teports for cach selected audit

| orreview engagement, Respondent Sullenger shall submit a copy of the report with the reviewer's

conclusions and-findings to the Board, Review by the qualified outside CPA shall be at

Respondent Sullenger's expense,
7
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12, Coiltinuing Education Courses

Within the probationary tetm, Respondent Sullenger shall complete and provide proper
documentation of the following courses: eight hours of an audit documentation course, and
twenty-four hours of accounting and auditing training, ‘

Respondent Sullenger shall also complete four hours of continuing education in the course
subject matter pertaining to the following: a review of nationally recognized codes of conduet
emphasizing how the codes relate to professional responsibilities; case-based instruction focusing
on real-life situational learning; ethical dilemmas facing the accounting profession; or, business
ethics, ethical sensitivity, and consumer expectations within 120 days from the effective date of
this Order. The courses must be a minimum of one hour as described in California Code of
Regulations, title 16, section 88.2,

This shall be in addition to continuing education requirements for relicensing,

If Respondent Sullenger fails fo complete said courses within the time period provided,
Respondent Sullenger shall so notify the CBA and shall cease practice until Respondent Sullenger
completes said courses, has submitfed proof of same fo the CBA, and has been notified by the
CBA that she may resume practice.

Failure to satisfactorily complete the required courses as scheduled shall constitute
violation of probation,

13, Active License Status

Respondent Sullenger shall at all times maintain an active license status with the CBA,
including during any period of suspension, If the license is expired at the time the CBA's
decision becomes effective, the license must be renewed within 30 days of the effective date of
the decision,

14, Samples - Audit, Review or Compilation

During the period of probation, if Respondent Sullenger undertakes an audit, review, or
compilation engagement, Respondent Sullenger shall submit to the CBA as an attachment to the

required quarterly report a listing of the same, The CBA or its designee may select one or more

8
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must be submitted to the CBA or its designee upon request,

ACCEPTANCE

I'have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully

discussed it with my attorney, Joshua 8, Goodman, Esq, [ understand the stipulation and the

|| effect it will have on my Certified Public Accountant Certificate. T enter into this Stipulated

| Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be

bound by the Decision and Order of the California Board of Accountancy,

DATED: __sp/ /5“/;4"»5’/6/ i /}//z/ Sz/( Ve S e/,
INGER’ALICF SULLENGER /
Ruspond@m

i1

I have read and fully discussed with Respondent Inger Alice Sullenger the teems and
conditions and other matters contained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order,
[ approve its form and content,

DATED:

Joshua S, Goodman, Esq.
Attorney for Respondent Inger Alice Sullenger

ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is heveby respectfully
submitted for consideration by the California Board of Accountaney.

Dated: ' Respectfully submitted,

KAMALA D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California

KenT D, HARRIS

Supervising Deputy Attomey General

PHILLIP L, ARTHUR
Deputy Attomey General
Attorneys for Complainant

SAZ013111406
11501637 .doex
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must be submitted to the CBA or its designee upon request,
ACCEPTANCE
1 have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully
discussed it with my attorney, Joshua S, Goodman, Esq, I understand the stipulation and the
effect it will have on my Certified Public Accountant Certificate, I enter into this Stipulated
Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be
bound by the Declsion and Order of the California Board of Accountancy,

DATED:

TNGER ALICE SULLENGER
Respondent

111 v
I have read and fully discussed with Respondent Inger Alice Sullenger the terms and
conditions and other matters contained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order,

[ approve its form and content,

PATED: _/ )/ S/ L / / / L=

Joshﬁa g, Geodman, Fsa,
Attorney for Respondent Inger Alice Sullenger

ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the California Board of Accountancy,

Dated: i O f 07\() ! /(/ Respectfully submitted,

KAMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
KENT DD, HARRIS

Supetvising Deputy Attorne

7

encral

' Duty Attorney General
Atiorneys for Complainant

SA2013111406
11501637 docx
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‘KAMALAD, FIARRIS

Attorney Creneral of California

KENTD, HHARRIS

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

PrILLP L., ARTHUR,

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No, 238339
1300 I Street, Suite 125
PO, Box 944255 .-
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
Telephone; (916) 322-0032
Facsimile: (]916 327-8643
E-mail; Phillip.Arthur@doj.ca, gov

Attormeys for Complainant

BEFORE THE '
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

JERREL LEE, TUCKER, Partller

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case Nos, AC-2013-43, AC-2013-44, AC-
, ' 2013-45, AC-2013-46
|| TCAPARTNERS, LLP .
1111 Herndon Avenue, #211
Fresno, CA 93720 :
Certified Public Acconntancy Partnership ACCUSATION
Certificate No, PAR 6980

And
RICHARD EDSON JACKSON, Partner
1111 Herndon Avenwe, #211
Fresno, CA 93720
Certified Public Accouutant Certificate NO!
36244

And

9074 N, Sierra Vista

Fresno, CA. 93720

gegzified Public Accountani Certuﬁoate No.
2045 .

And
INGER ALICE SULLENGER, Partner
1111 X, Herndon Avenue, 11 , '
Fresno, CA 93720
ger’tllt‘ied PubMc Accountant Certiﬁcate No,
8971,

Respondents,

A11

Acousation
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'Publio'Acoountancy. Partnership Certificate No, 6980 to TCA Partners LLP (Respondent), The

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No, 72045 to Jerre] Lee Tucker (Respondent). The

|| Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all fimes relevant to the charges

"

Coﬁplginant alloges: 4
| PARTIES
1. Patti Bowers (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity as
the Executive Officer of the California Bo&.ard of‘Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affalrs,
2. Onorabout May 12, 2005, the California Board of Aceountancy issued Certified

Certified Public Accovntancy Partnership Certificats was in full foree and effect at all times
relevant to the charges brought he;ein and will expire on May 31, 2015, unless ronewed, |

3,  Onorabout December 3, 19822 the California Board of Accountancy issued Cer.tiﬁed'
Public Accountant Certificate No, 36244 to Richard Edson J %zokson (Respondent). The Certified
Public Accountant Certificate was in full force end effoct af all times relevant.to the charges
brought herein and will’eXpire on March 31, 2014, .unless renewed,

4, Onorabout September 20, 1996, the California Board of Accountancy issned

Certified Ifublio Accbuntant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought herein and will expire on November 30, 2013;_unless rene\'ved.

5. Onorabout April 21, 2004, the California Board of Accountancy lssued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate ﬁo. 88971 1 Tnger Alice Sullenger'(ReSpont.ien.t). The Cel‘ﬁﬂ@d

Brought hereln and will expire on Qotober 31, 2014, unless renewed',
| JURISDICTION
6. This Accusation is brought before the California Board o,f Accountancy (CBA),
Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All section

references are to the Business and Professions Code (Code) unless otherwise indicated.
"i |

mrt

1 Unless otherwise specified, the term “Respondents” refers to Respondents TCA,
Jackson, Tucker, and Sullenger collectively,

1

. | 2 .
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'unde;r the authority granted under this chapter, , . .’

7, Section 5100 of the Code vstatcs, in pertinent part;

"Afer notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend, or refuse 1o renew any permit or
certificate granted under Article 4 (commencing with Section 5070) and Article 5 (commencing
with Section 5080), or may censure the holder of that permit or certificate for unprofessional
conduct that includes, but is not limited to, one or any combination ofthe following causes;

". v

"(o) Dishonesty, fraud, gross negligence, or fepeated negligent acts committed in the same
or different cngagéments, for the same or different clients, or any combination of engagements or -
olients, each resuliing in a viclation of applicable professional standards that indicate a.lack of
competenocy in the practice of public accountancy or in the performance of the bookkesping

operations described in Section 5052,

[
pee !

"(e) Violation of Section 5097, o | B ,

L}

(2) Willful violation of this chapter or dny rule or regulation promulgated by the board
- REGULATIONS
8, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 52 (Regulations), states:
“a) A ligensee shall respond to any inquiry b_y the Board or its appointed representatives
within 30 days, The response shall include making available all files, working papers and other

" documents requested, S

“() A licenseo shall respond 10 any subpoena issued by the Board ox its executive officer

. or the assistant executive officer in the absence of the executive officer within 30 days and in

accordance with the provisions of the Accountaucy Act and other applicable laws or regulations.
“(6) A licensee shall appear in person upon written notice or subpoena issued by the Board
or 1ts exeoutwe ofﬁcer or the ass1stant executive ofﬁoer in the absenoe of tho exeoutwe officer,
N
1t

Accusation
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“d) A liconsee shall provide true and accurate information and respon’seé to questions,
subpoenas, interrogatories or other requests for information. or documents and not take any action
to obstruct any Board inquiry, inv'estigation, hearing or proceeding. ' ‘

9 Section 58 of the Regulations provides that Hoensees engaged in the practice of
public accountancy shall comply with all applicable professional standards, including but not
limited to generally accepted acoounting principles and generally accepted auditing standards,

10,  Section 68,2 of the Regulations states that: '

"‘(a) To provyide for the identification of audit documentation, audit documentation shall
include an index or guide to the audii docymentation which identifies the components of the audit
documentation, :

(b) In addition to the requirements of Business and Professions Code Section 5097(b),
audit documentation shall provide the date the document or working paper was completed by the
preparer(s) and any reviewer(s), and shall include the Identity of the preparer(s) an:d any
reviewer(s), h " ' ' ,

(&) Awndit dooumeritation shall include both the report date and the date of i_s'suance of the
report,” | ' | |
| STATUTES

11, Section 5062 of the Code provides that a licensee shall issue a report which
conforms to professional standards upon-completion of a compilation, review or 'audit of financial |
Statements,

12, Section 5097 of the Cods states: L

“(a) Audjt documentation shall be g lloensee's records of the procedures appliad, the tests
performed, the information obtained, and the pertinent conclusions reached in an audit
engagement, Audit documentation shall include, but is not limited to, programs, analyses,

memoranda, letters of confirmation and representation, copies or abstracts of company

documents, and schedules or oommcntarics prepmed or obtained by the llcensee,

cves b 5 ey =

relevant knowledge and experience, having no prevtous conneotion with the andit engage:ment, fo

4

Accusation

“(b) At ¢ documentation Shall contain suffictent ‘documentation fo enable a reviewer w with
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understand the nature, timing, extent, and results of the auditiné or other procedures performed,
evidence obtained, and conclusions reached, and to determine the identity of the persons who
performed and reviewed th'e work, |

“c) Failure of the audit documentation fo document the procedures appliad,; tosts
performed, evidenoe obtained, and relevent conclusions reached in an engagement shall raise a
presumption that the procedures were not applied, tests were not performed, information was not
obtained, and relevant conclusions were not reached, This presumption shall be a rebuttable
presumption affcctihg the burden of proof relative fo those portions of the audit that are not '
dooumented as required In subdivision (b), The burden may be met by a preponderance of the
evidence, ' '

“{d) Aundit dooumentation shall be malntained by a licensee for the longer of the followmg' "

*(1) The minimum period of retention provided in subdivision (e):

“(2) 4. period sufficient to satisfy professional _Standards an¢l to comply with applicable
laws and regulations, ' . |

“&) Audit documentation shall be maintained for a miniﬁnum of seven years which shall be

extended during the pendency of any board investigation, disciplinary action, or legal action

"involving the licensee or the licensee's firm, The board may adopt regulations o establish a

different retention period for specific categories of audit documentation where the board finds .

that the nature of the dooumentation, warrants it

“f Licensees shall maintain a written decumentation retention and destruction poligy that -

‘shall set forth the licensee's practices and procedures oorﬁplying with this article,

13, Section 3101 of the Code states:

"After notice and hearing the board shall revoke the registration and permit to practice of'a
partnership if at any time it does not have all the qualifications prescribed by the section of this
chapter under which it‘ qualified for registration, After notice and hearing the board may revoke,

susPend or reﬁ.lse to renew the permit to pract:ce of'a partne1ship or may censure the holder of

B Tt [

suoh penmf for any of the oauses enumerated in Sectlon 5100 and for the followmg ;dditiona,l |

causes;

Accusation
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“(a) Tha revooation or suspension of the certificate or registration or the revocation or.
suspension of or refusal to renew the permit to practice of any partner,

(b) The cancellation, revocation or suspension of certificate or other aythority o practice or
refusal to renew the certificate or other authority of the partnership of any partner thereof'to
pracfioe public aceountancy in any other state,” ' '

14, 'Scotion 5105 of the Code states:

“The expiration, vancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a license, practics privilege, or
other authority to practice public accountancy by operation of Yaw or by order or decision ofthe
board or & court of law, the placement of g license on a retired st'atus, or the voluntary surrender
of a license by a licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commetce or proceed with
any investigation of or action or.disciplinary proceeding against the llcensee, or to render a '
decision suspending or r?voking the Heense,” '

~ CIVIL CODE

15, Cahforma Clvil Code section 1798,81,5 stafes, in pertinent part;

“(a) Itisthe intent ofthe Leglslature {0 ensure that personal information abowt California .
residents is protected, 'i“o that end, the purpose of this seetion Is to enconrage businesses that own |,
or license personal information abdut Califomi,ans to provide reasonable seourity for that
in'fqrmation. -For the purpose of t}lis section, the phrase "owns or loenses" is inteﬁdcd to include,

but is not limited to, personal information that a business retains as part of the business' internal

| customer account or for the purpose of using that information in transactions with the person to

whom the information relates, ,

" “(h) A business that owns or licenses personal information abomt a California resident shall
'mplement and maintain reasonable seourity procedures and practices appropriate to the nature of
the information, to prdteot the personal information from unauthorlzed access, destruction, vse,
modlfication, or disclosure, '

“(o) A busmess that discloses pcrsonal information about a California resident pursuant to

a contraot thh a nonafﬂhated thlrd party shall require by oontraot that the thlrd party implefnéht

and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices appropriate to the nature of the

.6
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information, to protect the personal information from unauthbriz’sd aceess, destruction, uss,
modiﬁéation, or disclosure.

“(d) For purposes of this section, the following terms have the following meenings:

“(1) "Personal information" means an individt}al"s first name or first initial and his or hér'
last name in q,ombination with any one or more ofthe following data elements, when eifher the
name of the data elements are not encrypted or redacted:

- (A) Social security number, . , " '
' COST RECOVERY

16, Section 5107(a) of the Codc'states: '

"The executive officer of the board may request the admini;strative law judge, as part of the "
proposed decision in a disciplinary proceeding, to direct any holder of a permit or certifioats |
found to have commitied a violation or Violatiqns of this qhaptei' to pay to the board all reasonable
costs of investigation and prosecution of the case, including, but not limited 1o, attorneys' fees.

« The board shall not recover costs inowired at the administrative hearing,"
APPLICABLE PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

17, -Standards of practice pertinent to this Accusation and the engagements n 1ssue

include, without Hmitation:

" a,  Ognerally Accepted Auditing Standards (“GAAS”) issued by the American Institute

\| of Certified Public Accountants (“AICP ). Theten GAAS (AU § 15 O) are interrelated and

discussed in the Statements on AuditingStandards ("SAS™). Amongthe SAS relevant herein, in
addition to AU § 150 which sets forth GAAé, are AU § 230 (Dwe Professional Care); AU § 311,
(Planning and Supervision); AU § 312 (Planning the Audit); AU § 314 (Understanding the Entity
and its Bnvironment and Assessing the Riské of Material Misstatement); AU § 316 l
(Consideration ofF,raudj; AU § 318 (Performing Audit Procedures in Response to Assessed
Rigks and Evaluating the Audit Evidence Obtained); AU § 326 (Audit Evidence); AU § 329
(Analytxca] Procedures), AU § 331 (Inventories), AU § 339 (Audit Dooumentation) AU § 350
(Aud1t Sampling) and AU § 560 (Subsequant Bvents) a
11/
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b, Generally Accepte& Government Auditing Standards (“GAGAS™) are discussed in

| the GAO’s Government Auditing Standards, 2007 Revision, as amended (“Yellow Book™)

promulgated by the U.S, Government Accountability Office. The Yellow Book, incorporates the
ton GAAS, | | |

¢,  Single Andits are-audits condusted under the standards set forth by the bf‘ﬁce of
Management and Budget in OMB Ciroular A-133 in addition to the requirements of the Yollow
Book, ' .

d,  The Brployee Retirement Income Seourity Act (“ERISA™) of 1974 establlshed
aunditing and reporting guidelines for defined benefit and defined contribution plans with 100 or
more participants. The Auditing Standards Board issued the interpretativ;a publication Audit and
Accounting Guide for Employment Benefit Plans (“Guide”) to assist management of t;mployee
benefit p]aﬁs’ in the preparation of financial statemeﬁts in oonfo.rmity with US Generally Aoccepted
Accounting P'rinoiples (“GAAP") and 1o agsist auditoré in auditing and reporting on such financlal
statements, The interpretive guide Is noﬁ~authoritgtive but the suditor should be prepared to
ac{dress how the auditor complied with the SAS pravisions addtessed by the auditing guidance.
The Guide is codified by.the “AAG-EBP” nuraber. The Relevant AAG-EBP chapters include
Chapter 5 (Planning and General Avditing Considcraﬁon_s_); Chapter 6 (Internal Control), Chapter
7 (Auditing Investments), Chapter 8 (Auditing Contributions Received and Related

. Contributions); Chapter 9 (Auditing Benefit Payments); Chapter 10 (Auditing Participant Data,

Participant Allqcatio;ls, and Plan Ob,liga“nions), and Chapter 13 (The Auditor’s Report).
 FACTUAL BACKGROUND
2008 County of Modoe Audit |
18.  Respondent TCA Partners, LLP (TCA) jssued an auditor’s report on the financial
statements of the Cownty of Modoe® (Modog) for the year ending June 30, 2008, The auditor's’
report, dated April 17, 2009, stated that the audit was conducted in accordance with GAGAS,

similar to deficiencies noted on other audits, Tucker’s deficiencies are deseribed in the North
Hawaii section and Sullenger’s deficiencles in the San Diego seotlon,

8
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audit of North Hawaix notcd rriultxple deﬁoicnoics in TCA’s performanoe of the audlt

GAAS, and Ciroular A~133, Respondent Sullenger was the engagement partner, Respondent
Tuoker was the reviewing partner,

19, On Octobet 30, 2009, the State Controller § Office (SCO) issued its quality control
review of Respondent TCA's andit for Modoo, a governmental unit, ’The SCO’s report, diselosed
that TCA’s audit was not performed in agcordance with the standards and requirements sef forth
in GAGAS, GAAS, and Cireular A-133, | |

20, The SCO specifically noted the following deficiencles; the andit was not properly
planned, supervised and reviewed; the anditor failfed 1o obtain a sufficlent understanding of
internal controls, the auditor did not acourately assess audit risk; the auditor failed 1o obtain
sufficlent appropriate audit evidence; the auditor failed to exercise due professional care; and the
auditor failed to comply with standards, ‘

21.  Because of the deficiencies, the SCO felt that users could not rely on the aﬁdi‘cor's

opinions that Modoo’s financial statements fairly presented the county’s financial position or that

Modoc complied with federal program requirements,

22, The CBA received the referral from the §CO,

23, OnNovember 11, 2009, TCA informed the Modoe County Administrative Officer
that TCA withdrew its audit report dated April 17, 2009 for the year ending June 30, 2008,

24, The CBA requested and received andit documentation for Modoo from respondents
TCA and Sullenger, , '

2010 North Hawaii Community Hospital, Inc. Aundit

25, Respondent Tucker, through Respondent TCA, issued an auditor’s report on the
financial statements of the North Hawall Community Hospital, Inc. 401(K) Plan (North Hawaii)
for the year ending December 31, 2010, The auditor's report, dated June 29, 2011, stated that the
audit was conducted in accordance with GAAS and referenced supplamental mforxnatlon.lequu ed
by thc Department of Labor (DOL) and ERISA,

26. The CBA reoewed a referral from the DOL. The 1 quahty revicw of TGA’s 2010

(1
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27, * The DOL noted that the audit was not properly planned; the auditor failed to obtain

sufficient appropriate audit evidence in the areas of internal controls, investments, eontributions,

benefit payments, participant data, adminisirative expenses, and subsequent events; and the audit

was not conducted In accordance with GAAS,

28, Because of the deficiencies, the DOL felt that the guditor’s opinion on the plan's
‘ﬁnancial staternents was not supported by the sudit procedures performed,

29. The CBA. requested and received audit documentation for North Hawali from
respondenfs TCA, and Tucker,

011 San Diego American Indian Healt

Center Audit
30, Respondent Sullenger, throngh Respondent TCA, issued the auditor’s report under

| the requirements of OMB Circular A=133, known as a Single Auvdit, on the finencial statements

for the San Diego American Tndian Health Center'(San Diego) for the year ending June 30, 2011,

: The Single Audit report, dated December 7, 2011, stated that the andit was conducted in

1| accordance with GAAS and GAGAS, and referenced supplemental information required under

OMB Circular A-133, _ '

31, 'The CBA requested and received audit documentation for San Diego from
respondents TCA, Sullz:nger, and Tucker,

2012 Ridpecrest Regional Hospital Andits

32. Respondent Jackson, through Respondent TCA, issued the auditor’s report on the
financial statements for Ridgeorest Regional Hospital (Ridgeorest) for the' fiscal year ending

1t Yanuary 31, 2012, The auditor’s report was dated April 27, 2012, and stated that the audit was

conducted in accordance with GAAS, .

33, Respondent Sullenger, throngh Respondent TCA, issued the Single Audit report for
Ridgecrest for the fiscal year é.nding Janﬁ,ary 31,2012, The Single Andit report, da’;cd Tuly 17,
2012, stated that the audit was conducted In aecordance with GAAS and GAGAS, and oontained

" DafioTehelos i SullehigeR's Woik a5 Gtled oH 1T SAT DISES A A St ilar (o ow

found on the Ridgeorest Single Audit and are not additionally desceribed in the Ridgecrest section,
Only Jackson's deficiencies are described in the Ridgecrest section,

10

~ Aconsation




WO N\ oy ot RWwWw

10~

11
12

13

14
13
16
17
18

19 |

20
2]
22
23
24

25

260

27
28

supplemental information required under OMB Circular A-133. Sullenger’s audit documentation
reflected her reliance on work done by Respondent Jackson during the Ridgecrest financial
statement audit, ' ' ' ‘

34, The CBA requested and recetved audit documentation for Ridgecrest from
Respondents TCA, Sullenger, and Tucker,

Peer Reviews '

35, " Respondent TCA received a system of quality control review (peer review) for the
year ended Qctober 31, 2006, The qualified peer review report, dated May 8, 2007, included

comments that indicated that reviewed items did not conform to the requirements of professional

' standards in all materlal respects. Issues noted in the letter of comments were that reference

materials were not consulted on engagemeﬁts in specialized Industries, including govermment
gudits, and that finm policies did not require speeific audit documentation when accepted auditing
procedures were not deemed necessary, ,

36, Respondent TCA recelved a pear review teport that reflected a rating of Pass with
Deficiency (rating nomenclature was updatad in 2009) for the review yéar- ending October 31,
2009; The peer rcviéw repart included deficiencies in the performance of an smployee benefit
plan audit which included thet required disclosures were omitted and certain tests speolfic to
employee benefit plans were not performed or documentsd, Deficiencies notedinthe
performance of an audit performed under GAGAS Included that disbursement testing did not
identify programs 1o \'Nhich they corfespondeﬁ an‘d, that compliance festing of controls was
insufﬁcieﬁt. _ . _ ‘ ‘

37, The CBA reviewed the three additional audits deseribed above that were performed
and issued by the Respondents subseciuent 10 the recelpt of the 2007 qualified peer review
containing comments, the 2009 $CO’s notification of deficiencies and the 2010 Pass with
Defloiency peerreview, |
1t '

i
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SPONDENTS TCA AND TUC
FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCYPLINE?

(Gross Negligence/Repeated Negligent Acts)

38, Respondents TCA and Tucker are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100,
subsection (c) of the Cods on the grounds that Respondents TCA and Tucker committed gross
negligence and/or repeated nogligent acts In Respondent TCA’s issuance of the 2010 North
Hawaii audit report and performance by Respondent Tucker of audit proocdures that departed
extremely from professional standards as follows: ‘

a. Respondent Tucker falled to properly plan the audit (AU'l 50.02, AU 311,03, AU
31108, AU 31109, AU § 31113, AU § 311,14, AU § 31115, AU § 311,20, AU § 31121, AU §
318,09, ATJ § 326.17, AU §329.01, AU § 329.06, AU § 339,03, AU § 339,10, AU § 332,18, and
AAG-EBP 3.28).

i, The understanding with the client lacked required wording regarding 'l
‘management’s responsibilities in ensuring compliénoe with apﬁlicable laws and regulations,
informing the auditor about known or suspected fraud and did not deseribe any procedures
relative to the supplemental information, | |

i, Respondent Tucker's augit strategy did not descr be areas of rxslc and did not

include the nature, timing, and extent of procedures that responded to the planned risk
assessment, | )

iil,  Respondent Tuoker did not apply preliminary analytical procedures.

b | R_esi)ondent Tucker did not obtain a sufficient understanding of the nature ofNor‘th
Hawail and its environment to assess risks, inciuding control risk. Comments in the
documentation eentered on management and did not consider risks or controls present in fiduciary
entities (AU § 150,02, AU § 312,11, AU § 314.26, AU §314.40, AU § 314.54, AU § 314,55, AU
§ 314.83, AU 316,41, AU § 316,83, AU § 339,03, AU § 33_9.10, and AAG-EBP 6.08),

111

* Deficlenies noted in North Haweki ate similac to deflciencles noted in Modos,

12
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¢.  Respondent Tﬁckcr did not obtain sufficient appropriate evidential matter to support
his opinion on the financial statcﬁwnts with rogard to material balances presented in the financial
statements for investments and other assets, participant Joan balances, and employer and
empioyce oontributions (AU § 150,02, AU § 312.18, AU § 318,74, AU § 326,04, AU § 939,03,
AU § 339,10, AAG-EBP 7.65, AAG-EBP 7,66, AAG-EBP 8,06, AAG-EBP 10,05, and AAG-
EBP 10.19). :

d,  Respondent Tucker failegi to perform proper cut-off procedures including, but not
Timited to, contribution amounts, the timing of 6ontr§bution doposits, and unrecorded liébilities ‘
(AU § 150,02, AU § 339,03, AU § 339,10, AU § 360,11, AUJ § 560,12, AAG-EBP 8,06, and
AAG-EBP 10.19), |

;e. | Respondent Tucker falled to .apply auditixig procedures to individual participant
accounts, participant loans, and other participant date to cdmply with ERISA, re;quireménts (AU §
33;9.03, AU § 339,10, AAG-EBP 8.02, AAG-EBP §.02,'AAG—EBP 10,02, and AAG-EBP 10.05),

f.  Respondent Tucker failed to perform analytical review procédures in the review stage
of the audit (AU § 329,01, AU § 339,03, and AU § 339.10), .

g. Respoﬁdent Tucker fafled to exercise due professional care in tﬁe p;:rformance and
'reporting on the North Hawail audit by disclosing approximately 1,000 participant sociel security
numbers, un-redacted, in the audit dogwmentation provided to the CBA, during its investigation,
and by issuiné a limited scope audit when he did not perform audit procedutes necessary 1o allow |

him to issue & limited soopé audlt report (AU § 150,02, AAG-EBP 7,66, AAG-EBP 13.26, AAG-

| BBP 13.27, and California Civil Code section 1798.81,5),

(1t
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RESPONDENTS TCA AND SULLENGER.
SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE®  *

. (Gross Negligence/Repeated Nogligent Acts)

39, Respondents TCA and Sullenger are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100,
subsectiori (o) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents TCA and Sullenger committed gross
' negligenclw and/or repcateé negligent acts in Respondent TCA's issuance of the 2011 San Diego
audit report and performance by Respondent Sullenger of_ audit procedures that departed
cxtrémely from professional standards as follows;

a,  Respondent Sullenger failed to propetly plan the audit (AU § 150, 02 AU § 311 03,
AU §311 19, AU § 311,20, AU § 311,21, AU § 312,16, AU § 318,09, AU § 326.17, AU §
326.35, AU § 329,17, AU § 339,03, AU § 339,10, AU § 339.18, and AU § 350.12),

i The Planning Memorandum stated the audit would follow Single Audit
approach requirements for internal controls and compliance, and that testmg would be done fo
meet audit objectives, Testing procedures for the Single Audit were Hmited to the federal
programs and were not documented as 1o the effect on the audit as a whole, |
| fi.' The Audit Program reflected the goneral cheoklist of procedures to be
performed but without objectives to describe the nature, timing, or extent ofplauned audit
proccdures

fil,  Andit Strategy Worksheets (ASW) reflected assessments related to'the financial
s‘ta..tement éssertions to plat the audit but there were no audif procedures with objectives to
describe the nature, timing, or extent of planned andit procedures, | |

b, ' Respondent Sullenger’s documentation lacked evidence to support her understanding
of the status and effectiveness of internal controls, inclading those of subervision, overtide, and
review, Sullenger’s understanding of fisks was coniradicted by informafion from the fraud

brainstorming session (AU § 150.02, AU § 312,11, AU § 314.26, AU § 314.40, AU § 314,84, AU

010 memimes emy wee

4 Séﬁ'biegbbdéﬁcieﬁoies are similar to deficlencles noted in Modoe,
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§314.55, AU §314.83, AU§ 316,13, AU § 31627, AU § 316,41, AU § 316,42, AU § 316,44,
AU § 316,83, AU § 326,35, AU § 339,03, and AU § 339.10), ‘ '

0.  Respondent Su'llenger,did not obtain sufficient apprbpriate cv’i&ential matter to
support her opinion on the financial statements with regard to matérial balances presented in the
financial statements, such as accounts receivable, accounts payable, and unearned revenus (AU §
150.02, AU §312,18, AU §316.68, AU § 318,71, AU § 318.74, AU § 326,04, AU § 326,08, AU
§ 329,05, AU § 339,03, AU § 339,10, and ATJ §330.26).

4, Respondent Sullenger failed to exervise due professional care in the performance and
reporting on the San Diego audit and by insufficient documentation regarding the os'tensibly
corrected prior year “finding” regarding reconciliations (AU § 150,02 and Yellow Book 4.09),

‘ RESPONDENTS TCA AND JACKSON
THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE.
(Gross Negligence/Repeated Negligent Acts)

40, Respondents TCA and Jackson are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100,
subsestion (¢} of the Code on the grounds that Respondents TCA and J ackson committed gross
negligence and/or repeated negligent acts in Respondent TCA’s issuance of the 2012 Rldgeorest
audit report and performance by Respondent Jackson of audit procedures’ that departed extremoly
from professional standards as follows: \

a.  Respondent Jackson failed to properly plan the audit (AU § 150.02, AU § 31 1.(53, Al
§311.19, AU § 311.20, AU § 311,21, AU § 318,08, AU § 318.09, AU" § 326,17, AU § 329.17,‘ :
AU §339.03, AU § 3.39.10,' and AU § 339,18),

i, The audit planning memc}randum reforenced that there was little segregation of
duties and that compliance testing of controls would not be necessary, Respondent Jackson
planned to perform more substantive testing for balance sheet ltems, However, substantive
testing of Aocopnts Recelvable, for example, does not reflect a substantive testing approach,

1i; The Audit Program reﬂected the gencral oheckhst of procedures to be

¥ ) = \esstimie 13y
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pe;rformed but without objeot ves to desonbe the nature tumng, or exfent of planned aud1t T

procedures,
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) jii,  Audit Strategy Worksheets (ASW) did not describe the nature, timing, or extent
of planned audit procedures and did not support the low risk assessments,

b,  Respondent Jackson failed to obtain a sufficient understanding of the entity and its -
environment to agsess risks and failed to assess the status and effeotiveness of internal controls,’
inclﬁding those (l)f supervision, override, and review. Jackson’s understanding of risks was
contradicted by information in the fraud memo (AU § 150,02, AU § 312,11, AU § 314,26, AU §
31440, AU § 314,54, AU § 314,55, AU § 314,83, AU § 316,13, AU § 316,15, AU § 316,27, AU

§316.42, AU § 316,44, AU § 316,83, AU § 318,71, AU-§ 318.74, AU § 326,35, AU § 339,03,

and AU § 339,10,

¢, Respondent Jackson did not obtain sufficient appropriate evidentiary matter to
support his opinion on the financial statements with regard to material balances pres.ented' in the
financial statements for accounts receivable, accounts payable, and inventories (AU § 150,02, AU
§ 312,18, AU § 316,68, AU § 318.09, AU § 326,04, AU § 331.01, AU § 331,09, AU § 33110,
AU §331.11, AU § 331,12, AU § 339,03, and AU § 339,10),

d.  Respondent Jackson failed to exercise due professional cars in the performance and
reporting on the Ridgeorest audit (AU § 150,02), o

RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
FOURTH CAUSE FOR 'DISCIPLH\IE

(Violat;dn of Business and Professions Code section 5097)

41, Respondents TCA, Tucker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subject to disciplinéry action
under section 5100, ,su‘bscotion (¢) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents violated section
5097 of the Code iﬁ conjunction with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 682 by
falling to comply with audit documentation requirements as more partioularly set forth'in
paragraphs 38-40 and all of their swbparts,

11 |
1
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RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
FIETH CAUSE, FOR DISCIPLINE

(Report Conforming to Professional Standards) '

42, Respondents TCA, Tucker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subject ta diseiplinary action
under section 5062 of the Code on the grounds that Respon_éients’ audit documentation does not
support the optnions rendered in the sudit reports and, therefore, the audit reports do not conform
to professional standards, as more partienlarly set forth in paragraphs 38-40 and' all of thely
subparts, '

RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
{Compliance With Standards) |

43, Reébondents TCA; Tuacker, Sullenger, and Jackson are subject t6 disciplinary action
Iunder California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 58 on the grounds that Respondents failed
to cdmpl_y with all applicable professional standards, inoludiné but not limited to GAGAS, GAAS
and BRISA regarding the audit documentation and perfarmance of the a,udit;. as more pa‘rtigularly
set forth in patagraphs 38-40 and all of their subparts,

RESPONDENTS TCA, TUCKER, SULLENGER, AND JACKSON
SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCYPLINE
(Willful Vlolatlon) ,
A4, Respondents TCA, Tucker, Sullenger, and J ackson are subj @ct to dlsmplmary action

under section 5100, subseot] on (g) of the Code on the grounds that Respondents wulthlly violated

varjous provisions of the Business and Professions Code and California Code of Regulations, as

3 || more particularly set forth in paragraphs 18-43 and all of their subparts,

PRAYER
WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,

, and that following the hear ng, the Califorma Board of Aocoun’cancy 1ssue :! demsion

o 1o ]
w2

1! | Revokmg or suspanding or othewvxse unposing dlsoipline upon Gertiﬁcd Publ
Accountancy Partnership Certificate No, 6980, issued to TCA Partners LLP;

17
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:2. Revoking or suspending or otherwlise imposing disoipline upon Certified Public -
Accountant Certificate No, 36244, Issued to Richard Edson Jackson;

3, ‘ Revoking, or suspending or 6therwise imposing discipline upon Cerilfied Public
Accountant Certificate No, 72045, issued to Jerrel Lee Tucker; '

4, Revoking or suspending or otherwise imposing discipline upon Cemﬁed Pubho
Accountant Certificate No, 88971, issued to Inger Alice Sullenger;

5, Ordering TCA. Partners LLP, Richard Edson J ackson, Jerrel Lee Tucker, and Inger
Alice Sullenger to pay the California Board of Accountancy the reasonable costs of the
investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section
3107; and

6. Taking such other and further actio

3 deemed necessary and proper,

Execuﬁve Officer

California Board of Acoountancy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of Californis

Complainant

8A2013111406/11132031.doox
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Attachment 9

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. AC-2014-11

MICHAEL S. MITCHELL CPA, INC,;
MICHAEL STEPHEN MITCHELL

P.O. Box 8320, PMB 159

San Luis, AZ 85349

Certified Public Accountancy Corporation
Certificate No. COR 61539,

and

MICHAEL STEPHEN MITCHELL

P.O. Box 8320, PMB 159

San Luis, AZ 85349

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
CPA 20146 .

Respondent,

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the
California Board of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this

matter.

This Decision shall become effective on E"" ' \ - l 6

It is so ORDERED lQA ‘O~ /L{

2

ALl ay M,
FOR THE CALIFORNIA BOARD @/
ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
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KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California

GREGORY J. SALUTE

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

WILLIAM D, GARDNER

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 244817
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-2114
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

MICHAEL S. MITCHELL CPA, INC.;
P.O. Box 8320, PMB 159

San Luis, AZ 85349

Certified Public Accountancy Corporation
Certificate No. COR 6159,

and

MICHAEL STEPHEN MITCHELL

P.O. Box 8320, PMB 159

San Luis, AZ 85349

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
CPA 20146

Respondents.

Case No. AC-2014-11

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
DISCIPLINARY ORDER

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:

PARTIES

1. Patti Bowers ("Complainant") is the Executive Officer of the California Board of

Accountancy. She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this

matter by Kamala D. Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by William D. Gardner,

Deputy Attorney General. |
I

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (AC-2014-11)
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2. Respondent Michael S. Mitchell CPA, Inc. and respondent Michael Stephen Mitchell
(collectively, “Respondent”) are representing themselves in this proceeding and has <l:hosen not to
exercise his right to be represented by counsel.

| 3. Onor about September 11, 2008, the California Board of Accountancy issued
Certified Public Accountancy Corporation Certificate No. COR 6159 to Michael S, Mitchell
CPA, Inc. The Certified Public Accountancy Corporation Certificate was in full force and effect
at all times relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No. AC-2014-11 and will expire on
September 30, 2014, unless renewed.

On or about April 26, 1974, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified Public
Accountant Certiﬁcate Number CPA 20146 to Michael Stephen Mitchell. The Certified Public
Accountant Certificate was invfull force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought
herein and will expire on July 31, 2015, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

4. Accusation No. AC-2014-11 was filed before the California Board of Accountancy
(CBA), Department of Consumer Affairs, and is currently pending against Respondent. The
Accusation and all other statutorily required documents were properly served on Respondent on
April 4, 2014. Respondent timely filed his Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation.

5. Acopy of Accusation No. AC-2014-11 is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated

herein by reference.

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

6.  Respondent has carefully read, and understands the charges and allegations in
Accusation No. AC-2014-11. Respondent has also carefully read, and understands the effects of
this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order.

7.  Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the right to a
hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by counsel at
his own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him; the right to
present evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoenas to compel

the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to reconsideration and
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court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the California
Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.

8.  Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and
every right set forth above. ‘

CULPABILITY

9.  Respondent admits the truth of each and every charge and allegation in Accusation
No. AC-2014-11. With respect to the Sixth Cause for Discipline, respondent denies that he
intentionally provided inaccurate information to the Board.

10. Respondent agrees that his Certified Public Accountancgy Corporation Certificate and
his Certified Public Accountant Certificate are subject to discipline and he agrees to Be bound by

the CBA's probationary terms as set forth in the Disciplinary Order below.

CONTINGENCY

11.  This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the CB A. Respondgnt understands
and agrees that counse! for Complainant and the staff of the CBA may communicate directly with
the CBA} regarding this stipulation and settlement, without notice to or participation by
Respondent. By signing the stipulation, Respondent understands and agrees that he may not.
withdraw his agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the CBA considers and
acts upon it. Ifthe CBA fails to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated
Settlement and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall
be inadmissible in any legal action between fhe parties, and the CBA shall not be disqualified
from further action by having considered this matter.

12, The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile
copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order, including PDF and facsimile
signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals.

13.  This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement,
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,

negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
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Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a
writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties.

14. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the CBA may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the fo Howing
Disciplinary Order:

DISCIPLINARY ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Certified Public Accountancy Corporation Certificate No.
COR 6159 issued to Respondent Michael S. Mitchell CPA, Inc. and Certified Public’ Accountant
Certificate Number CPA 20146 issued to Respondent Michael Stephen Mitchell are revoked.
However, the revocations are stayed and Respondent is placed on probation for three (3) years on
the following terms and conditions.

1. Obey All Laws

Respondent shall obey all federal, California, other states' and local laws, including those
rules relating to the practice of public accountancy in California.

2. Cost Reimbursement

‘Respondent shall reimburse the CBA $4,000.00 for its investigation and prosecution costs.

The payment shall be made as follows: $1,000.00 due within thirty (30) days of the effective date
and monthly payments of $100.00 thereafter for a period of thirty (30) months. |

3. Submit Written Reports

Respondent shall submit, within 10 days of completion of the quarter, written reports to the
CBA on a form obtained from the CBA. The respondeﬁt shall submit, under penalty of perjury,
such other written reports, declarations, and verification of actions as are required. These
declarations shall contain statements relative to respondent's compliance with all the terms and
conditions of probation. Respondent shall immediately execute all release of information forms
as may be required by the CBA or its representatives.
1
I
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4, Personal Appearances

Respondent shall, during the period of probation, appear in person at interviews/meetings as
directed by the CBA or its designated representatives, provided such notification is accomplished
in a timely manner.

5. Comply With Probation

Respondent shall fully comply with the terms and conditions of the probation imposed by
the CBA and shall cooperate fully with representatives of the CBA in its monitoring and
Investigation bf the respondent's compliance with probation terms and conditions,

6.  Practice Investigation

Respondent shall be subject to, and shall permit, a practice investigation of the respondent's
professional practice. Such a practice investigation shall be conducted by representatives of the
CBA, provided notification of such review is accomplished in a timely manner.

7.  Comply With Citations

Respondent shall comply with all final orders resulting from citations issued by the CBA.

8. Tolling of Probation for Out-of-State Residence/Practice

In the event respondent should leave California to reside or practice outside this state,
respondent must notify the CBA in writing of the dates of departure and return. Periods of non-
California residency or practice outside the state shall not apply to reduction of the probationary
period, or of any suspension. No obligation imposed hérein, including requirements to file
written reports, reimburse the CBA costs, and make restitution to consumers, shall be suspended

or otherwise affected by such periods of out-of-state residency or practice except at the written
direction of the CBA.

9. Violation of Probation

If respondent violates probation in any respect, the CBA, after giving respondent notice and
an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the disciplinary order that was
stayed. If an accusation or a petition to revoke probation is filed against respondent during
probation, the CBA shall have continuing jurisdiction until the matter is final, and the period of

probation shall be extended until the matter is final.
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The CBA’s Executive Officer may\ issue a citation under California Code of Regulations,
Section 95, to a licensee for a violation of a term or condition contained in a decision placing that
licensee on probation, |

10.  Active License Status

Respondent shall at all times maintain én active license status with the Board, including
during any period of suspension. If the license is expired at the time the Board's decision becomes
effective, the license must be renewed within 30 days of the effective date of the decision.

11. Completion of Probation

Upon syccessful completion of probation, respondent's license will be fully restored with
the exception of the ability to perform any audits, reviews, compilations or attest engagements, as
ordered in paragraph 13 below.

12. Restricted Practice

During the period of probation, Respondent shall not engage in and shall be prohibited from
performing any audits, reviews, compilations or attest engagements.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that:

13. Restricted Practice

After completion of probation, Respondent shall be permanently prohibited from engaging
in and performing any audits, reviews, compilations or attest engagements. This condition shall
continue until such time, if ever, that Respondent successfully petitions the Board fof
reinstatement of his ability to perform audits, reviews, compilations or aftest engagements.
Respondent understands and agrees that the Board is under no obligation to reinstate respondent's
ability to perform audits, reviews, compilations or attest engagements, that the Board has made
no representations concerning whether any such reinstatement might occur, and that the decision

to reinstate is within the sole discretion of the Board.

14. Full Compliance
Respondent understands and agrees that this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order
as a resolution of Accusation No. AC-2014-11 is based upon, inter alia, Respondent’s full

compliance with paragraph 13 of this Order (Restricted Practice). 1f Respondent fails to satisfy
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this condition, he agrees that the Board can file an accusation against him for unprofessional
conduct based on his failure to comply with paragraph 13 es an independent basis for disciplinary
action, pursuant to Business and Professions Code sectim} 5100, In addition, Respondent
consents that the Board may enforce paragraph 13 in any court of competent jurisdiction
(including an administrative court) to enjoin him, temporarily and/or permanently, from violating
paragraph 13, and may seek in such procécd'mg all other remedies as allowed by law,

ACCEPTANCH

I have carcfully read the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order. T understand the

“stipulation and the effect it will have on my Certificd Public Accountancy Corporation Certificate

and my Certified Public Accountant Certificate. [ enter into this Stipulated Settlement and’

Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the

Decision and Order of the California Board of W/’-’—j
ot G frrst LA
: T MICHAEL S. MATCHELL CPA, INC; MICHAEL

STEPHEN MITCHELL
Respondent

ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Scttloment and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the California Board of Accountancy.,

7

Dated: Respectfully submitted,

KAMALA D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California
GREGORY J. SALUTE

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

WILLIAM D. GARDNER
Deputy Attorney General
Atiorneys for Complainant

LA201351033451528506.doc
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this condition, he agrees that the Board can file an accuéation against him for unprofessional
conduct based on his failure to comply with paragraph 13 as an ihdependent basis for disciplinary
action, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 5100. In addition, Respondent
consents that the Board may enforce paragraph 13 in any court of competenf jurisdiction
(including an administrative court) to enjoin him, temporarily and/or permanently, from violating
paragraph 13, and may seek in such proceeding all other remedies as allowed by law.

ACCEPTANCE

I have carefully read the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order. Iunderstand the
stipulation and the effecf it will have on my Certified Public Accountancy Corporation Certificate
and my Certified Public Accountant Certificate. 1 enter into this Stipulated Settlement and
Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the
Decision and Order of the California Board of Accountancy.

DATED:

MICHAEL S. MITCHELL CPA, INC.; MICHAEL
STEPHEN MITCHELL
Respondent

ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the California Board of Accountancy.

Dated: 9/ Z 4’/ 7 Respectfully submitted,

KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California
GREGORY J. SALUTE

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

oy BN
WILLIAM D, GARDNER
Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Complainant

LA201351033451528506.doc
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ICAMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
KAREN B, CHAPPELLE
Supervising Deputy Attorney Gener al
WILLIAM D. GARDNER :
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No, 244817
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA. 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-2114
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No, AC-2014-11

MICHAEL S. MITCHELL CPA, INC
P.O. Box 8320, PMB 159
San Luis, AZ 85349 ACCUSATION

Certified Public Accountancy Corporation
Certificate No, COR 6159,

and’
MICHAEL STEPHEN MITCHELL
P.O. Box 8320, PMB 159 '
San Luis, AZ 85349

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No,

CPA 20146
Respondent,
Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

1, Patti Bowers (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity as the
Executive Officer of the California Board of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs,

2, On or about September 11, 2008, the Cah'fomfa Board of Accountancy issued
Certified Public Accountancy Corporation Certificate Number COR 6159 to Michael S. Mitchell
CPA, Inc. (Respondent). The Certified Public Accountancy Corporation Certificate was in full
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force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on September
30, 2014, unless renewed., .

3,  Onor about April 26, 1974, the California Board of Accountancy issied Certified
Public Accountant Certificate Number CPA 20146 to Michael Stephen Mitchell (Respondent).
The Certified Public Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the

charges brought herein and will expire on July 31, 2015, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

4. This Accusation is brought before the California Board of Accountancy, Department
of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All section references are to the
Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

5. Section 5109 states:

"The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a license, practice privilege, or
other authority to practice public accountancy by operation of law or by order or decisiqn of the
board or a court of law, the placement of a license on a retﬂed status, or the voluntary surrender of]
a license by a licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any
investigation of or action or disciplinary proceeding against the licensee, or to render a décision
suspending or revoking the license," |

6,  Section 5156 states:

"An accountancy corporation shall not do or fail to do any act the doing of which or the
failure to do which would constitute unprofessional conduct under any statute, rule or regulation
now or hereafter in effect. In the conduct of its practice, it shall observe and be bound by such
statutes, rules and regulations to the same extent as a person holding a permit under Section 5070
of this code. The board shall have the same powers of suspension, revocation and discipline
against an accountancy corporation as are now or hereafter authorized by Section 5100 of this
code, or by any other similar statute against individual licensees, provided, however, that
proceedings against an accountancy corporation shall be conducted in accordance with Chapter 5
(commencing with Section 11500) of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the Government Code, and

the board shall have all the powers granted therein."
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STATUTES AND REGULATIONS

7. Section 5100 states:

"After notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend, or refuse to renew any permit or
certificate granted under Article 4 (commencing with Section 5070) and Article 5 (commencing
with Section 5080), or may censure the holder of that permit or certificate for unprofessional

conduct that includes, but is not limited to, one or any combination of the following causes:

"(c) Dishonesty, fraud, gross negligence, or repeated negligent acts committed in the same
or different engagements, for the same or different clients, or any combination of engagements or
clients, each resulting in a violation of applicable professiorial standards that indicate a lack of
competency in the practice of public accountancy or in the performance of the bookkeeping

operations described in Section 5052.
"(e) Violation of Section 5097,

"(g) Willful violation of this chapter or any rule or regulation promulgated by the board
under the authority granted under this chapter. '

8.  Section 5062 of the Code provides that a licensee shall issue a report which conforms
to professional standards upon completion of a compilation, review or audit of financial
statements, .

9,  Section 5076, subdivision (a), provides:

“In order to renew its registration in an active status or convert to an active status, a firm, as
defined in Section 5035.1, shall have a peer review report of its accounting and auditing practice
accepted by a board-recognized peer review program no less frequently than every three years,”

10.  Section 5097 of the Code states:

“(a) Audit documentation shall be a licensee's records of the procedures applied, the tests
performed, the information obtained, and the pertinent conclusions reached in an audit

engagement, Audit documentation shall include, but is not limited to, programs, analyses,
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memoranda, letters of confirmation and representation, copies or abstracts of company documents,
and schedules or commentaries prepared or obtained by the licensee,

“(b) Audit documentation shall contain sufficient documentation to enable a reviewer with
relevant knowledge and experience, having no previous connection with the audit engagement, to
understand the nature, timing, extent, and results of the auditing or other procedures performed,
evidence obtained, and conclusions reached, and to determine the identity of the persons who
performed and reviewed the work.

“(c) Failure of the audit documentation to document the procedures applied, tests
performed, evidence obtained, and relevant conclusions reached in an engagement shall raise a
presumption that the procedures were not applied, tests were not performed, information was not
obtained, and relevant conclusions were not reached. This presumption shall be a rebuttable
presumption affecting the burden of proof relative to those portions of the audit that are not
documented as required in subdivision (b), The burden may be met by a preponderance of the
evidence,

“(d) Audit documentation shall be maintained by a liéensee for the longer of the following;:

(1) The minimum period of retention provided in subdivision (e). -
(2) A period sufficient to satisfy professional standards and to comply with ap.plicable‘
laws and regulations.

“(e) Audit documentation shall be maintained for a minimum of seven years which shall be
extended during the pendency of any board investigation, disciplinary action, or legal action
involving the licensee or the licensee's firm. The board may adopt regulations to establish a
different retention period for specific categories of audit documentation where the board finds that
the nature of the documentation warrants it.

“(f) Licensees shall maintain a written documentation retention and destruction policy that
shall set forth the licensee's practices and procedures complying with this article.”

i
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11, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 40, states:

“(a) A firm performing services as defined in Section 39(a) shall have a peer review report
accepted by a Board-recognized peer review program once every three years in order to renew its
license,

“(b) A firm performing services as defined in Section 39(a) for vthe first time shall héve eLpeer
review report accepted by a Board-recognized peer review program within 18 months of the date
it completes those services.”

12, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 52, subdiyision (d), states;

“A licensee shall provide true and accurate information and responses to questions,
subpoenas, interrogatories or other requests for information or documents and not take any action
to obstruct any Board inquiry, investigation, hearing or proceeding,” '

13. California Code; of Regulations, title 16, section 58, provides that licensees engaged
in the practice of public éccountancy shall comply with all applicable professional standards,

including but not limited to generally accepted accounting principles and generally accepted

auditing standards,

14, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 68.2, states:

“(a) To provide for the identification of audit documentation, audit documentation shall
include an index or guide to the audit documentation which identifies the components of the audit
documentation. ' |

“(b) In addition to the requirements of Business and Professions Code Section 5097(b),
audit documentation shall provide the date the document or working paper was completed by the
preparer(s) and any reviewer(s), and shall include the identity of the preparer(s) and any;
reviewer(s).

“(c) Audit documentation shall include both the report date and the date of issuance of the
report,”

"
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COST RECOVERY

15, Section 5107(a) of the Code states:

"The executive officer of the board may request the administrative law judge, as part of the
proposed decision in a disciplinary proceeding, to direct any holder of a permit or certificate found
to have committed a violation or violations of this chapter to péy to the board all reasonable costs
of investigation and prosecution of‘the case, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees. The
board shall not recover costs incurred at the administrative hearing,"

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

16. Respondent Michael Stephen Mitchell (“Respondent Mitchell”) is the sole owner of
respondent Michael S, Mitchell CPA, Inc, (“Respondent Firm”) and is the only licensed certified
public accountant employed by Respondent Firm. On behalf of Respondent Firm, Respondent
Mitchell conducted an audit of the San Antonio Community Hospital — Health Plan for the year
ended December 31, 2009, and prepared a related audit report which was submitted to the U.S,
Department of Labor’s Employee Benefits Security Administration as required by federal law.. On
or about August 22, 2011, the California Board of Accountancy (“CBA”) received a complaint
from the Department of Labor stating that, among other things, the audit of the health plan had not
been conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards (“GAAS”). Thereafter,
the CBA performed its own investigation and determined that, in conducting the audit of the health
plan and issuing the associated audit report, respondents Michael Stephen Mitchell and Michael S,
Mitchell CPA, Inc. (collectively, “Respondents™) violated provisions of the Accountancy Act and
regulations enacted pursuant thereto.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE,
(Gross Negligence)

17.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (c), in
that Respondents engaged in grossly negligent conduct by departing from accepted professional
standards to an extreme degree with respect to their audit of the San Antonio Community Hospital

— Health Plan for the year ended December 31, 2009, The circumstances are as follows:
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a,  Respondents’ audit report disclosed the statement of changes in net assets bu;c failed to
include a statement of net assets avail_ablel for plan benefits as required by the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act (ERISA); |

b,  Respondents failed to adequately plan for the audit in that Respondents; failed to
establish an audit strategy with regard to consideration of materiality levels and preliminary
identification of areas of higher ﬁsk; failed to establish an audit plan that reflected a descfiption of
the nature, timing and extent of planned risk assessment procedures sufficient to assess the risks of
materials misstatement; and failed to apply preliminary analytical review procedures;

c,- Respondents failed to obtain a sufficient understanding of the entity and its
environment to assess risks, including but not limited to an understanding of the health plan’s
internal control, the information system, the level of control risk, materiality and the risk of
material migstatement due to error or fraud;

d.  Respondents failed to perform appropriate analytical review procedures in the review
stage of the audit; |

e.  Respondents failed to apply auditing procedures to the individual participant accounts,
resulting in a lack of necessary information with respect to participant data and e}nployer
contributions;

f Respondents failed to obtain a sigﬁed management representation letter from the
client;

g, Respondents failed to exercise due professional care with respect to documenting their
audit work; |

Complainant refers to, and by this reference incorporates, the allegations set forth above in
paragraph 16, inclusive, as though set forth fully herein, |

| SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Repeated Acts of Negligence)
18.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (¢), in
that Respondents engaged in repeated acts of negligence by departing from accepted professional

standards with respect to their audit of the San Antonio Community Hospital - Health Plan for the
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year ended December 31, 2009, Complainant refers to, and by this reference incorporates, the
allegations set forth above in i)aragraph 16 and paragraph 17, subparagraphs a through g,
inclusive, as though set forth fully herein,

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Nonconforming Audit Report)

19, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (g), in
conjunction with section 5062 of the Code in that Respondents’ audit report following their audit
of the San Antonio Community Hospital — Health Plan for the year ended December 31, 2009,
failed to conform to professional standards, The circumstances are that Respondents’ report with
an ynqualified opinion did not conform to professional standards due to Respondents’ failure to
conduct the audit in accordance with GAAS and/or their failure to produce audit documentation
supporting the opinion, Complainant refers to, and by this reference incorporates, the allegations
set forth above in paragraph 16 and paragraph 17, subparagraphs a through g, inclusive, as though
set forth fully herein. |

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Comply with Professional Standards)

20. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (g), in
conjunction with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 58, in that Respondents failed to
comply with GAAS in the performance of and reporting on their audit of the San Antonio
Community Hospital — Health Plan for the year ended December 31, 2009. In addition, said audit
was conducted and the report prepared for the specific purpose of complying with ERISA. Said
audit and report failed to comply with the requirements of ‘ERISA. Complainant refers to, and by
this reference incorporates, the allegations set forth above in paragraph 16 and paragraph 17,
subparagraphs a through g, inclusive, as though set forth fully herein.

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Violation of Audit Documentation Requirements)
21, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (e), in

conjunction with section 5097 and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 68.2, in that,
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with respect to their audit of the San Antonio Community Hospital — Health Plan for the year
ended December 31, 2009, Respondents failed to produce and/or retain audit documentation
regarding fhe procedures applied, tests performed, evidence obtained and relevant conclusions
reached sufficient to enable a qualified reviewer with no prior connection with the audit to
understand the nature, timing, extent, results of the auditing procedures performed, evidence
obtained, and conclusions reached, In addition, Respondents failed to provide an index or guide to
the audit documentation materials produced as required by state law., Complainant refers to, and
by this reference incorporates, the allegations set forth above in paragraph 16 and paragraph 17,
subparagraphs a through g, inclusive, as though set forth fully herein,
SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(False Response to Board Request for Information)

22. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (g), in
conjunction with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 52, subdivision (d), in that
Respondents failed to provide true and accurate information in response to a request for
information from the CBA. The circumstances are that in 2012 the CBA submitted a Peer Review
Reporting Form to Respondent Firm seeking information regarding the firm’s auditing work and
related peer review requirements. On or about October 31, 2012, the Board received the
completed form, signed under penalty of perjury by Respondent Mitchell on behalf of Respondent
Firm, which falsely stated that the firm had not engaged in any auditing services that would require
peer review, when in fact the firm had issued its audit report on the San Antonio Community
Hospital — Health Plan for the year ended December 31, 2009, on or about July 29, 2011,

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

l (Peer Review Enrollment & Participation)
23. Respondent Firm is subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (g),
in conjunction with section 5076 and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 40,
subdivision (b), in that respondent failed to obtain a peer review report accepted by a Board-
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recognized peer review program within eighteen (18) months of completing its audit for the San
Antonio Community Hospital — Health Plan for the year ended December 31, 2009. Respondent
Firm issued an audit report followiﬁg its audit of the health plan on or about July 29, 2011, To
date, a peer review report has yet to be obtained,
PRAYER ‘

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the California Board of Accountancy issue a decision;

I, Revoking or suspending or otherwise imposing discipline upon Certified Public
Accountancy Corporation Certificate Number COR 61 59, issued to Michael S. Mitchell CPA, Inc.;

2. Revoking or suspending or otherwise imposiné discipline upon Certified Public
Accountant Certificate Number CPA 20146, issued to Michael Stephen Mitchell; |

3. Ordering Michael Stephen Mitchell and Michael S, Mitchell CPA, Inc. to pay the -
California Board of Accountancy the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this
case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 5107;

4, Ordering Michael Stephen Mitchell and Michael S, Mitchell CPA, Inc, to pay the
California Board of Accountancy an administrative penalty pursuant to Business and Professions

Code section 5116;

5. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper,
Al

A

A )
PATTI BOWERS
Bxecutive Officer
California Board of Accountancy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California
Complainant

DATED: Y‘\"OV“ a>} 90\'4

LA2013510334
51435352.doc
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Attachment 10

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. AC-2014-27

DENNIS LAWRENCE DUBAN
4250 Wilshire Blvd
Los Angeles, CA 90010

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
22749

DUBAN ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
4250 Wilshire Blvd
Los Angeles, CA 90010

Certified Public Accountancy Corporation
Certificate No. 1115

DUBAN ACCOUNTANCY, LLP
4250 Wilshire Blvd
Los Angeles, CA 90010

Certified Public Accountancy Partnership
Certificate No. 6850

Respondent.

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is hereby adopted by the California
Board of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.

This Decision shall become effective on I - ‘ — ‘ i

It is so ORDERED 39\'; - ' L/

Llitpn] Ahlamin
FOR THE CALIFORNIA BOARD OF COUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

Stipulated Surrender of License (Case No, AC-2014-27)
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KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
ARMANDO ZAMBRANO
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
ELYSE M. DAVIDSON
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 285842
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-2533
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

DENNIS LAWRENCE DUBAN
4250 Wilshire Blvd
Los Angeles, CA 90010

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
22749

DUBAN ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
4250 Wilshire Blvd
Los Angeles, CA 90010

Certified Public Accountancy Corporation
Certificate No. 1115

DUBAN ACCOUNTANCY, LLP
4250 Wilshire Blvd
Los Angeles, CA 90010

Certified Public Accountancy Partnership
Certificate No. 6850

Respondent.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

Case No. AC-2014-27

STIPULATED SURRENDER OF
LICENSE AND ORDER

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:

1
I

Stipulated Surrender of License (Case No. AC-2014-27)
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PARTIES

1. Patti Bowers (“Complainant”) is the Executive Officer of the California Board of
Accountancy. She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this
matter by Kamala D. Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Elyse M. Davidson,
Deputy Attorney General.

2. Respondents Dennis Lawrence Duban, Duban Accountancy Corporation, and Duban
Accountancy, LLP (“Respondents™) are represented in this proceeding by attorney Mark J. Seelig
of the law firm Meister Seelig & Fein, LLP, whose address is 125 Park Avenue, 7" Foor, New
York, NY 10017, |

3. Onor about March 19, 1976, the California Board of Accountancy issued Certified
Public Accountant Certificate No. CPA 22749 to Dennis Lawrence Duban (“Respondent”). The
Certified Public Accountant Certificate will expire on April 15, 2015, unless renewed.

4. On or about September 13, 1979, the CBA issued Corporation Certificate No. 1115 to
Duban Accountancy Corporation (“Respondent”). The license was canceled on or about
September 30, 2003, and has not been renewed. The California Board of Accountancy has
jurisdiction over the Certificate under Business and Professions Code section 5109,

5. On or about March 16, 2001, the CBA issued Partnership Certificate No. 6850 to
Duban Accountancy, LLP (“Respondent”). The partnership license was in full force and effect at
all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on March 31, 2015, unless
renewed.

JURISDICTION

6.  Accusation No. AC-2014-27 was filed before the California Board of Accountancy
(CBA), Department of Consumer Affairs, and is currently pending against Respondents. The
Accusation and all other statutori‘ly required documents were properly served on Respondents on
October 22,2014. Respondents timely filed their Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation.
A copy of Accusation No. AC-2014-27 is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference.
I

i
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ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

7. Respondents have carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the
charges and allegations in Accusation No. AC-2014-27.

8.  Respondents have carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understand the
effects of this Stipulated Surrender of License and Order.

9.  Respondents are fully aware of their legal rights in this matter, including the right to a
hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by counsel, at
their own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against the them; the
right to present evidence and to testify on their own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoenas
to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to
reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the
California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.

10. Respondents voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and
every right set forth above.

CULPABILITY

11. Respondents admit the truth of each and every charge and allegation in Accusation
No. AC-2014-27, agrees that cause exists for discipline and hereby surrenders the following
certificates for the CBA's formal acceptance:

(a) Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. CPA 22749;
(b) Corporation Certificate No. 1115 issued to Duban Accountancy Corporation;
(c) Partnership Certificate No. 6850 issued to Duban Accountancy, LLP.

12.  Respondents understand that by signing this stipulation, they enable the CBA to issue
an order accepting the surrender of his Certified Public Accountant Certificate, Corporation
Certificate, and Partnership Certificate without further process.

i
i
"
i
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CONTINGENCY

13. This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the California Board of Accountancy.
Respondents understand and agree that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the California
Board of Accountancy may communicate directly with the CBA regarding this stipulation and
surrender, without notice to or participation by Respondents or their counsel. By signing the
stipulation, Respondents understand and agree that they may not withdraw this agreement or seek
to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the CBA considers and acts upon it. If the CBA fails to
adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Surrender and Disciplinary Order
shall be of no force or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action
between the parties, and the CBA shall not be disqualified from further action by having
considered this matter.

14.  The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile
copies of this Stipulated Surrender of License and Order, including PDF and facsimile signatures
thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals.

15. This Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement.
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,
negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Surrender of License and Order
may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a writing
executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties.

16. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the CBA may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following Order:
1
1/

1
1/
1
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ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. CPA 22749
issued to Respondent Dennis Lawrence Duban is surrendered; Accountancy Corporation
Certificate No. 1115 issued to Duban Accountancy Corporation is surrendered; and Accountancy
Partnership Certificate No. 6850 issued to Duban Accountancy, LLP, is surrendered. These three
certificates are surrendered and accepted by the California Board of Accountancy.

1.  The surrender of Respondents’ Certified Public Accountant Certificate, Accountancy
Corporation Certificate, and Accountancy Partnership Certificate, and the acceptance of the
surrendered license by the CBA shall constitute the imposition of discipline against Respondents.
This stipulation constitutes a record of the discipline and shall become a part of Respondents’
license history with the California Board of Accountancy.

2.  Respondents shall lose all rights and privileges as a certified public accountant in
California as of the effective date of the CBA’s Decision and Order.

3. Respondents shall cause to be delivered to thé CBA all pocket licenses and, if one
was issued, all wall certificates on or before the effective date of the Decision and Order.

4,  If Respondents ever file an application for licensure or a petition for reinstatement in
the State of California, the CBA shall treat it as a petition for reinstatement. Respondents must
comply with all the laws, regulations and procedures for reinstatement of a revoked license in
effect at the time the petition is filed, and all of the charges and allegations contained in
Accusation No. AC-2014-27 shall be deemed to be true, correct and admitted by Respondents
when the CBA determines whether to grant or deny the petition.

5.  Respondents shall pay the agency its costs of investigation and enforcement in the
amount of $9,590.73 prior to issuance of a new or reinstated license.

6.  Respondents shall not apply for licensure or petition for reinstatement for three (3)
years from the effective date of the California Board of Accountancy’s Deéision and Order.

11
1/
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ACCEPTANCE
I have careful‘]y read the Stipulated Surrender of License and Order and have fully
discussed it with my attorney, Mark J. Seelig. I understand the stipulation and the effect it will
have on my Certified Public Accountant Certificate. 1 enter into this; Stipulated Surrender of
License and Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the

Decision and Order of the California Board of Accountancy.

pATED: |1~ 1311 /#/@Z&L (/)Mém’) as Pob for Dennis (.0

DENNIS LAWRENCE DUBAN
Respondent

I have carefully read the Stipulated Surrender of License and Order and have fully
discussed it with my attorney, Mark J. Seelig. 1 understand the stipulation and the effect it will
have on my Corporation Certificate. I enter into this Stipulated Surrender of License and Order
voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the Decision and Order of the

California Board of Accountancy.

DATED: |} |3-1Y Hﬁ&[ M as Poft for Demis L.Dub

L{7

DENNIS LAWRENCE DUBAN on behalf of
DUBAN ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Respondent

"
1
i
1
I
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discussed it with my attoriney, Mark J, Seel ig. Tunderstand the stipulation-and the effect it will

ACCEPTANCE CONTINUED

I have carefully read the Stipulated Surrender of License and Order and hiave fully
have on my Partnership Certificate, 1enter into this Stipulated Surrender of License and Order

voluntayily, knowingly, and intelligenily, and agree to be bound by the Decision and Order of the

California Board of Ageountancy,

pates |13 Mtlie Debea s ol for r)fe{\msL Dol

DENNIS LAWRENCE DUBAN on behaif of
DUBAN ACCOUNTANCY, LLP
Respondent

T have read and fully discussed with Respondent Dennis Lawrence Duban the terms and
conditions and other matters contained in the above Stipulated Surrender of License and Order, 1
approve its form and content,

A
j_/

DATED: [/~ [ 3 _Jif G /’M)W>

Mark J, Seelxg L
Attorney for cspondcnt;f

m ﬂ
i
11/
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ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is hereby respectfully submitted

for consideration by the California Board of Accountancy of the Department of Consumer

Affairs,

Dated: Respectfully submitted,
KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
ARMANDO ZAMBRANO
Supervising Deputy Attorney General

Oy St

ELYSE M. DAVIDSON
Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Complainant

LA2014511087

51625068.doc

11122014
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Exhibit A

Accusation No. AC-2014-27

Stipulated Surrender of License (Case No. AC-2014-27)
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KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California

ARMANDO ZAMBRANO

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

ELYSE M. DAVIDSON

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 285842
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-2533
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
' STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Case No. AC-2014-27
ACCUSATION

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

DENNIS LAWRENCE DUBAN
4250 Wilshire Blvd
Los Angeles, CA 90010

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No.
22749

DUBAN ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
4250 Wilshire Blvd
Los Angeles, CA 90010

Certified Public Accountancy Corporation
Certificate No. 1115

DUBAN ACCOUNTANCY, LLP
4250 Wilshire Blvd
Los Angeles, CA 90010

Certified Public Accountancy Partnership
Certificate No. 6850

Respondent.

Complainant alleges:
1
1
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PARTIES

1.  Patti Bowers (“Complainant”) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity as
the Executive Officer of the California Board of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs
(“CBA™).

2. Onor about March 19, 1976, the CBA issued Certified Public Accountant Certificate
No. 22749 to Dennis Lawrence Duban (“Respondent”). The Certified Public Accountant
Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will
expire on April 30, 2015, unless renewed.

3. On or about September 13, 1979, the CBA issueq Corporation Certificate No. 1115to
Duban Accountancy Corporation. The license was canceled on or about September 30, 2003, and
has not been renewed.

4,  On or about March 16, 2001, the CBA issued Partnership Certificate No. 6850 to
Duban Accountancy, LLP. The partnership license was in full force and effect at all times
relevant to the charges brought heréin and will expire on March 31, 2015, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

5. This Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the following

laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

6. Section 5109 states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a license, practice,
privilege, or other authority to practice public accountancy by operation of law or by
order or decision of the board or a court of law, or the voluntary surrender of a license
by a licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with
any investigation of or action or disciplinary proceeding against the licensee, ot to
render a decision suspending or revoking the license.

STATUTORY PROVISIONS

7. Section 490 provides that a Board may suspend or revoke a license on the ground that
the licensee ﬁas been convicted of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or
duties of the business or profession for which the license was issued.

8. Section 5070.7, subdivision (a), states:

A permit that is not renewed within five years following its expiration may not

2
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be renewed, restored, or reinstated thereafter, and the certificate of the holder of the
permit shall be canceled immediately upon expiration of the five-year period, except
as provided in subdivision (e).

9.  Section 5100 provides grounds for disciplining certified public accountants:

After notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend, or refuse to renew any
permit or certificate granted under Article 4 (commencing with Section 5070) and
Article 5 (commencing with Section 5080), or may censure the holder of that permit
or certificate for unprofessional conduct that includes, but is not limited to, one or any
combination of the following causes:

(a) Conviction of any crime substantially related to the qualifications,
functions and duties of a certified public accountant or a public accountant.

(c) Dishonesty, fraud, gross negligence, or repeated negligent acts
committed in the same or different engagements, for the same or different clients, or

. any combination of engagements or clients, each resulting in a violation of applicable
. professional standards that indicate a lack of competency in the practice of public

accountancy or in the performance of the bookkeeping operations described in Section
5052. '

(®) Willful violation of this chapter or any rule or regulation promulgated
by the board under the authority granted under this chapter. '

® Fiscal dishonesty or breach of fiduciary responsibility of any kind.
)] Knowing preparation, publication, or dissemination of false,
fraudulent, or materially misleading financial statements, reports, or information,

10. Section 5106 states:

A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is
deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this article. The record of the
conviction shall be conclusive evidence thereof. The board may order the certificate or
permit suspended or revoked, or may decline to issue a certificate or permit, when the
time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal
or when an order granting probation is made, suspending the imposition of sentence,
irrespective of a subsequent order under the provisions of Section 1203.4 of the Penal
Code allowing such person to withdraw his plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not
guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty or dismissing the accusation, information or
indictment.

REGULATORY_ PROVISIONS
11. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 99 states:

For the purposes of denial, suspension, or revocation of a certificate or permit
pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and
Professions Code, a crime or act shall be considered to be substantially related to the
qualifications, functions or duties of a certified public accountant or public accountant

3
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if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a certified public
accountant or public accountant to perform the functions authorized by his or her
certificate or permit in a manner consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare.
Such crimes or acts shall include but not be limited to those involving the following:

(a) Dishonesty, fraud, or breach of fiduciary responsibility of any kind;....

(d) Violation of any of the provisions of Chapter 1, Division III of the
Business and Professions Code or willful violation of any rule or regulation of the
board.

COST RECOVERY

12.  Section 5107, subdivision (a), states:

The executive officer of the board may request the administrative law judge, as
part of the proposed decision in a disciplinary proceeding, to direct any holder of a
permit or certificate found to have committed a violation or violations of this chapter
to pay to the board all reasonable costs of investigation and prosecution of the case,
including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees. The board shall not recover costs
incurred at the administrative hearing.

BACKGROUND FACTS

13. Beginning on or around 2003 and contir;uing until around 2009, Respondent
knowingly prepared tax returns containing false information. In tax returns prepared on behalf of
J. H. Pflueger (“J.H.P.”) and C. A. Pflueger (“C.A.P.”), Respondent falsely reported income and
conspired to defraud the Internal Revenue Service by knowingly preparing tax returns containing
false information.

14.  On or about August 2007, Respondent assisted J.H.P, with creating a nominee Cook
Islands trust named “Vista Pacifica Trust.” On or about October 2007, Respondent assisted J.H.P.
with opening a bank account in Zurich, Switzerland and held in the name of “Southpac Trustee
International, Inc., as Trustee of the Vista Pacifica Trust.”

15.  On or about November 2007, after the sale of a Hacienda investment property,
Respondent and J.H.P. sent the proceeds of over $14 million to the bank account in Zurich,
Switzerland. Neither Re.spondent or J.H.P. reported J.H.P.’s beneficial interest in the bank
account on schedule B of JHP’s (040 or by filing a report of Foreign Bank Account until after the

start of the criminal investigation.

1
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16. On or around November 2007, Respondent conspired to prepare a partnership income
tax return which falsely reported the gain a sale for the Hacienda investment pfoperty.
Respondent intentionally reported the basis as being $7 million higher than the actual basis even
though he knew there was no legitimate reason to inflate the basis since it was from a prior “Like
Kind Exchange.”

17.  On or about October 9, 2009, Respondent willfully caused to be filed a false 2007
individual income tax return for JJH.P. Respondent signed the return as preparer knowing it was
materially false as it under reported the gain on the sale of the investment property sold in
November 2007.

18.  On or about July 2005, Respondent, along with another person established a New
Zealand corporation, where Respondent was listed as the Director and contributed funds for the
purchase of residential rental property in New Zealand. The corporation opened at least two bank
accounts in 2005, but the Respondent willfully failed to report his interest in at least one of these
accounts on Schedule B of his 2006 and 2007 individual income taﬁ return. Further, Respondent
failed to file a Report of Foreign Bank Account to report his interest in at least one of the bank
accounts.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Conviction of a Substantially Related Crime)

19. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under sections 490 and 5100, subdivision
(a), and 5106, in conjunction with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 99, in that
Respondent was convicted of a substantially related crime, as follows:

a.  Onor about October 1, 2012, after pleading guilty, Respondent was convicted of one
felony count of violating 18 U.S.C. section 371 [conspiracy to defraud] and one felony count of

26 U.S.C. section 7206, subdivision (1) [subscribing to a false income tax return] in the criminal

proceeding entitled United States of America v. Dennis Lawrence Duban (U.S. Dist, Hawaii,

2012, No. 10-00631-LEK). On or about May 29, 2014 the Court sentenced Respondent to serve
24 months in State Prison and placed him on 3 years supervised release. Respondent was also

ordered to pay a fine of $30,000.00 and perform 600 hours of community service.

5
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b.  On or about January 2003, and continuing thereafter, Respondent and others did
unlawfully, voluntarily, intentionally, and knowingly conspired, combined, and agreed together

and with each other to defraud the United States by deceitful and dishonest means for the purpose

_of impeding, impairing, obstructing, and defeating the lawful Government functions of the

Internal Revenue Service in the ascertainment, computation, assessment and collection of v
revenue, to wit: federal income taxes. Complainant incorporates by reference paragraphs 13 — 18,
as if fully set forth herein.

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(False, Fraudulent, or Materially Misleading Reports)

20. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (j), in
that Respondent repeatedly prepared and caused filing of materially false individual income tax
returns and partnership tax returns. Complainant incorporates by reference paragraphs 13 — 19,
and all subparagraphs, inclusive, as if fully set forth herein.

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Dishonest Acts)

21,  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (c), in

that Respondent committed acts of dishonesty in the practice of public accountancy. Complainant

incorporates by reference paragraphs 13 — 19, and all subparagraphs, inclusive, as if fully set forth
herein.

: FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Fiscal Dishonesty)

22.  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action undet section 5100, subdivision (i), in
that Respondent committed acts of fiscal dishonesty. Complainant incorporates by reference
paragraphs 13 ~ 19, and all subparagraphs, inclusive, as if fully set forth herein.

FIFTH CAUSE FOR ];ISCIPLINE

(Willful Violation of Accountancy Act)
23.  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 5100, subdivision (g), in

that Respondent willfully violated the accountancy Act and the rules and regulations promulgated

6
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by the Board under the authority of the Act. Complainant incorporates by reference paragraphs 13
—19, and all subparagraphs, inclusive, as if fully set forth herein,
. PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the CBA issue a decision:

1. Revoking, suspending or otherwise imposing discipline upon Certified Public
Accountant Certificate No. 22749, issued to. Dennis Lawrence Duban;

2. Revoking, suspending or otherwise imposing discipline upon Corporation Certificate
No. 1115, issued to Duban Accountancy Corporation;

3. Revoking, suspending or otherwise imposing discipline upon Partnership Certificate
No. 6850, issued to Duban Accountancy, LLP;

4. Ordering Dennis Lawrence Duban, Duban Accountancy Corporation, and Duban
Accountancy, LLP to pay the CBA. the reasonable costs of the investigationland enforcement of
this case, pursuant to section 5107,

5. Ordering Dennis Lawrence Duban, Duban Accountancy Corporation, and Duban
Accountancy, LLP to pay the California Board Accountancy an administrative penalty pursuant to
Business and Professions Code section 5116; and,

6. Taking such other and further action as may be required.

Executive Officer

California Board of Accountancy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complainant

LA2014511087
51490443 .doc
10082014
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Attachment 11

: BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. AC-2014-58
ROBBIE TERUEL '
3967 Ambler Court DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER

San Jose, CA 95111

Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. | [Gov. Code, §11520]

CPA 104234
Respondent.
FINDINGS OF FACT
1. On or about August 5, 2014, Complainant Patti Bowers, in her official capacity as the

Executive Officer of the California Board of Accountancy, Department of Consumer Affairs,
filed Accusation No. AC-2014-58 against Robbie Teruel (Respondent) before the California
Board of Accountancy. (Accusation attached as Exhibit A.) |

2. On or about February 24, 2009, the California Board of Accountancy (CBA) issued
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. CPA 104234 to Respondent. The Certified Public
Accountant Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in

Accusation No. AC-2014-58 and expired on September 30, 2014, and has not been renewed. The

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER
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CBA maintains jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Business and Professions Code section
5109.

3. On or about August 12, 2014, Respondent was served by Certified and First Class
Mail copies of the Accusation No. AC-2014-58, Statement to Respondent, Notice of Defense,
Request for Discovery, and Discovery Statutes (Government Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6,
and 11507.7) at Respondent's address of record which, pursuant to California Code of
Regulations, title 16, section 3, is required to be reported and maintained with the CBA.

Respondent's address of record was and is:

3967 Amber Court
San Jose, CA 95111.

4.  Service of the Accusation was effective as a matter of law under the provisions of
Government Code section 11505, subdivision (c¢) and/or Business & Professions Code section

124,

5. Government Code section 11506 states, in pertinent part:

(c¢) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits if the respondent
files a notice of defense, and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all parts
of the accusation not expressly admitted. Failure to file a notice of defense shall
constitute a waiver of respondent's right to a hearing, but the agency in its discretion
may nevertheless grant a hearing.

6.  Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service upon him
of the Accusation, and therefore waived his right to a hearing on the merits of Accusation No.
AC-2014-58.

7. California Government Code section 11520 states, in pertinent part:

(a) If the respondent either fails to file a notice of defense or to appear at the
hearing, the agency may take action based upon the respondent's express admissions
or upon other evidence and affidavits may be used as evidence without any notice to
respondent. :

8.  Pursuant to its authority under Government Code section 11520, the CBA finds
Respondent is in default. The CBA will take action without further hearing and, based on the
relevant evidence contained in the Default Decision Evidence Packet in this matter, as well as

taking official notice of all the investigatory reports, exhibits and statements contained therein on

2
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file at the CBA's offices regarding the allegations contained in Accusation No. AC-2014-58, finds
that the charges and allegations in Accusation No. AC-2014-58, are separately and severally,
found to be true and correct by clear and convincing evidence.

9.  Taking official notice of its own internal records, pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 5107, it is hereby determined that the reasonable costs for Investigation
and Enforcement is $3184.13 as of September 8, 2014.

DETERMINATION OF ISSUES

1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Robbie Teruel has subjected his
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. CPA 104234 to discipline.

2. The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default.

3. The California Board of Accountancy is authorized to revoke Respondent's Certified
Public Accountant Certificate based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation
which are supported by the evidence contained in the Default Decision Evidence Packet in this
case:

a.  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 490 and 5100(a) of the
code in that Respondent was convicted of crimes that are substantially related to the duties,
functions, or qualifications of a Certified Public Accountant. On or about October 29, 2012, in
the case of People v. Teruel, Santa Clara Superior Court case No. C1224839, Respondent was
convicted of violating Vehicle Code sections 23103/23103.5, reckless driving involving the
consumption of alcohol. On or about May 9, 2013, in the case of People v. Teruel, Santa Clara
Superior Court case No. F1346157, Respondent was convicted of violating Vehicle Code section
23152(b), driving with a blood alcohol level of .08% or higher.

b.  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 5100(g) of the code in that
Respondent willfully violated California Code of Regulations Title 16, section 52, a regulation of
the CBA. Respondent willfully failed to respond to a written inquiry from the CBA.

111
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[
ORDER
IT.IS SO ORDERED that Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. CPA 104234,
heretofore issued to Respondent Robbie Teruel, is revoked.
Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent may serve a
written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within
seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may

vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute.

This Decision shall become effective on il — l - I 5

It is so ORDERED [ 9»’9“ /‘*/

¥

A1/ 10 i o,

FOR THE CALIFORNIA BOARD OF /
AIRS

ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AF

Attachment:
Exhibit A: Accusation
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KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California

FRANK H. PACOE

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

JUSTIN R. SURBER

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 226937
455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000
San Francisco, CA 94102-7004

~Telephone:(415) 3555437~~~ 7 7~ I

Facsimile: (415) 703-5480°
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: | Case No. AC-2014-58
ROBBIE TERUEL |
3967 Ambler Court
San Jose, CA 95111 ACCUSATION
Certified Public Accountant Certificate No. '
CPA 104234 ’
Respondent.
Complainant alleges:
PARTIES
1. Patti Bowers (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity as

the Executive Officer of the California Board of Accountancy (“CBA”), Department of Consumer
Affairs.

2. On or about February 24, 2009, the CBA issued Certified Public Acéountant
Certificate Number CPA 104234 to Robbie Teruel (Respondent). The Certified Public
Accountant Certificate will expire on September 30, 2014, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

3. - This Accusation is brought before the CBA, Department of Consumer Affairs, under
the authority of the following laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions

Code unless otherwise indicated.

Accusation
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—conduct that 1ncludes but is not hmlted to, one or any combination of the followmg causes:

4. Section 5100 states:
"After notice and hearing the board may revoke, suspend, or refuse to renew any permit or
certificate granted under Article 4 (commencing with Section 5070) and Article 5 (commencing

with Section 5080), or may censure the holder of that permit or certificate for unprofessional

"(a) Conviction of any crime substantlally related to the quahﬁcatlons functlons and dutles

of a certified public accountant or a public accountant.

"(g) Willful violation of this chapter or any rule or regulation promulgated by the board

under the authority granted undef this chapter. | |
»

5. Section 5106 states:

"A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deemed to
be a conviction Within the meaning of this article. The record of the conviction shall be
conclusive evidence thereof. The board may order the certificate or permit suspended or revoked,
or may decline to issue a certificate or permit, when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the
judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made,
suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under the provisions of
Section 1203.4 of the Penal Caode allowing such person to withdraw his plea of guilty and to enter
a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty or dismissing the accusation, information
or indictment."

6. Section 5109 states:

"The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a license, practice privilege, or
other authority to practice public accountancy by operation of law or by order or decision of the
board or a court of law, the placement of a license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of
a license by a licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with
any investigation of or action or disciplinary proceeding against the licensee, or to render a

decision suspending or revoking the license."

Accusation
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7 * Section 490 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that a board may éuspend or
revoke a license on the ground that the licensee has been convicted of a crime substantially related
to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business or profession for which the license was
issued. '

8.  California Code of Regulations Title 16, section 52 states:

‘;7(;15 A:lii;c;nrs‘ereu silall Vr-e;po—nd tg ény ~1nqu1r7y l;y ;Vthéigoa;a or I;S rra}W)poin”ced reﬁrese;l’;ati;/gs |
within 30 days. The response shall include making available all files, working papers and other
documents requested.

(b) A licensee shall respond to any subpoena issued by the Board or its executive officer or
the assistant executive officer in the absence of the executive officer within 30 days and in
accordance with the provisions of the Accountancy Act and other applicable laws or regulations.

(c) A licensee shall appear in person upon written notice or subpoena issued by the Board or
its executive officer or the assistant executive officer in the absence of the executive officer.

(d) A licensee shall provide true and accurate information and responses to questions,
subpoenas, interrogatories or other requests for information or documents and not take any action
to obstruct any Board inquiry, investigation, hearing or proceeding.”

9.  California Code of Regulations Title 16, section 99 states:

“For the purposes of denial, suspension, or revocation of a certificate or permit pursuant to
Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions Code, a crime or act
shall be considered to be substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a
certified public accountant or public accountant if to a substantial degree it evidences present or
potential unfitness of a certified public accountant or pub‘lic accountant to perform the functions
authorized by his or her certificate or permit in a manner consistent with the public health, safety,
or welfare. Such crimes or acts shall include but not be limited to those involving the following:

(a) Dishonesty, fraud, or breach of fiduciary responsibility of any kind,;

(b) Fraud or deceit in obtaining a certified public accountant's certificate or a puBlic_

accountant's permit under Chapter 1, Division III of the Business and Professions Code;
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(c) Gross negligence in the practice of public accountancy or in the performance of the
bookkeeping operations described in Section 5052 of the code; ‘
(d) Violation of any of the prbvisions of Chapter 1, Division Il of the Business and
Professions Code or willful violation of any rule or regulation of the board.”
_ ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY.

10. Section 5116 of the Code states:

“(a) The board, after appropriate notice and an opportunity for hearing, may order any
licensee or applicant for licensure or examination to pay an administrative penalty as provided in
this article as part of any disciplinary proceeding or other proceeding provided for in this chépterj

(b) The board may assess administrative penalties under one or more provisions of this
article. However, the total administrative penalty to be paid by the licensee shall not exceed the
amount of the highest administrative penalty authorized by this article. |

(c) The board shall adopt regulations to establish criteria for a§sessing administrative
penalties based upon factors, including, but not limited to, actual gnd potential consumer harm,
nature and severity of the violation, the role of the person in the viblation, the person's ability to
pay the administrative penalty, and the level of administrative penalty necessary to deter future
violations of this chapter. |

(d) Administrative penalties assessed under this article shall be in addition to any other
penalties or sanctions imposed on the licensee or other person, including, but not limited to,
license revocation, license suspension, denial of the application for licensure, denial of the
petition for reinstatement, or denial of admission to the licensing examination. Payment of these
administrative penalties rriay be included as a condition of probation when probation is ordered.

(e) All administrative penalties collected under this article shall be deposited in the
Accountancy Fund.”

COSTS
11. Section 5107(a) of the Code states:
"The executive officer of the board may request the administrative law judge, as part of the

proposed decision in a disciplinary proceeding, to direct any holder of a permit or certificate

4
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found to have committed a violation or violations of this chapter to pay to the board all reasonable
costs of investigation and prosecution of the case, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees.

The board shall not recover costs incurred at the administrative hearing."

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

© (Convictions)
12. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 490 and 5100(a) of the code
in that Respondent was convicted of crimes that are substanﬁally related to the duties, functions,
or qualifications of a Certified Public Accountant. The circumstances are as follows:

a.  On or about October 29, 2012, in the case of People v. Teruel, Santa Clara Superior
Court case No. C1224839, Respondent was convicted of violating Vehicle Code sections
23103/23103.5, reckless driving involving the consumption of alcohol. On or about December
30, 2011, Respondent drove a motor vehicle after consuming alcohol. Respondent was arrested
and was charged with driving under the influence of alcohol and driving with a blood alcohol
level of .08% or higher in violation of Vehicle Code section 23152, subsections (a) and (b).
Respoﬁdent plead nolo contendere to reckless driving involving the consumption alcohol.

b. On or about May 9, 2013, in th.é. case of People v. Teruel, Santa Clara Superior Court .
case No. F1346157, Respondent was convicted of violating Vehicle Code section 23 152(b),
driving with a blood alcohol level of .08% or higher. On or about January 25, 2013, Respondent

drove a motor vehicle with a blood alcohol level of .08% or higher.

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure To Comply With Board Inquiry)

13.  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 5100(g) of the code in that
Respondent willfully violated California Code of Reg.ulations Title 16, section 52, a regulation of
the CBA. The circumstances are as follows:

a.  On or about June 29, 2013, an appointed representative of the CBA sent Respondent a
letter to Respondent’s address of record via regular and certified mail.

b.  The letter requested several items from Respondent including, but not limited to: 1)

“a written explanation of the facts underlying [Respondent’s] conviction and any previous

5
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| convictions;” 2) “all court documents and any information you feel would support your position;”

and 3) a “detailed description of [Respondent’s] current employment and practice of public
accountancy.” |

c.  The letter informed Respondent of his obligation to comply with CBA inquiries

pursuant to V.C»enll*ifprnia Code of Regulations Titleﬁlﬁ, fection 52.

d.  Respondent failed to respond to the letter within 30 days in willful violation of
California Code of Regulations Title 16, section 52.

‘ PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,

and that following the hearing, the California Board of Accountancy issue a decision:
1. Revoking or suspending or otherwise imposing discipline upon Certified Public

Accountant Certificate Number CPA 104234, issued to Robbie Teruel;

'2. Ordering Robbie Teruel to pay the California Board of Accountancy the reasonable
costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code
secﬁon 5107, |

3. . Ordering Robbie Teruel to pay the California Board of Accountancy an administrative
penalty pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 5116;

4. Taking such other and further acﬁon as deemed necessary and proper.

DATED:. M@X@&Mﬁ ‘DM %Y 408 &

PATTIBOWERS ~— ~
Executive Officer

California Board of Accountancy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complainant

SF2014408972
41028393.doc

Accusation



	EAC Agenda  - January 2015
	II.B. - Attachment 1
	II.B. - Attachment 2
	II.B. - Presentation Regarding Reporting Actions - Voting
	II.C. - Approval of the December EAC Minutes
	IV.A. - Enforcement Activity Report
	IV.B. - Accusations and Disciplinary Orders Since December 11 2014
	IV.B. - Attachment 1, ACC for Rabinovtiz, Brian
	IV.B. - Attachment 2, ACC for Lucia, Donald
	IV.B. - Attachment 3, ACC for Casey, Diane
	IV.B. - Attachment 4, DO for Republicano, Victor
	IV.B. - Attachment 5, DO TCA Partners
	IV.B. - Attachment 6, DO for Jackson, Richard
	IV.B. - Attachment 7, DO Tucker, Jerrol
	IV.B. - Attachment 8, DO for Sullenger, Inger
	IV.B. - Attachment 9, DO for Michael Mitchell and Michael Mitchell CPA Inc
	IV.B. - Attachment 10, DO for Duban, Dennis
	IV.B. - Attachment 11, DO Teruel, Robbie



